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EXPLANATORY NOTE
This Amendment No. 1 (this “Amendment”) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Clearday, Inc. (the “Company”) for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2021, originally filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on April 15, 2022 (the “Original Filing”), is being filed
solely to make a limited number of arithmetic corrections to certain amounts included the December 31, 2021 financial statements that were included
in the Original Filing.
This Amendment does not amend any of the reported balances of the assets, liabilities, equity, income or loss of the Company as of, or for the
period reported by, the financial statements included in the Original Filing and there is no restatement of any such financial statements.
The arithmetic corrections are as follows:
1. Page F-4 of the Original Filing:
The per share December 31, 2021 Net loss from continued operations under Basic and diluted loss per share attributable to Clearday, Inc. is (1.59)
and not (2.03) as stated in the Original Filing; and the Net loss under Basic and diluted loss per share attributable to Clearday, Inc. is (1.41) and not
(1.85) as stated in the Original Filing. The corrected parts of this statement are as follows:
Basic and diluted loss per share attributable to Clearday, Inc.
Net loss from continued operations (1.59) (1.20
Net loss/income from discontinued operations 0.18 .092
Net loss (1.41) (1.11
2. Page F-5 of the Original Filing:
The column “Total Deficit” did not correctly sum the balance. The reported amount of Non-Controlling Interest did not change. The corrected
column is provided below

Clearday, Inc.



Consolidated Statements of Mezzanine Equity, Convertible Preferred Stock and Deficit
Mezzanine

Equity Series F
Preferred Stock

Preferred Stock
Series A Common Stock

Additional
Paid-in Accumulated

Clearday,
Inc.

shareholder
Non-

Controlling Total
Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Deficit Deficit Interest Deficit

Issuance of series I Convertible
Preferred Stock in subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 897,000 897,000
Issuance of partnership units in
subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 2,444,517 2,444,517
3. Page F-12 of the Original Filing:
The amount of December 31, 2021 “Write-offs” reported in the Original Filings included an errant digit. The correct amount is (177,271) and not
(177,2771). The Balance at the Beginning of Period, the Provision for Doubtful Accounts and the Balance at End of Period did not change. The row
in this schedule is provided below:

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Balance at
Beginning of

Period

Provision for
Doubtful
Accounts Write-offs

Balance at 
End of Period

December 31, 2021 68,911 108,360 (177,271) 0
This Amendment has been signed as of a current date and all certifications of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer/Principal Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer/Principal Accounting and Financial Officer are given as of a current date (Exhibits 31.1, 31.2, 32.1 and 32.2). Accordingly, this
Amendment should be read in conjunction with the Company’s filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission subsequent to the date that
the Original Filing was filed with the SEC, including any amendments to those filings.
Except for the foregoing, this Amendment does not alter or update any information contained in the Original Filing. The Original Filing continues to
speak as of the date of the Original Filing, and the Company has not updated the disclosures contained therein to reflect any events that have
occurred as of a date subsequent to the date of the Original Filing. Accordingly, this Amendment should be read in conjunction with the Original
Filing, and the Company’s filings made with the SEC subsequent to the date of the filing of the Original Filing.
The Original Filing, as amended by this Amendment, is provided in this filing.
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References in this Report to the “Clearday”, “Company”, “we”, “us” include Clearday, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries, unless otherwise
expressly stated or the context indicates otherwise. References in this report to “STI” or “Superconductor” are to the Company prior to the
closing of the merger by the Company with Allied Integral United, Inc. (“AIU”) that was described our registration statement on Form S-4, as
amended and supplemented (Registration No. 333-256138, the “AIU Merger Registration Statement”), unless otherwise expressly stated or the
context indicates otherwise. In connection with the AIU Merger, AIU changed its name to Clearday Operations, Inc. and became a wholly owned
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The mark “Clearday” is protected under applicable intellectual property laws. Solely for convenience, trademarks of Clearday referred to in this

Report may appear without the TM symbol, but such references are not intended to indicate, in any way, that we will not assert, to the fullest
extent under applicable law, our rights to these trademarks and related intellectual property rights.
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This Annual Report on Form 10-K (this “Report”) contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. We claim the protection of the safe harbor contained
in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 for these forward-looking statements. Our forward-looking statements relate to future
events or our future performance and include, but are not limited to, statements concerning our business strategy, future commercial revenues,
market growth, capital requirements, new product introductions, expansion plans and the adequacy of our funding. Other statements contained



in this Report that are not historical facts are also forward-looking statements. We have tried, wherever possible, to identify forward-looking
statements by terminology such as “anticipates,” “believes,” “can,” “could,” “estimates” “expects,” “intends,” “may,” “plans,” “should,”
“seeks,” “will,” “would” and other comparable terminology.
We caution investors that any forward-looking statements presented in this Report, or that we may make orally or in writing from time to time,
are based on the beliefs of, assumptions made by, and information currently available to, us. Such statements are based on assumptions and the
actual outcome will be affected by known and unknown risks, trends, uncertainties and factors that are beyond our control or ability to predict.
Although we believe that our assumptions are reasonable, they are not guarantees of future performance and some will inevitably prove to be
incorrect. As a result, our actual future results can be expected to differ from our expectations, and those differences may be material. Accordingly,
investors should use caution in relying on past forward-looking statements, which are based on known results and trends at the time they are
made, to anticipate future results or trends.
Some of the risks and uncertainties that may cause our actual results, performance or achievements to differ materially from those expressed or
implied by forward-looking statements include the following:

● Our limited cash and a history of losses;
● Our ability to fund our innovative care products and services, including Clearday at Home and other products and services in

development;
● The impact of any financing activity on the level of our stock price;
● The dilutive impact of any issuances of securities to raise capital;
● The cost and uncertainty from compliance with environmental regulations and the regulations related to operating our memory

care facilities;
● The effect of pandemics and other public health related issues on our businesses, including actions or additional regulations by

State and Federal governments;
● Local, regional, national and international economic conditions and events, and the impact they may have on us and our

customers;
● The impact of inflation to our businesses, including increases in our labor costs and other costs we pay for goods and services;
● The impact of a shortage of workers in our industries and our ability to maintain costs while properly staffing our facilities;
● Increases in tort and insurance liability costs;
● Delays or nonpayment to us, including payments related to government or agency reimbursements; and
● Circumstances that adversely affect the ability of older adults or their families to pay for our services, such as economic downturns,

weakening investment returns, higher levels of unemployment among our residents or potential residents’ family members, lower
levels of consumer confidence, stock market volatility and/or changes in demographics.

For further discussion of these and other factors see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” and “Risk Factors” in this Report.
This Report and all subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to us or any person acting on our behalf are
expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements contained or referred to in this section. We do not undertake any obligation
to release publicly any revisions to our forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this Report.
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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General
Clearday is a non-acute health care services company focused on servicing the largest demographic in the country - older Americans, who we
define as adults that are 50 or more years of age. Clearday provides a modern, hopeful vision for making high-quality care more accessible,
affordable, and empowering for older Americans and those who love and care for them. We operate four residential care facilities and a day care
center that serve primarily older Americans, and persons facing cognitive issues such as Alzheimer’s and other forms of dementia. These facilities
are our centers of cognitive excellence in which we have developed new care models that improve the experiences of our customers, their families
and our care givers.
We expect to disrupt the traditional long-term care model by providing:

● Innovative care products and service solutions that serve older Americans, their families and their caregivers, primarily through our

digital service Clearday at HomeT M, which provides an innovative, tech-enabled platform that makes high-quality care more
accessible, affordable, and empowering;

● A membership-based adult day care model under our Clearday Clubs brand that will provide high-quality, daytime-only care primarily
for individuals with Alzheimer’s disease, other dementias, or other lifestyle-limiting chronic health conditions;

● Continuing our memory care facilities that focus on treating residents suffering from any of 25 diagnoses of dementia (including
Alzheimer’s disease) which may require 24/7 care and be treated in a residential care facility and continuing to develop therapies and
services that enhance the quality of life for our residents and their families; and

● Continuing to develop and market innovative care and wellness solutions through Clearday Labs.
Clearday focuses on expanding the traditional continuum of care to develop and provide a complete care spectrum. The traditional continuum of
care often focuses predominately on different types of residential communities (brick and mortar). Our complete care spectrum focuses on allowing
people to age in the right place, which may be their home, a daily care center or a residential community.
Based on certain generally available industry publications and surveys, Clearday believes that the older American segment currently represents
approximately 45% of the U.S. consumer market and estimates that, subject to the disruption resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic, the spending
power of U.S. consumers over 60 years old will be approximately $7.6 trillion annually, a figure that Clearday believes will likely grow significantly as
age demographics continue to shift to longer lifespans. Clearday believes that every day approximately 10,000 Americans turn 65 and that this trend
will continue for decades. Certain studies expect that the number of Americans aged 65 and over will nearly double from 52 million in 2018 to 95
million in 2060. All of these consumers will need care as they grow older, and Clearday believes its portfolio of traditional, alternative, and
technology-enabled businesses is aligned to address the diverse needs of these older Americans and their caregivers.

Clearday believes that:
● The U.S. older care market has more than 110 million Americans and is growing;
● Approximately 16 million Americans provide unpaid care for people with Alzheimer’s or other forms of dementia, which represents a

significant number of people that could enter or return to the paid work force if alternatives such as affordable adult day care were
available;

● Approximately, 7.2 million Americans today live with Alzheimer’s disease or other forms of dementia, and it is expected that over the
next 20 years, the total number of those living with Alzheimer’s disease or other forms of dementia in the U.S. is expected to
approximately double from 7.2 million to nearly 13 million, with 8.5 million women and 4.5 million men;



● More than 75% of the help provided to older adults in the United States is provided by family members, friends or other unpaid
caregivers; and

● That there is a significant labor shortage in the U.S. for older care that supports the development of innovative care solutions.
2

Innovation by Leveraging Technologies
Clearday intends to pursue businesses that are focused on the older care consumer market. Clearday evaluated changes to traditional care
businesses to meet the consumer demand with innovative technologies, including in a manner that protects its customers from infectious diseases,
including COVID-19. Clearday has developed each of our innovative businesses with the intent to leverage technology and will continue business
development to address changing consumer preferences and regulatory requirements, including adding to the adult day care business a virtual
service that provides many of the core benefits to the older Americans that would participate as a member of a Clearday Club. The products and
services that are described below may be modified by Clearday as part of its continuing business strategy to provide a full care spectrum to older
Americans that we believe will enhance their lives at a cost that is significantly lower than many competitors that historically service this market
with traditional (residential care) services.
One indicator of Clearday’s ability to leverage technologies is our development during Q4 2020 and Q1 2021 of our proprietary B.E.S.T. test that
provides an evaluation of a person’s (1) Behavior, (2) level of Engagement, and factors that indicate issues with such person’s level of (3)
Stimulation and (4) Temperament or interaction with others. The B.E.S.T. test enables Clearday to develop a customized plan of care for the
individual. The plan of care is implemented by the individual’s care givers such as family members or skilled professionals including CNAs. At
regular intervals, the B.E.S.T. test is again administered, and the individual’s plan of care is modified to the extent necessary.
Clearday at Home
Clearday at Home is a unique digital service offering to the multi-billion home care industry with proprietary modern, innovative care products and
services, with the goal of enabling seniors to stay in their homes longer and delay the need for residential care. Clearday launched its virtual
offering of in-home care services through a digital network that makes a senior’s day more healthy, social and uplifting. The Clearday at Home
service is a scalable, economic and effective platform that may reach the older American market. Clearday at Home connects the senior and their
loved ones to others with similar experiences and challenges with proprietary programing that includes a range of activities, including physical and
mental exercises to improve individuals that are challenged by dementia or other cognitive issues. Some of these programs are coordinated with the
client’s at home care giver and greatly assist integrated plans of care. Such products and services are expected to be integrated with Clearday Clubs
and other Clearday businesses.
Clearday believes that the care spectrum will be significantly improved by providing a home health option that integrates with a broader range of
care offerings. Clearday plans to improve the traditional home health care model with technologies and superior point of care service.
Clearday believes that its business model provides superior client attention and service experience for the informal family caregivers of senior
citizens, who often are the primary point of contact for coordinating care services. Clearday’s tech-enabled care model is planned to coordinate a
range of care, health and wellness issues that are often not given significant attention or provided in a unified and coordinated model. Clearday at
Home may be integrated with our facilities, such as adult day care and specialty clinics, to provide a broader, more flexible assortment services to
this market segment.
Residential Memory Care
The residential care businesses have been conducted by Clearday and its predecessors for a significant period through our subsidiaries, referred to
collectively as “MCA”. The residential care communities are facilities that have been built to suit using architecture, designs and furniture that
elevate the residential care of persons suffering from dementia or other cognitive issues. There are 26 diagnoses of dementia, including Alzheimer’s
disease. 25 of these diagnoses may be treated in a community setting and our residential care communities treat each of these 25 diagnoses. Our
residential communities operate in three U.S. states. We believe that our facilities are a leader in memory care, in part because during 2021 the
facilities had a below industry average adverse behavior incidents and protected residents from the COVID-19 virus as evidenced by that fact that
the number of our residents that were hospitalized because of COVID-19 was below the industry average and there have not been any resident
deaths directly caused by this virus to March 31, 2022. Clearday’s MCA executives have decades of experience in the cognitive residential care
treatment, including policies and procedures that protect older Americans. Our residential care communities provide us with a proprietary and
extensive understanding of the non-acute care and wellness industry and serve as our foundation for innovative care solutions, including the use
of Clearday Restore, a proprietary, innovative, multi-sensory therapy tailored to the needs of those with Alzheimer’s and other forms of dementia or
cognitive challenges that has contributed to decreased adverse incidents, and robotics.
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Adult Day Care-Clearday Clubs
We acquired an adult daycare center in San Antonio, Texas in May, 2021, and plan to develop our Clearday Club adult daycare at our San Antonio
headquarters building and develop a network of local, membership-based centers, which will provide to the older care market a high-standard,
technology-enabled care option that is significantly less expensive than long-term residential care alternatives. Our Clearday Clubs adult daycare
will offer services through a monthly subscription and be characterized by welcoming facilities, trained staff, and personalized care programs that
may be tailored to individual member needs. Each of the Clearday Clubs will utilize the proprietary format and programs, enabling Clearday to
quickly and efficiently roll out or expand its Clearday Clubs at an efficient standard cost per center.
The Clearday Clubs is positioned by us to be an integral part of Clearday building the complete care spectrum for older Americans that enable
people to stay in their homes longer and conserve their savings. Clearday believes that the adult day care centers will be able to provide many of
the full-day residential care services at a fraction of the cost. Clearday believes that current adult day care market participants include many smaller
local businesses that do not provide the level of technology-enabled care, proven programming, and best practices expertise that will be provided
by Clearday.
Clearday Labs
Clearday Labs is a focus group of Clearday senior executives and advisors supported by a team of technology consultants. We have developed
Clearday Labs to continue to identify and develop modern innovative products and services to support older Americans Age in the Right Place.
The Clearday Lab initiatives include the following:

● Clearday Therapeutic streams, our proprietary service that provides guidance to care givers as to specific issues such as assisting
with activities of daily living, for example sundowning;

● Robotic services through our strategic alliance with Invento Research, that delivers our proprietary Clearday at Home digital services
and enhances safety, security and engagement; and

● Clearday Cutting Edge Rooms that enhance the experience of a resident with our proprietary therapies and technology;
● A cryogenic air quality system that removes particulates and volatile organics (which effectively sterilizes the internal atmosphere),

reduces CO2 (carbon dioxide), and regulates humidity, by condensing or freezing the air in interior built spaces in a system that can
easily integrate with HVAC systems.



● Clearday Network, a subscription service that helps agencies recruit and retain caregivers and enhance client experiences and
provides support and backbone to Clearday services that are aligned with the “healthcare at home” movement. Clearday Network
launched in November, 2021 and provides Clearday’s proprietary BEST Test content to provide a Digital Care Map that is personalized
and supports both the family caregiver plus additional training to the professional caregiver;

We expect to use Clearday Labs to continue to develop products and services targeted to the health and homecare markets, including through
strategic alliances that are expected to be structured to lower our development costs to bring new products and services to market.
Our Strategy
Clearday’s mission is to be a leading provider to the older care consumer market by providing more engaging and more affordable alternatives that
will:

● Allow people to Age in the Right Place;
● Leverage technology to enhance the customer experience and quality of product and service offerings, with a lower cost structure

than is possible for legacy care service providers;
● Require less capital investment than traditional residential care facilities and other customary care services offerings targeted to older

Americans; and
● Provide exemplary care to older Americans facing dementia and other lifestyle-limiting physical and cognitive issues.

Clearday’s digital service strategy is initially focused on the initial launch and rapid expansion of Clearday at Home service. Clearday intends to
continue the use of our digital service in our communities and acquire other customers through a B2B (business to business) strategy, primarily by
teaming with home care agencies and long-term care facilities, which permits such agencies to resell Clearday at Home services and offer an
advantage over other agencies by providing a more engaging and beneficial service to home care consumers.
Clearday also plans to expand its Clearday Club services. Clearday acquired an adult day care center that is located in San Antonio, Texas that
primarily serves veterans who receive reimbursement from the United States Department of Veterans Affairs (VA). Clearday is rebranding this adult
day care center and expects it will continue to focus on members that are Veterans who receive VA reimbursement. Clearday plans to expand their
number of Clearday Club locations in the near future and may also selectively acquire adult day care centers that are local and continue its business
or revitalize such adult day care center and rebrand it as a Clearday Club. Clearday expects to locate its adult day care facilities near employment
hubs or medical service communities, such as medical offices, hospitals or other traditional and alternative patient care facilities permitting close
proximity for easy “drop off” and “pick up” and coordinated care by its client’s medical and other care professionals. Clearday believes that
employers who have adopted and promoted the growth of childcare service options with employee support and benefit subsidies may support and
subsidize adult day care in a similar fashion.
Clearday expects that most of its growth of its adult day care centers will be through proprietary centers that are developed by Clearday. Clearday
may also selectively acquire adult day care centers that are local and continue its business or revitalize such adult day care center and rebrand it as
a Clearday Club.
Clearday markets and distributes its products and services through its own sales and marketing staff as well as through on-line and e-commerce.
Our innovative care services are distributed primarily through a business to businesses marketing strategy.
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Competitive Strengths
We believe that one of our competitive advantages is our almost two decades of knowledge of the older care market, as well as our ability to apply
this understanding consistently across a diverse array of care delivery channels. Clearday believes that our competitive strengths include that:

● Our executive management has extensive experience in operating long-term care assets with decades of knowledge in real estate,
regulatory matters, and delivering care to customers and their families .

● We have two decades of knowledge in treating people challenged with cognitive issues and has developed proprietary therapies and
services that improve the lives of people that are challenged with dementia or other cognitive issues;

● We have used our experiences to provide better training and a supportive care giver experience which enables us to respond to
significant industry wide staffing challenges.

● We are not burdened with legacy technologies that limit innovation and restrict the launch of new products and services;
● We are able to quickly and efficiently develop dynamic new virtual and other service and product offerings in response to emerging

market demands, including an ability to innovate new care techniques and therapies and that continue Clearday’s core strategy to
offer a full spectrum of care in a manner that protects its customers from infectious diseases, including COVID-19;

● We are able to offer a more diverse, flexible, and affordable care spectrum
● We may expand our real estate centric business without the burden of existing lease and facilities costs, enabling us to take

advantage of significant opportunities created in the long-term care market by the COVID-19 pandemic and other challenges;
● We have a proprietary design for the build out of leased space to promote a consistent look, feel, and service experience within its

Clearday Clubs;
● We have an effective sales and marketing program led by a local San Antonio team that has already sold adult day care center

services prior to the opening of any of the Clearday Clubs, which services are delivered at an affiliated residential care facility.
● Our residential care facilities are well positioned in geographic markets with consistent growing demand;
● Our residential care have specific architecture and designs to improve the care and wellness of residents with memory care issues;
● Our senior executives enjoy an excellent reputation with the applicable state regulatory authorities and have decades of experience in

caring for older Americans in the evolving regulatory environment;
● Our sales and marketing efforts are led by professionals with decades of successful sales leadership; and
● Our senior executives have a proven ability to continue care during pandemic and other emergencies, including the current COVID-19

pandemic, hurricanes and other significant disruptions.
Opportunity Zone Fund

Clearday sponsored an opportunity fund that provided investors with the ability to utilize the significant tax advantages of investing in designated
“qualified opportunity zones,” within the meaning of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017. This sponsored fund acquired a 3-story medical office
building located in San Antonio, Texas 78217 that is located on 0.84 acres and has approximately 22,265 rentable square feet. Clearday intends to
use most of the ground floor for an adult day care center and for related businesses including production of virtual programing. Some of the office
space will be used for Clearday’s initial medical staff training and educational center that will further develop and offer Clearday’s Technicians of
Cognitive Care Program. Space in this building will also be used for Clearday’s corporate headquarters.
Competition
We operate in a highly competitive market. Our residential care facilities compete with numerous other senior living community operators, as well as
companies that provide senior living services, such as home healthcare companies and other real estate based service providers. Some of
Clearday’s competitors are larger and have greater financial resources than Clearday and some of Clearday’s competitors are not-for-profit entities
that have endowment income and may not face the same financial pressures as Clearday. Also, in recent years, a significant number of new senior



living communities have been developed, and Clearday expects this increased development activity to continue in the future. This activity has
increased competitive pressures on Clearday, particularly in the geographic markets where Clearday operates its residential care facilities.
Additionally, some competitors of Clearday that operate in the same geographic market as some of Clearday’s residential care facilities have
renegotiated their facility lease terms which provide a lower cost structure than Clearday. Other participants that enter the longevity residential care
market will have a similar cost advantage over Clearday.
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The adult day care market is generally a more fragmented market in the locations that Clearday has targeted and generally do not provide the same
level of tech enabled care and range of cognitive and relaxation therapies that will be offered by Clearday. There are several larger firms in the adult
day care markets that are targeted by Clearday and not for profit entities, as well as a range of alternatives including social centers and religious
institutions that provide some, but not all of the services that will be provided by Clearday.
Certain of our products and services being developed in our Clearday Labs, including the use of robotic services, also face significant competition,
including by companies that may have greater resources, more widely accepted and innovative products and stronger name recognition than we
do.
Clearday addressed the competition in the home and residential care market by differentiating our facilities by, among other matters, quality of
services and use of innovative therapeutic services, including Clearday Restore our digital services and our development of robotic based services.
For more information on our competitive pressures that we may face and associated risks, see “Risk Factors”.

Government Regulation
Residential Care and Adult Day Care Businesses
The senior living and healthcare industries are subject to extensive, frequently changing federal, state and local laws and regulations. These laws
and regulations vary by jurisdiction but may address, among other things, licensure of facilities and personnel, required staffing ratios, the
authority to provide various types of medical care, zoning and physical facility requirements, food safety, emergency preparedness plan
requirements, medical waste disposal requirements, government healthcare program participation requirements, fraud and abuse prohibitions,
requirement relating to reimbursement for services, recordkeeping requirements, resident rights and prohibitions against abuse and neglect,
confidentiality and security of personal information. Some states may also require a certificate of need before a community may be opened or the
services at an existing community may be expanded. These laws and regulatory requirements impact Clearday’s day-to-day operations could affect
Clearday’s ability to expand its facilities-based businesses into new markets and to expand our services and communities in existing markets.
There are various extremely complex federal and state laws governing a wide array of referrals, relationships, and arrangements and prohibiting
fraud by healthcare providers, including those in the senior living industry. Governmental agencies are devoting increasing attention and resources
to anti-fraud initiatives. Pertaining to Clearday’s provision of services to veterans that are reimbursed through benefits from the U.S. Department of
Veterans Affairs (the “VA”), Clearday is subject to the federal False Claims Act that prohibits anyone from presenting, or causing to be presented to
the government, claims for payment that are false, fraudulent, or are for items or services that were not provided as claimed. Either the government
or a private individual acting on behalf of the government may bring an action under the False Claims Act alleging that a healthcare provider has
defrauded the government and seek treble damages for false claims and the payment of additional monetary civil penalties. The False Claims Act
allows a private individual with knowledge of fraud to bring a claim on behalf of the federal government and earn a percentage of the federal
government’s recovery. As a result of these financial incentives, these so-called “whistleblower” suits have become more frequent. Violation of the
False Claims Act may also result in loss of licensure, citations, sanctions, and other criminal or civil fines and penalties, the refund of
overpayments, payment suspensions, or termination of participation in Medicare and Medicaid programs, which may also trigger default under
debt and lease obligations.
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Additionally, Clearday is subject the federal Anti-Kickback Statute (“AKS”), and certain state referral laws. The AKS makes it unlawful for any
person to offer or pay (or to solicit or receive) “any remuneration... directly or indirectly, overtly or covertly, in cash or in kind” for referring or
recommending for purchase any item or service which is eligible for payment under a federal healthcare program, including VA benefits. A violation
of the federal AKS is a felony and may also result in criminal penalties and civil sanctions, including fines and possible exclusion from government
reimbursement programs, which may also cause default under debt and lease obligations The Office of Inspector General of the Department of
Health and Human Services (“OIG”) has published a number of “safe harbor” regulations that define practices that may technically violate the
AKS, but will not be subject to civil or criminal enforcement action. An arrangement that fails to fit within a safe harbor is not necessarily per se
illegal; the OIG will evaluate the facts and circumstances of arrangements on a case-by-case basis to determine whether the arrangements involve
illegal remuneration by one party to the other. Other than VA benefits, Clearday did not generally receive reimbursement from Medicare or Medicaid
or other governmental programs.
Clearday’s compliance with many of the laws and regulations cited above is determined by inspection, survey and review by the applicable
authority on a periodic or other basis (e.g., complaint-based) as determined from time to time by the applicable authority. Many inspection
deficiencies are resolved through a plan of corrective action relating to the facility’s cited deficiencies, but a reviewing agency may have the
authority to take further action against a licensed or certified facility that could result in fines, adverse licensure action (suspension, revocation,
probation), suspension or denial of admissions, loss of certification as a provider under federal and/or state reimbursement programs, or imposition
of other sanctions, including criminal penalties. Challenging and appealing allegations of noncompliance with applicable laws and regulations
requires the expenditure of significant legal fees and management attention. Any adverse determination concerning any of Clearday’s licenses,
permits or eligibility to receive government-based reimbursement, any penalties, repayments or other sanctions, and the increasing costs of
required compliance with applicable laws may trigger default under debt or lease obligations, and may negatively affect its financial condition and
operations. Also, adverse findings with regard to any single Clearday community may have an adverse impact on Clearday’s ability to obtain or
maintain licenses at other locations, and may have a material adverse effect on marketing and Clearday’s reputation. In addition, states’ Attorneys
General vigorously enforce consumer protection laws as those laws relate to the senior living industry. State Medicaid Fraud and Abuse Units may
also investigate assisted living and memory care communities even if the community or any of its residents do not receive federal or state funds.
Clearday’s care businesses must comply with laws designed to protect the confidentiality and security of individually identifiable information.
Under the federal Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, or HIPAA, and the Health Information Technology for Economic
and Clinical Health Act, or the HITECH Act, Clearday must comply with rules adopted by HHS governing the privacy, security, use and disclosure
of individually identifiable information, including financial information and protected health information, or PHI, and also with security rules for
electronic PHI. There may be both civil monetary penalties and criminal sanctions for noncompliance with these laws. Under the HITECH Act,
penalties for violation of certain provisions may be as high as $50,000 per violation for a maximum civil penalty of $1.5 million per calendar year. In
January 2013, HHS released the HIPAA Omnibus Rule, or the Omnibus Rule, which went into effect in March 2013 and required compliance with
most provisions by September 2013. The Omnibus Rule modified various privacy and security requirements, including modifying the standard for
providing breach notices. In addition to HIPAA, many states have enacted their own security and privacy laws relating to individually identifiable
information, including financial information and health information. In some states, these laws are more burdensome than HIPAA. In instances in



which the state provisions are more stringent than or differ from HIPAA, providers must comply with both the applicable federal and state
standards. Failure to comply with applicable federal or state standards could subject Clearday to civil sanctions and criminal penalties, which could
materially and adversely affect its business, financial condition and results of operations. HIPAA enforcement efforts have increased considerably
over the past few years, with HHS, through its Office for Civil Rights, entering into several multi-million dollar HIPAA settlements in recent years.
Finally, the Office for Civil Rights and other regulatory bodies have become increasingly focused on cybersecurity risks, including the emerging
threat of ransomware and similar cyber-attacks. The increasing sophistication of cybersecurity threats presents challenges to the entire healthcare
industry.
The recent Presidential election results will likely change the regulatory environment for healthcare and Clearday is unable to predict the impact of
these or other regulatory reform efforts. While we expect that there will be a Secretary of HHS that will reinvigorate the Healthcare Reform Act with
many aspects that were adopted by the Obama / Biden administration, the extent of such efforts and the impact cannot be estimated by Clearday.
Such changes may require us to incur additional expenses.
Insurance
Litigation against senior living and healthcare companies continues to increase, and liability insurance costs continue to increase as a result. In
addition, Clearday’s employee benefit costs, including health insurance and workers’ compensation insurance, generally continue to increase.
In addition to existing government regulation, Clearday is subject to numerous property and hospitality regulations applicable to the other
segments of Clearday’s business of non-core assets.
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Human Capital
Number of Employees

As of December 31, 2021, Clearday had approximately 225 employees, substantially all of which were employed for the benefit of our residential care
business and our innovative care and wellness products and services. None of Clearday’s employees are expected to be subject to a collective
bargaining agreement or represented by a labor union.

Human Capital Definition and Scope
Clearday defines “human capital” as the resources that may be retained and deployed by Clearday to achieve its business strategies and
objectives by properly governing and managing:

● Clearday’s longevity care and wellness businesses;
● The continued innovation of Clearday’s businesses including our adult day care, digital services, robotics and related services;
● Clearday’s general governance and administrative functions, including management of our financial capital and physical capital

assets; and
● The liquidation and other monetization of our non-core assets held for disposition.

Clearday uses a combination of full-time employees and outsourced capabilities from independent contractors, including accounting and finance
professionals.
Substantially all of Clearday’s human capital are the employees of our residential care businesses. Our additional human capital include our
executive teams and those who focus on our innovative care businesses. There are several levels of human capital at MCA, including:

● Senior management such as the President of MCA, each Executive Director of a facility, the head of education and training and the
head of non-residential services;

● Program staff, including those that present at Clearday’s digital adult day care service Clearday at Home;
● Senior management and staff at Memory Care America residential facilities, including:

○ Nursing professionals such as Registered Nurses, Licensed Vocational Nurses, and Licensed Practical Nurses;
○ Certified Nursing Assistants and Certified Medication Aids
○ Resident Assistants;
○ Home Health Aids;
○ Certified Medication Aids; and
○ Other staff including housekeeping and food and beverage.

The number and level of staff at a residential or non-residential care facility is determined by several factors, primarily, the regulatory requirements
and the number of residents or clients. Historically, the regulatory requirements have been stable, until the COVID-19 pandemic. The response by
federal and state health regulatory authorities have been significant and required increased staff levels during 2021. Clearday is not able to
adequately predict the extent of additional actions that may be taken by such authorities.

Human Capital Policy
Clearday’s human capital policy is to promote a culture of mutual respect that is aligned and promotes the governance and management of
Clearday’s business strategies and objectives with substantially all of the senior executive functions performed by its employees with the
additional use of outsourced capabilities primarily when such consultants or professionals have significant and required expertise or when such
use is expected to be more efficient than full-time employees. Clearday believes that certain independent contractors will continue to be important
to innovate Clearday’s business, including Thinktiv, our consultant that has been retained to provide services, including market and competitive
research, develop Clearday’s technology enabled service platform, and our market strategy for its Clearday at Home and Clearday Club business
models. Clearday will also retain other outside counsel and other professionals from time to time as we determine appropriate.

Material Changes in Human Capital
Since January, 2020, consistent with Clearday’s human capital policy, Clearday has retained professionals to strengthen its financial, legal and
administrative capabilities, including professionals responsible for timely reporting as a public company under the Securities and Exchange Act of
1934, as amended.
During the fourth quarter of 2021 and the first quarter of 2022, Clearday has increased its human capital in its accounting and finance department to
reduce our reliance on outside independent contractors and financial consultants.
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Clearday has experienced an amount of executive turnover in its residential care business which Clearday believes is customary in the industry.
There has been turnover in our executive and financial reporting. Clearday believes that its turnover in our residential care business is driven
primarily by compensation available by other employers, including other residential care facilities, and the personal mental demands of providing
the highest quality of care with dedication to protecting the most vulnerable demographic, including those suffering from dementia and other
cognitive or physical limitations.

Diversity
Clearday is committed to expanding the diversity of its human capital. In our residential care business, the management team, including its
President, is more than 60% women and more than 15% are minority. Our 4 independent Board directors include one woman, one minority and one
elder American.



Clearday’s policies do not permit intolerant statements or actions, including those that are demeaning or prejudicial to persons of any nationality,
culture, ethnicity, race, sexual orientation, gender or gender identification, age, cognitive or physical limitation or other social class. Violations or
allegations of any violations may be directed to the Human Resources Executive, currently Clearday’s Chief Financial Officer, or Clearday’s
Chairman for appropriate investigation and resolution by appropriate action that may include termination for cause. Clearday’s policy is to enable
the continued development and advancement of its employees through education, including Clearday’s Technicians of Cognitive Care program and
reimbursement for continued professional education. In addition, the Company offers sales and marketing seminars, including the seminars and
coaching provided personally by Clearday’s CEO. Of our residential care business’ 5 Executive Director positions and its President, 3 (60%) of
these positions were filled by employee promotions.

Human Capital Evaluation
Clearday considers numerous factors in determining the compensation for, and the amount (number) of, its human capital that is required for the
proper administration and promotion of its business strategies and objectives, including Clearday’s ability to promote Clearday’s vision for its
services through the following set of key principles which we refer to as The Clearday Way:
Provide Clearday’s customers with safe, positive community based environments that increase their independence, social engagement, and overall
well-being.
Deliver personalized programming and therapies that prolong Clearday’s members’ ability to live at home, rather than transitioning to full-time
residential care.
Give Clearday’s members’ families the comfort of knowing their loved ones are enjoying their days with Clearday, whether at home, in a daily care
Club, or in one of Clearday’s living centers
Reduce economic anxiety for Clearday’s members and their families by offering innovative new care options at a fraction of the price of residential
care.
Create innovative work environments, empowering development programs, and a purpose-driven culture that attracts and retains the highest
quality caregiving staff.
Compensation includes wages, promotions, salary increases and bonus compensation and equity based compensation that is believed by the
Clearday Board to promote the human capital processes and goals that are summarized above, in addition to customary industry metrics.
Clearday evaluates its human capital using several qualitative metrics and with customary employee performance metrics, such as on-time
performance and achievement of applicable assigned tasks. Clearday’s senior management in the residential and non-residential care business,
such as Memory Care America and adult day care, also evaluate human capital based on an individual’s dignity and respect for the residents and
clients and their dedication to energize and improve a resident’s and client’s quality of life, and adding some fun and enjoyment in their day, as well
as their compliance with Clearday’s infectious control policies.

Certain Corporate Executive Officers
Clearday has a smaller number of Clearday executive officers that focus their time and attention to general administration and financial capital
matters, including Clearday’s Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Financial Officer, and its General Counsel and other executive
officers including our Executive Vice President-Director of Real Estate Operations, and the President of our residential care business (the “HQ
Executives”). Compensation for the HQ Executives is determined by the Clearday Board. In determining the compensation for each HQ Executive,
Clearday considers, among other things, such officer’s achievement of material business strategies and objectives, including their:

● Accomplishments during the year compared to annual objectives;
● Support to “line” management in operations and innovations and other contributions to Clearday’s human capital to achieve

Clearday’s business strategies and objectives;
● Contribution and improvement to Clearday’s human capital culture;
● Identification and mitigation of risks to Clearday, its businesses and people;
● Ability for future development and undertaking or managing additional tasks;
● Background, training, education and experience; and
● Compensation of similarly situated executives in the San Antonio, Texas executive employment market.

9

HQ Executive Compensation Philosophy and Process
Clearday’s compensation has been established under the policies of the Clearday Board and is designed to help Clearday achieve its business
strategies and objectives, which include increasing, on a long term basis, the value of Clearday by improving Clearday’s financial and operating
performance, improving Clearday’s competitive position within its industry, innovating and improving Clearday’s care and wellness services and
products and managing risks facing Clearday.
Individual performance is an important factor in determining each element of compensation. Clearday’s Board determines, and after this offering,
Clearday’s Compensation Committee will determine:

● The executive officers that are considered an HQ Executive;
● The cash annual and bonus compensation of Clearday’s HQ Executives;
● The amount and terms of equity incentive compensation of Clearday’s HQ Executives; and
● All other compensation and benefits of Clearday’s HQ Executives.

There is no formulaic approach to such determinations and such determinations are made by the Clearday Board (and will be made by the
Compensation Committee) in their discretion. In exercising such discretion, the Clearday Board (or Compensation Committee) may rely on the
benefit of reports and information provided by counsel, accountants and other professionals, including compensation consultants.
The compensation is intended to further align the interests of the HQ Executives with those of the Clearday’s stockholders. Equity compensation is
used to foster such alignment. Additionally, cash bonuses may be used when Clearday has achieved net cash flow that is not reinvested in the
businesses or used for distributions.
The primary factor considered by the Compensation Committee and the Board when determining discretionary compensation for the HQ Executive
is the historical cash and equity compensation paid to such individual and to the other HQ Executives with similar specific areas of expertise and
value to Clearday, and the likelihood that the Clearday could find a suitable replacement on a timely and cost effective basis.
In addition to the consideration of the various factors described in the preceding paragraphs, the Clearday Board considers (and Compensation
Committee will consider) available compensation data for similarly situated companies or that possess size or other characteristics that are similar to
Clearday.
Clearday Compensation philosophy and procedures are intended to limit incentives for management to take excessive risk for short term benefit.

Board Members
Clearday’s human capital policies include the policies regarding the nomination of members of the Clearday Board with identified particular
qualifications, attributes, skills and experience that are important to be represented on the Clearday Board as a whole and enable proper governance
and oversight aligned with stockholder interests. Some of the factors and related qualifications, attributes, skills and experience that Clearday
believes should be represented are:



Factor Qualifications, Attributes, Skills and Experience
Understanding and overseeing the various risks determining
appropriate policies and procedures to effectively manage those
risks and determining the effectiveness of such policies and
procedures.

●
●
●

Risk oversight/management expertise.
Service on other public company boards and committees.
Operating business experience.

Knowledge of the healthcare and longevity care and wellness
industries and related factors impacting those industries.

●
●
●

Understanding of, and work experience in, such industries.
Familiarity with service-based industries.
Experience in developing disruptive and innovative services and
products that leverage technology.

Ability to evaluate strategic direction in light of current industry
policy trends and expected regulatory changes.

● Experience at a strategic or policymaking level in a business, government,
non-profit or academic organization of high standing.

● Commitment to serve on the Clearday Board over a period of years in
order to develop knowledge about Clearday’s business.

● Understanding of healthcare policy, trends and regulations and their
impact on Clearday’s business and strategic plans.

● Understanding of government regulatory processes.
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Factor Qualifications, Attributes, Skills and Experience
Understanding of complex financial transactions. ●

●
●
●
●
●
●
●

High level of financial literacy.
High level of education and analytic capabilities.
Familiarity with healthcare regulation trends and activity.
Management/leadership experience.
Knowledge of Clearday’s historical business activities.
Familiarity with public capital markets.
Work experience.
Ability to work with counsel and financial professionals.

Ability to meet frequently and, at times, on short notice. ● Sufficient time and availability to devote to Board and committee matters.
● Ability to assess if sufficient data and information has been made

available for an informed and prudent decision.
Diversity that is able to assess and integrate a range of views. ● Diversity.
Independence from management. ● Independence under applicable standards, including SEC and applicable

exchange standards.
Facilities
We operate 4 residential care communities and one adult day care facility:

Facility * Location
Memory Care of Naples* Naples, Florida
Memory Care of Westover Hills San Antonio, Texas
Memory Care of Little Rock At Good Shepherd Little Rock, Arkansas
Memory Care of New Braunfels New Braunfels, Texas

* The Memory Care of Naples facility is owned, and the other residential care facilities are leased.
Our adult day care center is located in San Antonio, Texas in a leased facility.
We also own our headquarters building located at 8800 Village Drive, San Antonio, Texas. This building is a 3-story medical office building located
on 0.84 acres and has approximately 22,265 rentable square feet. We intend to use most of the ground floor for an adult day care center and a retail
location for products. Some of the office space is used for Clearday’s executive offices, its initial educational center that will further develop and
offer programs to train care givers and our production facilities for Clearday at Home.

Material Changes in our Business and the AIU Merger
We were incorporated in Delaware on May 11, 1987 shortly after the discovery of HTS materials. Our business, prior to our cost reduction plan
announced on January 28, 2020, focused on developing and commercializing high temperature superconductor (“HTS”) materials and related
technologies for the commercial marketplace. We also developed and had commercialized our Sapphire Cryocooler and its related patents and
intellectual property. This product and related intellectual property rights are used in our development of a cryogenic air quality system.
On January 28, 2020, we announced a cost reduction plan for the purpose of aligning our personnel needs and capital requirements as we explored
strategic alternatives previously announced. We maintained operations of our Sapphire Cryocooler cryogenics initiatives while ceasing additional
manufacturing of our HTS Conductus® wire. The cost reduction plan also included a 70% reduction of the then employee workforce. Subsequent
to the announcement about our cost reduction plan, we started the process of selling, in separate transactions, assets that we deemed non-
essential going forward. The aggregate sales prices of the post January 28th transactions was approximately $1,075,000, all sold to purchasers
having no affiliation with us. As a result of these sales, we exited HTS wire operations and pursued other strategic alternatives, including the AIU
Merger.
On September 9, 2021, we closed a merger (the “AIU Merger”) with Allied Integral United, Inc. (“AIU”). The AIU Merger was described in the AIU
Merger Registration Statement. This is the first Annual Report on Form 10-K by the Company that includes the businesses conducted by AIU prior
to the AIU Merger.
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On September 9, 2021:
● The AIU Merger was completed.
● In connection with, and prior to completion of, the AIU Merger, the Company (1) effected a 3.773585 -for-1 share reverse stock

split (the “Reverse Stock Split”) of its Common Stock resulting in a decrease of outstanding shares of common stock from
2,751,780 to approximately 729,222; and (2) changed its name to “Clearday, Inc.”

● A special distribution for the issuance and delivery of additional shares of its common stock (“True Up Shares”) to the holders of
its shares of Clearday Common Stock of record as of 5:00 pm Eastern Time on September 9, 2021 was declared, which provided for
the distribution of an aggregate amount of approximately 546,820 shares of such Common Stock (representing a dividend rate of
approximately 0.749868); such shares were distributed on or about September 20, 2021.

Under the terms of the AIU Merger:
● There was an increase in the number of shares of AIU common stock (2:1), 50% of the shares of AIU’s 6.75% Series A Cumulative



Convertible Preferred Stock were converted into AIU common stock and then the shares of AIU common stock were exchanged
for shares of Clearday, Inc. Common Stock at an exchange ratio of approximately 1.192 shares of Common Stock for each share of
AIU common stock;

● Each share of AIU’s 6.75% Series A Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock that was not converted into AIU common stock were
exchanged for an equal number of a new series of preferred stock issued by Clearday, par value $0.001 per share that are
designated Clearday 6.75% Series F Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series F Preferred”), which provide substantially
similar terms as the AIU Series A Preferred, except that such preferred stock will convert to that number of shares of the
Clearday’s Common Stock after giving effect to the exchange ratio used in the Merger or 2.384675 shares of Common Stock
issuable upon the exchange of 1 share of Series F Preferred;

● The Company assumed the obligations of the warrants issued by AIU so that such warrants now represent the right to be
exercised for shares of the Clearday’s Common Stock equal to approximately 3,781,509 shares;

● Clearday assumed the obligation to issue its shares of Common Stock with respect to the (1) 10.25% Series I Cumulative
Convertible Preferred Stock (“AIU Alt Care Preferred”) issued by AIU Alternative Care, Inc. (“AIU Alt Care”), a subsidiary of
AIU, and (2) units of limited partnership interest (“Clearday OZ LP Interests”) of Clearday Alternative Care OZ Fund LP
(“Clearday OZ Fund”), a subsidiary of AIU Alt Care, which as of the effective date of the merger was equal to an aggregate
amount of approximately $15,253,740 of investment and accrued dividends.

The merger was accounted for as a reverse asset acquisition in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of
America (“GAAP”). Under this method of accounting, AIU was deemed to be the accounting acquirer for financial reporting purposes. This
determination was primarily based on the facts that, immediately following the Merger: (i) AIU’s stockholders owned a substantial majority of the
voting rights in us as of the effective time of the AIU Merger, (ii) AIU designated a majority of the members of the initial board of directors of us as
of the effective time of the AIU Merger, and (iii) AIU’s senior management holds all key positions in the senior management of us as of the effective
time of the AIU Merger. As a result, as of the closing date of the AIU Merger, the net assets of the Company were recorded at their acquisition-date
relative fair values in the accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements of the Company and the reported operating results prior to
the AIU Merger are those of AIU. You may obtain additional information regarding the AIU Merger in our Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed on
November 24, 2021 and our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 10, 2021.
COVID-19
On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of COVID-19, which spread throughout the U.S. and the world, as a
pandemic and has had a significant impact on the global economy, resulting in rapidly changing market and economic conditions. National and
local governments around the world instituted certain measures, including travel bans, prohibitions on group events and gatherings, shutdowns of
certain non-essential businesses, curfews, shelter-in-place orders and recommendations to practice social distancing. The governmental response
includes additional protocols for the health and safety of residents and staff in the Company’s facilities. The outbreak and associated restrictions
on travel that have been implemented have had a material adverse impact on the Company’s business and cash flow from operations, similar to
many businesses. The Company has begun, and intends to continue, to resume normal operations as soon as practicable. However, during 2021,
the Delta and Omicron variants of the COVID-19 become the predominant COVID-19 strains in the United States and put a renewed focus on
prevention and caused many governments and other authorities to re-institute preventive measures to mitigate the risk of hyperlocal outbreaks.
The total impact of COVID-19 is unknown. As a result, management has concluded that there was a long-lived asset impairment triggering event
during 2020 and 2021, which required management to perform an impairment evaluation. See Note 5 - Discontinued Operations for additional
discussion and results.

Other Assets and Investments
We have sold certain assets that are not related to our core businesses. Such sales include the sale of hospitality assets and other real property
assets, as described in this Report under Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
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Our Proprietary Technology
In furtherance of our business that we conducted prior to our material changes in our business discussed above, we had developed an extensive
patent portfolio as well as critical trade secrets, unpatented technology and proprietary knowledge. As discussed above, we have sold most of the
patents related to our HTS wires business subsequent to January 28, 2020. We retained patents related to our Sapphire Cryocooler technology: In
July 2017, EU patent 2188495 (08797906.8) was granted, this patent follows the U.S. Patent granted by U.S. 8,607,560. This patent is focused on
METHOD FOR CENTERING RECIPROCATING BODIES AND STRUCTURES MANUFACTURED THEREWITH, related to our Sapphire
Cryocooler. We have used the STI Sapphire Cryocooler and related technologies as the basis for the development of our cryogenic air quality
system.
We enter into confidentiality and non-disclosure agreements with our employees, suppliers and consultants to the extent that we believe
appropriate to protect our proprietary information. Our technologies that enable our digital service Clearday at Home is not subject to patent
protection. We have registered the mark Clearday with the United States Patent office for use in our businesses.

Government Contracts
We had revenues from Government Contracts prior to the AIU Merger. We do not have any material government contracts, although we may seek
government contracts for our cyro-pure air system.
Manufacturing
We do not have any manufacturing processes as our manufacturing of Conductus wire prior to the AIU Merger ceased in the first quarter of 2020.
We produce content for our Clearday at Home digital service primarily from our production facilities located at 8800 Village Drive, Suite 106, San
Antonio, TX 78217.
Backlog
Our commercial backlog consisted of accepted product purchase orders with scheduled delivery dates during the next twelve months. We had no
commercial backlog at December 31, 2021 or December 31, 2020.

Research and Development
Our 2020 and 2021 research and development activities were focused entirely on developing our innovative care products, including the content
and technologies for our Clearday at Home digital service.
Our aggregate research and development expenses during 2020 were approximately $1,919,180, of which approximately $178,000 was incurred by
STI prior to the AIU Merger and approximately $1,741,180 was incurred by AIU during 2020. We have not spent any amounts in research and
development during 2021.

Environmental Matters
Under various federal, state, and local environmental laws, a current or previous owner or operator of real property, such as us, may be held liable in
certain circumstances for the costs of investigation, removal, or remediation of certain hazardous or toxic substances, including, among others,



petroleum and materials containing asbestos, that could be located on, in, at, or under a property, regardless of how such materials came to be
located there. Additionally, such an owner or operator of real property may incur costs relating to the release of hazardous or toxic substances,
including government fines and payments for personal injuries or damage to adjacent property. The cost of any required investigation, remediation,
removal, mitigation, compliance, fines, or personal or property damages and our liability therefore could exceed the property’s value and/or our
assets’ value. The presence of such substances, or the failure to properly dispose of or remediate the damage caused by such substances, may
adversely affect our ability to sell such property, to attract additional residents, retain existing residents, to borrow using such property as
collateral, or to develop or redevelop such property. Such laws impose liability for investigation, remediation, removal, and mitigation costs on
persons who disposed of or arranged for the disposal of hazardous substances at third-party sites. Such laws and regulations often impose liability
without regard to whether the owner or operator knew of, or was responsible for, the presence, release, or disposal of such substances as well as
without regard to whether such release or disposal was in compliance with law at the time it occurred. Moreover, the imposition of such liability
upon us could be joint and several, which means we could be required to pay for the cost of cleaning up contamination caused by others who have
become insolvent or otherwise judgment proof. We do not believe that we have incurred such liabilities that would have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition, results of operations, and cash flow.
Our operations are subject to regulation under various federal, state, and local environmental laws, including those relating to: the handling,
storage, transportation, treatment, and disposal of medical waste products generated at our communities; identification and warning of the
presence of asbestos-containing materials in buildings, as well as removal of such materials; the presence of other substances in the indoor
environment; and protection of the environment and natural resources in connection with development or construction of our properties.
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Some of our communities generate infectious or other hazardous medical waste due to the illness or physical condition of the residents, including,
for example, blood-contaminated bandages, swabs and other medical waste products, and incontinence products of those residents diagnosed with
an infectious disease. The management of infectious medical waste, including its handling, storage, transportation, treatment, and disposal, is
subject to regulation under various federal, state, and local environmental laws. These environmental laws set forth the management requirements
for such waste, as well as related permit, record-keeping, notice, and reporting obligations. Our communities’ engagement of waste management
companies for the proper disposal of all infectious medical waste does not immunize us from alleged violations of such medical waste laws for
operations for which we are responsible even if carried out by such waste management companies, nor does it immunize us from third-party claims
for the cost to cleanup disposal sites at which such wastes have been disposed. Any finding that we are not in compliance with environmental laws
could adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations, and cash flow.
Federal regulations require building owners and those exercising control over a building’s management to identify and warn, via signs and labels,
their employees and certain other employers operating in the building of potential hazards posed by workplace exposure to installed asbestos-
containing materials and potential asbestos-containing materials in their buildings. The regulations also set forth employee training, record-keeping
requirements, and sampling protocols pertaining to asbestos-containing materials and potential asbestos-containing materials. Significant fines can
be assessed for violation of these regulations. Building owners and those exercising control over a building’s management may be subject to an
increased risk of personal injury lawsuits by workers and others exposed to asbestos-containing materials and potential asbestos-containing
materials. The regulations may affect the value of a building containing asbestos-containing materials and potential asbestos-containing materials
in which we have invested. Federal, state, and local laws and regulations also govern the removal, encapsulation, disturbance, handling, and/or
disposal of asbestos-containing materials and potential asbestos-containing materials when such materials are in poor condition or in the event of
construction, remodeling, renovation, or demolition of a building. Such laws may impose liability for improper handling or a release to the
environment of asbestos-containing materials and potential asbestos-containing materials and may provide for fines to, and for third parties to seek
recovery from, owners or operators of real properties for personal injury or improper work exposure associated with asbestos-containing materials
and potential asbestos-containing materials.
The presence of mold, lead-based paint, contaminants in drinking water, radon, and/or other substances at any of the communities we own or may
acquire may lead to the incurrence of costs for remediation, mitigation, or the implementation of an operations and maintenance plan. Furthermore,
the presence of mold, lead-based paint, contaminants in drinking water, radon, and/or other substances at any of the communities we own or may
acquire may present a risk that third parties will seek recovery from the owners, operators, or tenants of such properties for personal injury or
property damage. In some circumstances, areas affected by mold may be unusable for periods of time for repairs, and even after successful
remediation, the known prior presence of extensive mold could adversely affect the ability of a community to retain or attract residents and could
adversely affect a community’s market value.
We believe that we are in material compliance with applicable environmental laws. We are unable to predict the future course of federal, state, and
local environmental regulation and legislation. Changes in the environmental regulatory framework (including legislative or regulatory efforts
designed to address climate change) could have a material adverse effect on our business. Because environmental laws vary from state to state,
expansion of our operations to states where we do not currently operate may subject us to additional restrictions on the manner in which we
operate our communities. We did not make any material capital expenditures in connection with environmental, health, and safety laws, ordinances
and regulations in 2021 or 2020.

Corporate Information
Our principal executive offices are located at 8800 Village Drive, San Antonio, TX 78217 and our telephone number is (210) 451-0839. We were
incorporated in Delaware on May 11, 1987. Additional information about us is available on our website at www.myclearday.com. The information on
our web site is not incorporated herein by reference.
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
The following section includes some of the material factors that may adversely affect our business and operations. This is not an exhaustive list,
and additional factors could adversely affect our business and financial performance. Moreover, we operate in a very competitive and rapidly
changing environment. New risk factors emerge from time to time and it is not possible for us to predict all such risk factors, nor can we assess the
impact of all such risk factors on our business or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results to differ
materially from those contained in any forward-looking statements. This discussion of risk factors includes many forward-looking statements. For
cautions about relying on such forward looking statements, please refer to the section entitled “Forward Looking Statements” at the beginning of
this Report immediately prior to Item 1.
Risks Related to Our Business and Industry
We have a history of losses and have received a going concern opinion from our auditors.
We have experienced significant net losses and negative cash flows from operations. In 2021, we incurred a net loss of approximately $19.5 million
and had negative cash flows from operations of approximately $2.6 million. In 2020, we incurred a net loss of $13.8 million and had negative cash
flows from operations of $9.8 million. Our independent registered public accounting firm has included in its audit reports an explanatory paragraph
expressing substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern. We do not have sufficient cash resources from the net cash flows of
operations from our current businesses to sustain our operations for the next twelve months and will rely on the continued sale of non-core assets,
tax credits and related amounts, and raising capital through the sale of our securities.
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Our ability to protect our patents, service marks or other proprietary rights is uncertain, exposing us to possible losses of competitive
advantage.
Our efforts to protect our proprietary rights may not succeed in preventing infringement by others or ensure that these rights will provide us with a
competitive advantage. Pending patent applications by us or any of our joint venturers may not result in issued patents and the validity of issued
patents may be subject to challenge. Third parties may also be able to design around the patented aspects of the products. Additionally, certain of
the issued patents and patent applications are owned jointly with third parties. Because any owner or co-owner of a patent can license its rights
under jointly-owned patents or applications, inventions made by us jointly with others are not subject to our exclusive control. Any of these
possible events could result in losses of competitive advantage.

Intellectual property infringement claims against us could materially harm results of operations.
Our products and products that we intend to provide such as robotic technologies, incorporate a number of technologies, including the
technologies related to the Sapphire Cryocooler and the cryogenic air quality system. Our patent positions and that of our joint venturers are
uncertain and there is significant risk that others, including our competitors or potential competitors, have obtained or will obtain patents relating to
our products or technologies or products or technologies planned to be introduced by us.
We believe that patents may be or have been issued, or applications may be pending, claiming various compositions of matter used in our products
and products that we intend to provide. We or our third party joint venturers may need to secure one or more licenses of these patents. There can
be no assurances that such licenses could be obtained on commercially reasonable terms, or at all. We or our third party joint venturers may be
required to expend significant resources to develop alternatives that would not infringe such patents or to obtain licenses to the related
technology. We or our third party joint venturers may not be able to successfully design around these patents or obtain licenses to them and may
have to defend ourselves at substantial cost against allegations of infringement of third party patents or other rights to intellectual property. In
those circumstances, we could face significant liabilities and also be forced to cease the use of key technology.

Other parties may have the right to utilize technology important to our business.
We and our third party joint venturers utilize certain intellectual property rights under non-exclusive licenses or have granted to others the right to
utilize certain intellectual property rights licensed from a third party. Because we and our third party joint venturers may not have the exclusive
rights to utilize such intellectual property, other parties may be able to compete with us, which may harm our business.
The recent unprecedented events related to the COVID-19 pandemic and the Russo-Ukrainian War have caused significant market disruptions
and may have longer-term effects that Clearday cannot predict.
The recent unprecedented events related to the COVID-19 pandemic and the Russo-Ukrainian War as well as global security issues generally have
caused significant market disruptions and may have longer-term effects that Clearday cannot predict. The equity and other market professionals
continue to assess the consequences of such events and the extent and effectiveness of government responses, the responses of the Federal
Reserve Bank and other governmental and non-governmental organizations cannot be predicted.
The residents of Clearday’s residential care communities and the clients of Clearday at Home and Clearday adult day care programs are primarily
older individuals with pre-existing conditions, including conditions that significantly compromise their immunity. The additional procedures
undertaken by our residential care and the adult day care businesses will likely result in reduced operating cash flow and profit margins. Although
Clearday has procedures that address infectious diseases and contamination in a community environment, Clearday is not able to provide
assurance that the communities will not be significant affected, including widespread contagion that could result in a suspension or closing of a
facility. Additionally, state or federal regulatory authorities may require, and industry groups may provide, additional measures that could limit the
number of individuals that may be treated at a facility, require additional staff or employees or other measures that may require significant
investment or operating cost. The additional costs have primarily resulted from regulatory requirements to increase staff and provide quarantine
areas. Additionally, during the initial stage of the COVID-19 pandemic, admissions to Clearday’s residential care facilities were suspended and adult
day care centers were closed.
During such occasions, Clearday may experience a decline in clients. Further, depending on the severity of any occurrence, Clearday may be
required to incur costs to identify, contain and remedy the impacts of those occurrences at our residential care communities or adult day care
facilities. As a result, these occurrences could significantly adversely affect the results of operations.
The adult day care business has greater risks with respect to COVID-19 and other pandemics due to, among other reasons, that appropriate
regulatory agencies may close such businesses, limit the capacity of such businesses, or require additional procedures or capital expenditures
designed to protect customers that are costly. During the COVID-19 pandemic, many states closed adult day care centers for a period of time.
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The Russo-Ukrainian War has caused, or has contributed to, significant inflation, increased energy costs and worsened the supply chain
disruption in the U.S., each of which has contributed to increased costs for our operations which would worsen our operating results. We are not
able to determine the extent or the expected period for such disruptions or if any other and similar disruptions would occur, or may have greater
adverse effect on our business or the U.S. economy in general.
The additional procedures and precautions undertaken by adult day care businesses in response to COVID-19 will likely result in reduced
operating cash flow and profit margins.
Although Clearday has procedures that address infectious diseases and contamination in a community environment, Clearday is not able to
provide assurance that the communities will not be significantly affected, including widespread contagion that could result in suspending or
closing a facility. Depending on the severity of any occurrence, Clearday may be required to incur costs to identify, contain and remedy the impacts
of those occurrences at residential care communities and our adult day care facilities.
Additionally, state or federal regulatory authorities may require, industry groups may provide or Clearday may otherwise determine that it would be
prudent, to implement certain additional measures and/or quarantine procedures that may require significant investment and/or operating costs,
such measures may include limiting the number of individuals that may be treated at a facility while requiring additional staff to manage treatment
during the COVID-19 pandemic. During this time, Clearday may also experience a decline in occupancy due to residents terminating their
agreements due to the uncertainty of COVID-19 and its effects on adult day care businesses and residential care facilities. Such investments and
increased costs may adversely affect Clearday’s operations. The extent and duration of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on Clearday’s overall
business is uncertain, and our ability to raise capital could be impaired.
Any other severe cold and flu season, epidemics or any other widespread illnesses could adversely affect the occupancy of Clearday’s
residential care communities and facilities.
The revenues of Clearday will be dependent in large part on the occupancy levels at our residential care communities and the members of the
Clearday Clubs and any other adult day care facility or other non-acute care and wellness center that will be owned or operated by Clearday. Even if
the disruption to the markets and facilities are not as pronounced as during the COVID-19 pandemic, there could be significant reduction in
Clearday’s revenues and there could be government or other regulatory intervention that materially increase costs, which would likely materially
reduce the operating results of Clearday.



Clearday’s non-acute care and wellness business has significant concentration in industry and geographic areas which exposes Clearday to
changes in market conditions in this industry and in those areas.
Clearday’s existing 4 residential care facilities are located in the Little Rock Arkansas area (1), Naples, Florida (1), and the San Antonio / Austin area
of Texas (2) and we have 1 adult day care center in San Antonio, Texas. Clearday expects to grow our adult day care business primarily in specified
markets in Texas. The Clearday at Home or digital service offerings of Clearday are national in scope, but are not, as of the date of this Report,
significant compared to the residential care facility revenues. Accordingly, Clearday will continue to have a high concentration in select geographic
markets. Additionally, all of Clearday’s businesses, other than related to our remaining non-core assets, are engaged or will be engaged in the non-
acute care businesses. As a result of this industry and geographic concentrations, the conditions affecting older Americans and the of local
economies and real estate markets, changes in governmental rules and regulations, particularly with respect to senior citizens, acts of nature and
other factors that may result in a decrease in demand for Clearday’s services in these areas could have an adverse effect on Clearday’s revenues,
results of operations and cash flow. In addition, Clearday will be particularly susceptible to revenue loss, cost increases or damage caused by
severe weather conditions or natural disasters such as hurricanes, wildfires, earthquakes or tornadoes in those areas.
Circumstances that adversely affect the ability of older adults or their families to pay Clearday for our adult day care services could cause our
revenues and results of operations to decline.
Clearday expects that payment for our adult day care services will be (1) private pay and not rely on government benefits, such as Medicare and
Medicaid, which are generally not available for such services, and (2) benefits or payments available to veterans through the United States
Department of Veterans Affairs. Clearday has currently priced the basic service fee for our adult day care centers at a monthly amount that is
generally expected to be less than the monthly payment benefits to retirees from the Social Security Administration and Clearday expects that older
adults that live with family members will have sufficient funds to pay such service fees and their other household expenses. There can be no
assurance that the expected service fee by Clearday will be at an amount that can be afforded by Clearday’s target market for our Clearday Clubs.
Economic downturns, higher levels of unemployment among family members, lower levels of consumer confidence, stock market volatility,
increased inflation and/or changes in demographics, including the unprecedented effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, could adversely affect the
ability of older adults to afford Clearday’s expected adult day care service fees and could result in decreased fees and revenues resulting in a
decline of Clearday’s estimated operating results as many of the operating costs for an adult day care center will not vary in relation to a decrease in
club members or revenues.
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Clearday may not be able to operate our business or implement the business strategies.
Clearday intends to develop and expand new businesses including in the areas of home care services and products and provide services or
otherwise have revenue from related services which may include retail sales of products including products that incorporate the technology of our
Sapphire Cryocooler, robotics and provide other care services. Clearday created Clearday Labs to evaluate such opportunities and other strategies
or business opportunities that Clearday believes would be complimentary to our existing businesses, specifically, our residential care facilities and
the digital service offering, and where Clearday may benefit from certain synergies in management and leverage of assets. There can be no
assurance, however, that Clearday will be able to implement our business strategy in a manner that realizes any of our intended benefits, including
that Clearday will be able to acquire, internally develop or enter into strategic alliances for intended or prospective business lines.

Clearday’s planned business and growth strategy may not yield anticipated returns, may result in disruptions to the business of, may strain
management resources and/or may be dilutive to Clearday’s stockholders.

Clearday’s business and growth strategies involve the development (by organic growth or, to a lesser extent, through acquisitions and joint
ventures) of businesses that are focused on tech-enabled non-acute care and wellness. In evaluating Clearday’s business opportunities, Clearday
will make certain assumptions regarding the expected future performance and prospects. However, newly acquired businesses or investments in
businesses, or strategic alliances, may fail to perform as expected, and Clearday may not be able to manage those businesses in a manner that meets
our expectations. In particular, Clearday’s acquisition activities may be subject to the following risks:

● Clearday businesses that are acquired or conducted through joint ventures do not realize the synergies that it expects and require
substantially greater investment than it anticipated;

● Clearday may acquire or invest in businesses that realize net cash losses initially and/or for a period of time that is longer than
Clearday anticipated;

● If Clearday finances acquisitions or strategic alliances by incurring debt, Clearday’s cash flow may be insufficient to meet the required
principal and interest payments;

● Clearday may be unable to quickly and efficiently integrate new acquisitions or strategic alliances, and as a result Clearday’s results of
operations and financial condition could be adversely affected;

● Operating expenses of an acquired business or a strategic alliance may exceed budgeted amounts;
● Management may be diverted from operations; and
● Clearday may be required to have management teams that are not proven or that do not, for any number of reasons, perform as

expected.
If Clearday cannot operate our businesses or strategic alliances to meet our financial expectations, Clearday’s financial condition, results of
operations, cash flow and per share trading price our Common Stock could be adversely affected.

Clearday may use its securities and/or the securities our subsidiaries as consideration in connection with our acquisition strategy which
could result in significant dilution to the relative ownership interest of holders of our capital stock prior to such acquisitions.

In addition, it is likely that Clearday will use its or a subsidiary’s securities as consideration, in part or whole, for the purchase of acquired
businesses as part of our asset and business acquisition strategy. Such securities may carry rights or preferences different from or superior to
those of Clearday’s common stock. Moreover, if such securities include Clearday’s common stock or securities senior to or pari passu to or
convertible or exchangeable into shares of Clearday’s common stock, the relative ownership interest of the holders of the Clearday’s capital stock
would be subject to dilution.

Clearday’s strategy includes businesses that are in development or early stages and such strategies and businesses include additional venture
stage risks and there is no assurance that Clearday may be able to develop our businesses organically or through acquisitions.

A fundamental strategy of Clearday is the continued development of our services, including Clearday at Home, Clearday Clubs, robotic
applications as well as related businesses, including other products and services we expect to develop in our Clearday Labs. Clearday at Home
does not have any material revenues as of the date of this Report. Clearday Clubs has opened its initial location by the acquisition of an adult day
care center in San Antonio, Texas. Clearday’s ability to successfully execute future development in accordance with our business plan, or at all, will
be impacted by a number of factors, including the ability to sell our remaining non-core assets, the availability of additional financing, including
additional equity financing, on terms acceptable to Clearday, the availability of government programs and reimbursements, market trends, the ability
to identify and execute business opportunities, including acquisitions that meet the parameters of the Clearday business plan, and increased
competition for sites for the expansion opportunities or acquisitions. The development and acquisitions of future businesses may result in



unforeseen operating difficulties and may require additional financial resources and attention from management. Failure to identify suitable
development or acquisition businesses, effectively execute the Clearday business strategy or operating difficulties of businesses that Clearday may
acquire in the future could have an adverse effect on Clearday’s financial condition, results of operations, cash flows and liquidity.
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Clearday will require additional capital and there is no assurance that any debt or equity financing will be available on acceptable terms, if at
all.
To the extent that Clearday develops its business through financing, including additional equity financing, there cannot be assurance that
financing will be available on acceptable terms, if at all, or that Clearday may be able to satisfy the conditions precedent required to secure
borrowings or utilize credit facilities, which could reduce the number, or alter the type, of investments that Clearday would make otherwise and the
ability for it to expand its businesses. Any such limitation on such financing or sales of our remaining non-core assets may reduce income. To the
extent that financing proves to be unavailable when needed, Clearday may also be compelled to modify our business strategy. Any failure to obtain
financing or realize the sale of our remaining non-core assets or other assets may have a material adverse effect on the continued development or
growth of Clearday’s businesses. We do not have any binding agreement with an investment banker to provide additional capital. There is no
assurance that the public market conditions, the market acceptance of Clearday, the price and volume of our common stock and other factors, will
enable any such offering will be consummated on terms acceptable to Clearday or that AGP or any other investment bank will then decide that it
would then manage or participate in any such offering.
If Clearday fails to identify and quickly respond to changes and trends in non-acute care and wellness preferences, our business, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects will be adversely impacted.
Clearday expects to provide services to the non-acute care and wellness industry and expects the products and services to be subject to dynamic
changes. The needs and preferences of older adults have generally changed over the past several years, including preferences to reside in their
homes longer or permanently, as well as changes in services and offerings, including delivery of home healthcare services, utilization of outpatient
rehabilitation services and services that address their increasing desire to maintain active lifestyles. If Clearday fails to identify such changes and
quickly and successfully respond to such changes to deliver accepted products and services, then competitors will be able to successfully
penetrate the markets that Clearday will operate and Clearday will not be able to successfully grow or maintain our businesses, which would
adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.
Our debt leverage and financing arrangements that we may enter into may, under certain circumstances, contain restrictions and limitations
that could impact our ability to operate our business.
Clearday has incurred its long term and other debt, primarily, in connection with the financing of (1) long term assets that are now held for sale, and
(2) the financing of the residential care facility in Naples, Florida and its operations and (3) other loans that have funded our operations. The
indebtedness of Clearday may have the effect, among other things, of reducing the flexibility of Clearday to respond to changing business and
economic conditions, requiring us to use increased amounts of cash flow to service indebtedness and increasing our borrowing costs.
Our remaining non-core assets that are held for disposition are treated differently under GAAP.
A material amount of the assets on the Clearday balance sheet as of December 31, 2021, are held for disposition. These assets are treated differently
under GAAP than the assets that are used in Clearday’s operating non-acute care and wellness business. These differences are described in greater
detail in the footnotes to the financial statements that are included in this Report and the, including that these assets are not subject to depreciation
and such assets have not been subject to depreciation expense with respect to these assets from and after December 31, 2018.

The remaining non-core assets may not have the net realizable value that is estimated.
Clearday intends to finance, in part, our development and expansion of our tech-enabled non-acute care businesses by the sale of our remaining
non-core assets. A significant amount of our non-core assets of Clearday have been sold and the net proceeds have been used in Clearday’s
operations and business development. Clearday is not expected to make additional investments in any of these remaining assets to be able to
reposition the asset to achieve their highest or best use or otherwise achieve a better value. Further, certain of our remaining non-core assets may
require additional investment to maintain, such as replacement or repairs, and deferring maintenance and other related costs could decrease the net
realizable value of our remaining non-core assets. There can be no assurance that the value of our remaining non-core assets will be able to be sold
for the net realizable value that is estimated or the amount that such assets are on the financial statements of Clearday.
Operators of senior care facilities must comply with the rules and regulations of governmental reimbursement programs and certification
requirements, fraud and abuse regulations and are subject to new legislative developments.
Our care businesses are highly regulated by federal, state and local licensing requirements, facility inspections, reimbursement policies, regulations
concerning capital and other expenditures, certification requirements and other laws, regulations and rules. Any failure to comply with such laws,
requirements and regulations could affect Clearday’s ability to operate the facilities that Clearday owns or operates. Healthcare operators are
subject to federal and state laws and regulations that govern financial and other arrangements between healthcare providers. These laws prohibit
certain direct and indirect payments or fee-splitting arrangements between healthcare providers that are designed to induce or encourage the
referral of patients to, or the recommendation of, a particular provider for medical products and services. They also require compliance with a
variety of safety, health, staffing and other requirements relating to the design and conditions of the licensed facility and quality of care provided.
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These regulations may also enable the regulatory agency to place liens on properties. Possible sanctions for violation of these laws and regulations
include loss of licensure or certification, the imposition of civil monetary and criminal penalties, and potential exclusion from the Medicare and
Medicaid programs. Failure of Clearday to comply with these rules or regulations could have an adverse effect on our financial condition or results
of operations.
In addition, this area of the law currently is subject to intense scrutiny. Additional laws and regulations may be enacted or adopted that could
require changes in the design of the properties and its joint venture’s operations and thus increase the costs of these operations.

Private third-party payers continue to try to reduce healthcare costs.
Private third-party payers such as insurance companies continue their efforts to control healthcare costs through direct contracts with healthcare
providers, increased utilization review practices and greater enrollment in managed care programs and preferred provider organizations. These third-
party payers increasingly demand discounted fee structures and the assumption by healthcare providers of all or a portion of the financial risk.
These efforts of third-party payers to limit the amount of payments that Clearday or others may receive for healthcare services could adversely
affect Clearday and would adversely affect Clearday even if such insurance policies do not cover residential or non-residential care facilities that
Clearday will operate as the total household cash flow would be reduced and there would be less funds available for Clearday’s services. At the
same time, as a result of competitive pressures, Clearday’s ability to maintain operating margins through price increases to private pay options may
be limited.
Healthcare policy changes, including proposals to reform the U.S. healthcare system, may harm the Clearday’s future business.
Healthcare costs have risen significantly over the past decade. There have been and continue to be proposals by legislators, regulators and third-
party payors to keep these costs down. Clearday is unable to assess with certainty the extent of governmental requirements and regulations that



will apply to Clearday’s care and wellness businesses. See “Business - Government Regulation - Residential Care and Adult Day Care Businesses.”
The regulations that affect our operations are subject to changes. In addition, these regulations and other ongoing initiatives in the United States
have increased and will continue to increase pressure on pricing and operations of residential and non-residential care facilities. The announcement
or adoption of any government initiatives could have an adverse effect on potential revenues from any product that Clearday may successfully
develop. Moreover, additional legislative or regulatory changes remain possible and appear likely. Various healthcare reform proposals have also
emerged at the state level. Clearday cannot predict what healthcare initiatives, if any, will be implemented at the federal or state level, or the effect
any future legislation or regulation will have on Clearday. However, an expansion in government’s role in the U.S. healthcare industry may lower the
revenues for future products and adversely affect Clearday’s future business, possibly materially.

Clearday is unable to determine the effect of the amount of wage increases that are expected with labor shortages and any regulatory
changes effected by the administration of President Biden, including regulations regarding minimum wages and benefits.

The care industry, and businesses in general, have experienced, and may continue to experience, significant labor shortages, particularly for care
givers. Clearday will continue to compete with other residential care community and day care operators, among others, to attract and retain qualified
personnel responsible for the day to day operations of Clearday’s current and planned care and wellness businesses. The market for qualified staff,
including professional staff such as nurses, therapists and other healthcare professionals, is highly competitive, and periodic or geographic area
shortages of such healthcare professionals may require us to increase the wages and benefits that we offer to our employees in order to attract and
retain such personnel or to utilize temporary personnel at an increased cost. Additionally, any shortages of staff may require us to retain per diem
employees and incur overtime, each of which would increase our wage and benefit expenses. In addition, employee benefit costs, including health
insurance and workers’ compensation insurance costs, have materially increased in recent years and Clearday cannot predict the future impact of
the Healthcare Reform Act, or any other future healthcare legislation, on the cost of employee health insurance. Increasing employee health
insurance and workers’ compensation insurance costs may materially and adversely affect our earnings. From time to time labor unions may attempt
to organize Clearday’s employees. If Clearday’s employees were to unionize, it could result in business interruptions, work stoppages, the
degradation of service levels due to work rules, or increased operating expenses that may adversely affect our results of operations. One of the
consequences of the COVID-19 pandemic is a significant shortage of employees for many industries, including our residential care industry.
Additionally, many states have increased the minimum hourly wage for employees, including Florida and Arkansas. The labor shortage has
increased wage pressure and is likely to increase our wage and benefit expense.
Clearday cannot be sure that labor costs will not increase or that any increases will be recovered by corresponding increases in the rates that
Clearday will charge to our clients or otherwise. Any significant failure by us to control labor costs or to pass any increases on to clients through
rate increases could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Further, increased costs charged
to Clearday’s clients may reduce Clearday’s occupancy and growth and related revenues.
Additionally, healthcare and elder care are important political issues. President Biden has used, and may continue to use, executive orders to
achieve policy goals and objectives. In addition, such policy goals and objectives may be realized through legislation that is sponsored or
otherwise supported by President Biden’s administration. Clearday is unable to assess the consequences to improvements to the healthcare
systems and that may be realized by such actions, including any effect of increased costs or taxes.
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The planned adult daycare business may require Clearday to make significant capital expenditures to maintain and improve care centers.
Clearday’s planned adult day care and clinics and related facilities may require from time to time significant expenditures to address required
ongoing maintenance or to make them more attractive to Clearday’s clients. Physical characteristics of facilities are mandated by various
government authorities; changes in these regulations may require Clearday to make significant expenditures. Supply chain issues and building
material shortages have increased, and may continue to increase, construction costs, including the costs for expected leasehold improvements. In
addition, Clearday may often be required to make significant capital expenditures when Clearday acquires, leases or manages new facilities.
Clearday’s available financial resources may be insufficient to fund these expenditures. Clearday may be unable to pay increased rent at any facility
without experiencing losses.
Because the merger resulted in an ownership change under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code Clearday, Clearday’s pre-merger NOL
carryforwards and certain other tax attributes are subject to limitations.
We underwent an “ownership change” within the meaning of Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code (“Section 382”), the corporation’s NOL
carryforwards and certain other tax attributes arising before the ownership change are subject to limitations on use after the ownership change. In
general, an ownership change occurs if there is a cumulative change in the corporation’s equity ownership by certain stockholders that exceeds
fifty percentage points over a rolling three-year period. Similar rules may apply under state tax laws. Our NOL carryforwards and certain other tax
attributes will be subject to limitations (or disallowance) on their use. The Section 382 limitation will cause a significant portion of Clearday’s pre-
AIU Merger net operating loss carryforwards to never be utilized. In addition, if Clearday is determined to have discontinued its historic pre-merger
business following the merger, subject to certain exceptions, the Section 382 limitation could eliminate all possibility of utilizing Clearday’s pre-
merger NOL carryforwards. Additional ownership changes in the future could result in additional limitations on Clearday’s NOL carryforwards.
Consequently, even if we achieve profitability, we may not be able to utilize a material portion of the NOL carryforwards and other tax attributes,
which could have a material adverse effect on our cash flow and results of operations.
Clearday has a limited history of operations, and our Clearday at Home and Clearday Care adult day care and robotic businesses are each an
emerging business that will expose us to the risks and uncertainties associated with operating and growing an emerging business within an
emerging industry.
Each of the innovative care solutions and the adult day care and robotic businesses to be conducted by us is significant to our growth
opportunities and plans. These businesses include the virtual day care business and the adult day care services through physical locations and the
sale of robots. Clearday does not have any material operational history in such businesses by which potential investors can evaluate our past
performance and likelihood of success. As of the date of this Report, we have only one adult day care business do not have any centers that use
our proprietary Clearday Clubs format or any revenue from our robotic business. The financial position and results of operations of Clearday,
including our most recent financial statements included in this Report, are not indicative of the tech-enabled non-acute care businesses that we
intend to pursue. Such Clearday businesses do not have any earnings history for investors to estimate our future level of sales or profitability or
whether Clearday will in fact have sales or profitability. As a result of such industry and geographic focus, the conditions affecting older Americans
as well as the local economies and real estate markets in such geographic areas and other factors that may result in a decrease in demand for our
services in these areas could have an adverse effect on Clearday’s revenues, results of operations and cash flow. A core component of our strategy
is the development and expansion of our tech-enabled non-acute care businesses. Our ability to successfully execute future development in
accordance with our business plan, or at all, will be impacted by a number of factors, including the ability to sell our remaining non-core assets, the
availability of financing on terms acceptable to us, market trends, the ability to identify and execute business opportunities (including acquisitions
that meet the parameters of the Clearday business plan), and increased competition for sites for the expansion opportunities or acquisitions. Any
such limitation on any such financing or sale of the remaining non-core assets may reduce income.



If Clearday fails to identify such changes and quickly and successfully respond to such changes to deliver accepted products and services, then
competitors will be able to successfully penetrate the markets in which Clearday operates which may limit Clearday’s ability to successfully grow
and/or maintain our businesses, which would adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.
Clearday incurred substantial expenses related to the completion of the AIU Merger.
Clearday incurred substantial expenses in connection with the completion of the September 9, 2021 AIU Merger. The substantial majority of these
costs were non-recurring expenses, including a substantial fee payable to AGP and legal and other professional fees and expenses and insurance
expenses, and the fees related to the registration and issuance of the common stock issued in connection with such AIU Merger. Clearday does not
have excess cash flows from its existing businesses to fund the payment of such additional expenses and will require revenues from its innovative
businesses or the ability to raise capital through the sale of securities. There can be no assurance that we are able to raise additional funds through
the sale of its securities on terms that are acceptable or at all.
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Risks Related to Our Capital Structure
Our stock price is volatile.
The market price of our common stock has been, and is expected to be, subject to significant volatility. The value of our common stock may decline
regardless of our operating performance or prospects. Factors affecting our market price include:

● liquidity and volume in the trading of our common stock;
● market perception as to our ability to develop and launch our innovative care products and services;
● our perceived prospects and liquidity, including our ability to sell non-core assets;
● our perceived ability to sell products and services directly to the residents in our residential care facilities and otherwise expand our

revenues from current fees from our residential care business;
● variations in our operating results and whether we have achieved key business targets;
● changes in, or our failure to meet, earnings estimates;
● changes in securities analysts’ buy/sell recommendations;
● differences between our reported results and those expected by investors and securities analysts;
● announcements of new contracts by us or our competitors;
● market reaction to any acquisitions, joint ventures or strategic investments announced by us or our competitors;
● general economic, political or stock market conditions; and
● the impact of inflation on our operations, including our ability to control costs, including labor, food, and energy expenses.

Recent events have caused stock prices for many companies, including ours, to fluctuate in ways unrelated or disproportionate to their operating
performance. The general economic, political and stock market conditions that may affect the market price of our common stock are beyond our
control. The market price of our common stock at any particular time may not remain the market price in the future.
We have a significant number of outstanding warrants and options and convertible securities, and future sales of the shares obtained upon
exercise of these options, warrants and convertible securities could adversely affect the market price of our common stock.
As of December 31, 2021, we had outstanding options exercisable for an aggregate of 0 shares of common stock at a weighted average exercise
price of 0 per share and warrants to purchase up to 4,038,801 shares of our common stock at a weighted average exercise price of $8.90 per share
and securities that have been issued by our subsidiaries with an accrued amount equal to $897,000 which may be exchanged for shares of our
common stock at a price that is equal to the volume weighted average price of our common stock for 20 days prior to the date of such exchange.
The holders may sell these shares in the public markets from time to time under a registration statement or under Rule 144, without limitations on the
timing, amount or method of sale. The shares of common stock that would be issued upon the exercise or exchange of our options for 89,700 shares
of our common stock or the securities that were issued by our subsidiaries have been registered under the AIU Merger Registration Statement. The
holders of such convertible or exchangeable for our shares of common stock, may exercise such rights sell a large number of shares of our comment
stock, which would likely cause the market price of our common stock to decline.
Our corporate governance structure may prevent our acquisition by another company at a premium over the public trading price of our shares.
It is possible that the acquisition of a majority of our outstanding voting stock by another company could result in our stockholders receiving a
premium over the public trading price for our shares. Provisions of our restated certificate of incorporation and our amended and restated bylaws,
each as amended, and of Delaware corporate law could delay or make more difficult an acquisition of our company by merger, tender offer or proxy
contest, even if it would create an immediate benefit to our stockholders. For example, our restated certificate of incorporation does not permit
stockholders to act by written consent, and our bylaws generally require ninety days advance notice of any matters to be brought before the
stockholders at an annual or special meeting.
In addition, our board of directors has the authority to issue shares of preferred stock and to determine the terms, rights and preferences of this
preferred stock, including voting rights of those shares, without any further vote or action by the stockholders and while we are not listed on an
exchange such as the NYSE American, we can issue a significant number of voting shares and voting power without stockholder approval. At
December 31, 2021, approximately 4,293,170 shares of such “blank check” preferred stock remained unissued. The rights of the holders of common
stock may be subordinate to, and adversely affected by, the rights of holders of preferred stock that may be issued in the future. The issuance of
preferred stock could also make it more difficult for a third party to acquire a majority of our outstanding voting stock, even at a premium over our
public trading price.
Furthermore, our certificate of incorporation also provides for a classified board of directors with directors divided into three classes serving
staggered terms. These provisions may have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in control of us without action by our stockholders and,
therefore, could adversely affect the price of our stock or the possibility of sale of shares to an acquiring person.
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We do not anticipate declaring any cash dividends on our common stock.
We have never declared or paid cash dividends on our common stock and do not plan to pay any cash dividends in the near future. Our current
policy is to retain all funds and earnings for use in the operation and expansion of our business.
General Risk Factors
The price of Clearday’s common stock may decrease.
The market price of the Clearday’s common stock may decline as a result of a number of reasons, including if:

● the planned development and expansion by Clearday of the adult day care business or digital services or other innovative products
and services is delayed or not successful; or

● Clearday’s business and prospects are not consistent with the expectations of financial or industry analysts.
Our ability to protect our patents and other proprietary rights is uncertain, exposing us to possible losses of competitive advantage.
Our efforts to protect our proprietary rights may not succeed in preventing infringement by others or ensure that these rights will provide us with a
competitive advantage. Pending patent applications may not result in issued patents and the validity of issued patents may be subject to challenge.



Third parties may also be able to design around the patented aspects of the products or design around our copyrights, including the coding for our
digital services. Additionally, certain of the issued patents and patent applications are owned jointly with third parties. Because any owner or co-
owner of a patent can license its rights under jointly-owned patents or applications, inventions made by us jointly with others are not subject to
our exclusive control. Any of these possible events could result in losses of competitive advantage.
We depend on specific patents and licenses to technologies, and it will likely need additional technologies in the future that it may not be able
to obtain.
We utilize technologies under licenses of patents from others for certain of our products. These patents may be subject to challenge, which may
result in significant litigation expense (which may or may not be recoverable against future royalty obligations). Additionally, we may be required to
utilize intellectual property rights owned by others, including patents developed by a third-party engineering firm for the cryogenic air quality
system, and may seek licenses to do so. Such licenses may not be obtainable on commercially reasonable terms, or at all. It is also possible that
Clearday may inadvertently utilize intellectual property rights held by others, which could result in substantial claims.
Other parties may have the right to utilize technology important to our business.
We utilize certain intellectual property rights under non-exclusive licenses or have granted to others the right to utilize certain intellectual property
rights licensed from a third party. Because we may not have the exclusive rights to utilize such intellectual property, other parties may be able to
compete with us, which may harm our business.
We will face significant competition.
We will compete with numerous care and wellness companies, including developers, owners and operators of residential and non-residential
facilities, many of which own or operate facilities that are similar to Clearday’s current and planned facilities in the same markets in which we are, or
will be located. Clearday competes with numerous other managers and operators of care and wellness businesses that are focused on the non-acute
care market, including adult day care centers and products that compete with products that will be distributed by Clearday. Some of Clearday’s
competitors are larger and have greater financial resources than us and some of our competitors are not for profit entities which have endowment
income and may not face the same financial pressures as us. We cannot be sure that we will be able to attract a sufficient number of clients or
residents at rates that will generate acceptable returns or that we will be able to attract employees and keep wages and other employee benefits,
insurance costs and other operating expenses at levels which will allow us to compete successfully and operate profitably.
Clearday’s competition may also be from senior housing, senior healthcare, home healthcare, medical and healthcare providers that expand their
services or otherwise provide comparable services or utilize tech-enabled products and services that Clearday will utilize. Any such companies or
combination of companies may have referral or strategic relationships that reduce the number of consumers that would otherwise use Clearday’s
products or services. In recent years, a significant number of new senior age communities and services have been developed and continue to be
developed. Accordingly, Clearday expects to have increased competitive pressures, particularly in certain geographic markets where Clearday’s
intends to operate our care services. These competitive challenges may prevent Clearday from establishing, maintaining or improving revenues,
which may adversely affect Clearday.
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Federal, state and local employment related laws and regulations could increase Clearday’s cost of doing business, and Clearday may fail to
comply with such laws and regulations.
Clearday’s operations are subject to a variety of federal, state and local employment related laws and regulations, including, but not limited to, the
U.S. Fair Labor Standards Act, which governs matters such as minimum wages, the Family and Medical Leave Act, overtime pay, compensable time,
recordkeeping and other working conditions, and a variety of similar laws that govern these and other employment related matters. Because labor
represents (and will represent) a significant portion of Clearday’s ordinary operating expenses from its care and wellness businesses, compliance
with these evolving laws and regulations could substantially increase Clearday’s cost of doing business, while failure to do so could subject
Clearday to significant back pay awards, fines and lawsuits. Clearday’s failures to comply with federal, state and local employment related laws and
regulations could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
The US federal minimum wage increases in five steps over five years ending with a $15 minimum wage in 2025, with automatically increase in line
with changes in the median hourly wage in the economy. Certain states have increased the minimum wage to $15 per hour. Additionally, we have
received benefits of the Employee Retention Credits under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (the CARES Act) which have
ended during 2021 This and other labor related actions have increased the cost of our operating expenses. The extent of such actions cannot be
predicted with any certainty.
Clearday may fail to comply with laws governing the privacy and security of personal information, including relating to health information.
Clearday will be required to comply with federal and state laws governing the privacy, security, use and disclosure of personally identifiable
information and protected health information. State laws also govern protected health information, and rules regarding state privacy rights. Other
federal and state laws govern the privacy of other personally identifiable information. If Clearday fails to comply with applicable federal or state
standards, then we could be subject to civil sanctions and criminal penalties, which could materially and adversely affect Clearday’s business,
financial condition and results of operations.
Clearday will continue to incur costs and demands upon management as a result of complying with the laws and regulations affecting public
companies.
Clearday will continue to incur significant legal, accounting and other expenses, including costs associated with public company reporting
requirements. Clearday will also incur costs associated with corporate governance requirements, including requirements under the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act, as well as rules implemented by the SEC and any exchange that Clearday may have its common stock listed. These rules and regulations are
expected to increase the Clearday’s legal and financial compliance costs and to make some activities more time consuming and costly. The executive
officers of Clearday will continue to need to devote substantial time to gaining expertise regarding operations as a public company and compliance
with applicable laws and regulations. These rules and regulations also have made it expensive for Clearday to obtain directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance. As a result, it may be more difficult for Clearday to attract and retain qualified individuals to serve on our board of directors or as our
executive officers, which may adversely affect investor confidence in Clearday and could cause our business or stock price to suffer.
Clearday may become subject to litigation, which could have an adverse effect on its performance.
Clearday may from time to time become subject to litigation, including claims relating to our residential care and other operations. Clearday’s
planned businesses include the continuation of our residential care facilities, adult day care and our planned in-home care which are businesses
that are regulated and have a high risk for plaintiff actions. Some of these claims may result in significant defense costs and potentially significant
judgments against us, some of which are not, or cannot be, insured against. Clearday generally intends to vigorously defend itself; however, we
cannot be certain of the ultimate outcomes of any claims that may arise in the future. Resolution of these types of matters against the us may result
in Clearday having to pay significant fines, judgments, or settlements, which, if uninsured, or if the fines, judgments, and settlements exceed
insured levels, could adversely impact Clearday’s earnings and cash flows, thereby having an adverse effect on Clearday’s financial condition,
results of operations, cash flow and per share trading price of our common stock. Certain litigation or the resolution of certain litigation may affect
the availability or cost of some of our insurance coverage, which could adversely impact our results of operations and cash flows, expose us to



increased risks that would be uninsured, and/or adversely impact our ability to attract officers and directors.
Clearday depends on key personnel whose continued service is not guaranteed.
Clearday’s ability to manage its businesses and anticipated future growth depends, in large part, upon the efforts of key personnel, particularly
James Walesa, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, and B.J. Parrish, our director and Chief Operating Officer. Such key personnel have
extensive knowledge and relationships and exercise substantial influence over Clearday’s operational, financing, acquisition and disposition
activity. There is significant competition in the care and wellness industry for experienced personnel and there is a risk that Clearday may not be
able to continue to retain our key personnel. The loss of services of one or more members of Clearday’s executive management team, or Clearday’s
inability to attract and retain highly qualified personnel, could adversely affect Clearday’s business, diminish Clearday’s investment opportunities
and weaken Clearday’s relationships with lenders, business partners, existing and prospective tenants and industry personnel, which could
adversely affect us.
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Clearday relies on information technology and systems in its operations, and any material failure, inadequacy, interruption or security failure
of that technology or those systems could materially and adversely affect us.
Clearday will continue to rely on information technology and systems, including the internet and commercially available software, to process,
transmit, store and safeguard information and to manage or support a variety of our business processes, including financial transactions and
maintenance of records, which may include personally identifiable information of employees, residents and clients. If Clearday experiences security
breaches or other similar failures, or other inadequacies or interruptions of our information technology, we could incur material costs and losses and
our operations could be disrupted as a result. Further, third-party vendors could experience similar events with respect to their information
technology and systems that impact the products and services they provide to us. We will continue to rely on commercially available systems,
software, tools and monitoring, as well as our internal procedures and personnel, to provide security for processing, transmitting, storing and
safeguarding confidential resident, customer and vendor information, such as personally identifiable information related to our employees and
others, including our residents and clients, and information regarding their and Clearday’s financial accounts. We will continue to take various
actions, and may incur significant costs, to maintain and protect the operation and security of our information technology and systems, including
the data maintained in those systems. However, it is possible that these measures will not prevent the systems’ improper functioning or a
compromise in security, such as in the event of a cyberattack or the improper disclosure of personally identifiable information.
Security breaches, computer viruses, attacks by hackers, online fraud schemes and similar breaches can create significant system disruptions,
shutdowns, fraudulent transfer of assets or unauthorized disclosure of confidential information. The cybersecurity risks to Clearday and our third
party vendors are heightened by, among other things, the evolving nature of the threats faced, advances in computer capabilities, new discoveries
in the field of cryptography and new and increasingly sophisticated methods used to perpetuate illegal or fraudulent activities against Clearday,
including cyberattacks, email or wire fraud and other attacks exploiting security vulnerabilities in Clearday’s or third parties’ information technology
networks and systems or operations. Any failure to maintain the security, proper function and availability of Clearday’s information technology and
systems, or certain third party vendors’ failure to similarly protect their information technology and systems that are relevant to the Clearday or our
operations, or to safeguard Clearday’s business processes, assets and information could result in financial losses, interrupt Clearday’s operations,
damage our reputation, cause us to be in default of material contracts and subject us to liability claims or regulatory penalties. Any or all of the
foregoing could materially and adversely affect our business and the value of our securities.
Changes in tax laws or other actions could have a negative effect on us.
At any time, the federal or state income tax laws, or the administrative interpretations of those laws, may be amended. Federal and state tax laws are
constantly under review by persons involved in the legislative process, the IRS, the U.S. Department of the Treasury and state taxing authorities.
Changes to the tax laws, regulations and administrative interpretations, which may have retroactive application, could adversely affect us. The
administration of President Biden has recently proposed changes to the Internal Revenue Code that, if enacted, could have adverse tax
consequences for us. Such proposals are subject to significant changes. There cannot be any assurances as to any changes in the Internal
Revenue Code that may be implemented, including any that may be adverse to us.
Clearday’s insurance may not cover potential losses, including from adverse weather conditions, natural disasters and other events.
We carry commercial property, liability and other insurance coverage on our businesses. We select policy specifications and insured limits that we
believe to be appropriate and adequate given the relative risk of loss, the cost of the coverage and industry practice. We do not expect to carry
insurance for losses such as loss from riots or war because such coverage is not available or is not available at commercially reasonable rates. Some
of our policies, including those covering losses due to terrorism and certain other insurance policies, are subject to limitations involving large
deductibles or co-payments and policy limits that may not be sufficient to cover losses, which could adversely affect our operations. We may
discontinue terrorism or other insurance if the cost of premiums for any such policies exceeds, in our judgment, the expected benefit from carrying
the policies. If following the termination or failure to renew any insurance policy we experience an adverse uninsured event, we may be required to
incur significant costs, which could materially adversely affect our business and financial performance. Additionally, insurance to cover the risk of
business interruptions may not be available or available at commercially reasonable rates and may not cover the specific events that require a
closure of interrupt of any of our businesses.
If we experience a loss that is uninsured or that exceeds policy limits, we could lose the capital invested in the assets and businesses that that was
made. Furthermore, we may not be able to obtain adequate insurance coverage at reasonable costs in the future as the costs associated with
property and casualty renewals may be higher than anticipated.
Clearday’s operations will be subject to risks from adverse weather and climate events.
Severe weather may have an adverse effect on certain residential care or adult day care facilities to be operated by us and by our remaining non-
core assets. Flooding caused by rising sea levels and severe weather events, including hurricanes, tornadoes and widespread fires have had and
may have in the future an adverse effect on such assets and facilities and result in significant losses to us and interruption of our business. We
may incur significant costs and losses as a result of these activities, both in terms of operating, preparing and repairing our residential care
communities or adult day care centers or the properties owned by use in anticipation of, during and after a severe weather or climate-related event
and in terms of potential lost business due to the interruption in operations that may not be adequately covered by insurance.
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Terrorist attacks or riots in any locations in which Clearday acquires properties could significantly impact the demand for, and value of,
Clearday’s properties.
Terrorist attacks and other acts of terrorism or war or riots would severely impact the demand for, and value of, Clearday’s planned businesses.
Terrorist attacks in any of the metropolitan areas in which the Clearday expects to have operations also could directly impact the value of Clearday
through damage, destruction, loss or increased security costs, and could thereafter materially impact the availability or cost of insurance to protect
against such acts. A decrease in demand could make it difficult to maintain the expansion of the adult day care business in accordance with the
business plan. To the extent that any future terrorist attack otherwise disrupts Clearday’s planned businesses, it may impair the ability to make
timely payments to fund operations, which would harm the operating results and could materially and adversely affect us.



Current government policies regarding interest rates and trade policies may cause a recession.
The U.S. Federal Reserve policy regarding the timing and amount of future increases in interest rates and changing U.S. and other countries’ trade
policies may hinder the growth of the U.S. economy. It is unclear whether the U.S. economy will be able to withstand these challenges and continue
sustained growth. Economic weakness in the U.S. economy generally or a new U.S. recession would likely adversely affect Clearday’s financial
condition, including by limiting Clearday’s ability to pay rent or other obligations and causing the value of Clearday’s owned and operated
residential care communities, and remaining non-core assets and of our securities to decline. Further, general economic conditions, such as
inflation, commodity costs, fuel and other energy costs, costs of labor, insurance and healthcare, interest rates, and tax rates, affect our operating
and general and administrative expenses, and we have no control or limited ability to control such factors. Such economic uncertainties and
conditions may adversely affect us and others, including our landlords, and our clients, such as by reducing access to funding or credit, increasing
the cost of credit, limiting the ability to manage interest rate risk and increasing the risk that obligations will not be fulfilled, as well as other impacts
which Clearday is unable to fully anticipate.
As a “smaller reporting company,” Clearday may avail itself of reduced disclosure requirements, which may make Clearday’s common stock
less attractive to investors.
Clearday is a “smaller reporting company” under applicable SEC rules and regulations. As a “smaller reporting company,” Clearday may rely on
exemptions from certain disclosure requirements that are applicable to other public companies, such as simplified executive compensation
disclosures and reduced financial statement disclosure requirements in our SEC filings. Clearday may continue to rely on such exemptions for so
long as it remains a “smaller reporting company”. These exemptions include reduced financial disclosure, reduced disclosure obligations regarding
executive compensation, and not being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.
Decreased disclosures in Clearday’s SEC filings due to its status as a smaller reporting company may make it harder for investors to analyze our
results of operations and financial prospects. Clearday cannot predict if investors will find the Clearday’s common stock less attractive if it relies on
these exemptions. If some investors find Clearday’s common stock less attractive as a result, there may be a less active trading market for
Clearday’s common stock and Clearday’s stock price may be more volatile. Clearday may take advantage of the reporting exemptions applicable to a
smaller reporting company until it is no longer a smaller reporting company, which status would end once it has a public float greater than $250
million. In that event, Clearday could still be a smaller reporting company if its annual revenues were below $100 million, and it has a public float of
less than $700 million. Clearday’s reliance on these exemptions may result in the public finding that Clearday’s common stock to be less attractive
and adversely impact the market price of Clearday’s common stock or the trading market thereof.
We are subject to penny stock regulations and restrictions, and you may have difficulty selling shares of our common stock.
The Commission has adopted regulations which generally define so-called “penny stocks” as an equity security that has a market price of less than
$5.00 per share or an exercise price of less than $5.00 per share, subject to certain exemptions. Our common stock is a “penny stock”, and we are
subject to Rule 15g-9 under the Exchange Act, or the Penny Stock Rule. This rule imposes additional sales practice requirements on broker-dealers
that sell such securities to persons other than established customers and “accredited investors” (generally, individuals with a net worth in excess
of $1,000,000 or annual income exceeding $200,000, or $300,000 together with their spouses). For transactions covered by Rule 15g-9, a broker-dealer
must make a special suitability determination for the purchaser and receive the purchaser’s written consent to the transaction prior to sale. As a
result, this rule affects the ability of broker-dealers to sell our securities and affects the ability of purchasers to sell any of our securities in the
secondary market.
For any transaction involving a penny stock, unless exempt, the rules require delivery, prior to any transaction in a penny stock, of a disclosure
schedule prepared by the Commission relating to the penny stock market. Disclosure is also required to be made about sales commissions payable
to both the broker-dealer and the registered representative and current quotations for the securities. Finally, monthly statements are required to be
sent disclosing recent price information for the penny stock held in the account and information on the limited market in penny stock.
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There can be no assurance that our common stock will qualify for exemption from the Penny Stock Rule. In any event, even if our common stock
were exempt from the Penny Stock Rule, we would remain subject to Section 15(b)(6) of the Exchange Act, which gives the Commission the
authority to restrict any person from participating in a distribution of penny stock if the Commission finds that such a restriction would be in the
public interest.
In addition to the “penny stock” rules described above, the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”) has adopted similar rules that may
also limit a stockholder’s ability to buy and sell our common stock. FINRA rules require that in recommending an investment to a customer, a
broker-dealer must have reasonable grounds for believing that the investment is suitable for such customer. Prior to recommending speculative low-
priced securities to their non-institutional customers, broker-dealers must make reasonable efforts to obtain information about the customer’s
financial status, tax status, investment objectives and other information. Under interpretations of these rules, FINRA believes that there is a high
probability that speculative low-priced securities will not be suitable for at least some customers. The FINRA requirements make it more difficult for
broker-dealers to recommend that their customers buy our common stock, which may limit your ability to buy and sell our stock and have an
adverse effect on the market for our shares.
The “penny stock” rules make it more difficult for a stockholder to deposit our common stock with a broker dealer and to purchase or sell our
common stock, which reduces the volume of transactions and increases the volatility of the price of our common stock.
Clearday expects to not pay cash dividends on its common stock and investors may have to sell their shares in order to realize value for their
investment.
Clearday has not paid any cash dividends on its common stock and does not intend to pay cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Clearday
intends to use its cash for reinvestment in the development and expansion of the care and wellness businesses and to pay its debt and lease
obligations. As a result, investors may have to sell their shares of common stock to realize any of their investment.
Clearday’s internal controls over financial reporting may not be effective which could have a significant and adverse effect on Clearday’s
business and reputation.
Clearday is subject to the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the rules and regulations of the SEC thereunder
(“Section 404”). Section 404 requires Clearday to report on the design and effectiveness of its internal controls over financial reporting.
Some, but not all, of Clearday’s officers and directors have experience as officers or directors of a public company. Clearday’s internal controls have
certain material weaknesses, including insufficient segregation of duties. Clearday has instituted efforts to remediate these concerns and enhance
Clearday’s internal control environment to remediate these issues by the end of 2021. However, any failure to maintain effective controls could
result in significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and cause Clearday to fail to meet its periodic reporting obligations or result in material
misstatements in Clearday’s financial statements. Clearday may also be required to incur costs to improve its internal control system and hire
additional personnel. This could negatively impact the Clearday’s results of operations.
Compliance with changing regulation of corporate governance and public disclosure may result in additional expenses and divert
management’s attention from operating Clearday’s business, which could have a material adverse effect on Clearday’s business.



There have been other changing laws, regulations and standards relating to corporate governance and public disclosure in addition to the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act, as well as new regulations promulgated by the SEC and rules promulgated by national securities exchanges. These new or
changed laws, regulations and standards are subject to varying interpretations in many cases due to their lack of specificity, and as a result, their
application in practice may evolve over time as new guidance is provided by regulatory and governing bodies, which could result in continuing
uncertainty regarding compliance matters and higher costs necessitated by ongoing revisions to disclosure and governance practices. As a result,
Clearday’s efforts to comply with evolving laws, regulations and standards are likely to continue to result in increased general and administrative
expenses and a diversion of management time and attention from revenue-generating activities to compliance activities. Clearday’s board members,
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer could face an increased risk of personal liability in connection with the performance of their
duties. As a result, Clearday may have difficulty attracting and retaining qualified board members and executive officers, which could have a
material adverse effect on Clearday’s business. If Clearday’s efforts to comply with new or changed laws, regulations and standards differ from the
activities intended by regulatory or governing bodies, Clearday may incur additional expenses to comply with standards set by regulatory
authorities or governing bodies which would have a material adverse effect on Clearday’s business and results of operations.
Delaware law could discourage a change in control, or an acquisition of Clearday by a third party, even if the acquisition would be favorable
to stockholders.
The DGCL contains provisions that may have the effect of making more difficult or delaying attempts by others to obtain control of Clearday, even
when these attempts may be in the best interests of stockholders. Delaware law imposes conditions on certain business combination transactions
with “interested stockholders”. These provisions and others that could be adopted in the future could deter unsolicited takeovers or delay or
prevent changes in Clearday’s control or management, including transactions in which stockholders might otherwise receive a premium for their
shares of common stock over then current market prices. These provisions may also limit the ability of stockholders to approve transactions that
they may deem to be in their best interests.
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Clearday’s board has the authority to issue “Blank Check” Preferred Stock, which could affect the rights of holders of the Clearday’s common
stock and may delay or prevent a takeover that could be in the best interests of Clearday’s stockholders.
The board of Clearday has the authority to issue shares of preferred stock (the “Series Preferred Stock”), in one or more series and to fix the number
of shares constituting any such series, the voting powers, designation, preferences and relative participation, optional or other special rights and
qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, including the dividend rights and dividend rate, terms of redemption (including sinking fund
provisions), redemption price or prices, conversion rights and liquidation preferences of the shares constituting any series, without any further
vote or action by the stockholders. Similarly, the Clearday board may authorize a subsidiary of Clearday to issue securities that may have any such
rights, powers or preferences. The issuance of any such securities could affect the rights of the holders of Clearday’s common stock. For example,
such issuance could result in a class of securities outstanding that would have preferential voting, dividend, and liquidation rights over Clearday’s
common stock, and could (upon conversion or otherwise) enjoy all of the rights appurtenant to the shares of our common stock. The authority
possessed by the board of directors to issue Series Preferred Stock or any such other securities could potentially be used to discourage attempts
by others to obtain control of Clearday through any merger, tender offer, proxy contest or otherwise by making such attempts more difficult or
costly to achieve. The board of directors may issue the Series Preferred Stock or any such other securities without stockholder approval and with
voting and conversion rights which could adversely affect the voting power of holders of our common stock. There are no agreements or
understandings for the issuance of Series Preferred Stock any such other securities.
The market price and volume of Clearday’s common stock fluctuates significantly and could result in substantial losses for individual
investors.
The stock market from time to time experiences significant price and volume fluctuations that are unrelated to the operating performance of
particular companies. These broad market fluctuations may cause the market price and volume of Clearday’s common stock to decrease. In addition,
the market price and volume of Clearday’s common stock is highly volatile.
Factors that may cause the market price and volume of the Clearday’s common stock to decrease include:

● changes in stock market analyst recommendations regarding Clearday’s common stock or lack of analyst coverage;
● fluctuations in Clearday’s results of operations, timing and announcements of our corporate news;
● any adverse investor reaction to the September 9, 2021 merger;
● adverse actions taken by regulatory agencies with respect to any facilities or their operations or therapeutic based procedures that

Clearday provides;
● any lawsuit involving any care or services or products that Clearday provides;
● announcements of technological innovations by Clearday’s competitors;
● public concern as to the safety of services or products developed by Clearday or others;
● regulatory developments in the United States and in foreign countries;
● the care and wellness industry conditions generally and general market conditions;
● failure of Clearday’s results of operations to meet the expectations of stock market analysts and investors;
● sales of Clearday’s common stock by its executive officers, directors and five percent stockholders or sales of substantial amounts of

Clearday’s common stock, including amounts that are sold on market orders when there is insufficient volume and activity regarding
our common stock;

● changes in accounting principles; and
● loss of any of our key employees and officers.

Further, Clearday’s common stock will be subject to market disruptions that devalue the equity markets broadly, or certain sectors, which are caused
by events that are not related to the business and operations of Clearday. Recent events in exchange listed securities resulted in significant loss of
market value of shares for, among other matters, pandemics and market reaction to perceived global interconnected economies.
ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Clearday operates 4 residential care facilities and one adult daycare facility:
Facility * Location Facility Approximate Square Footage
Memory Care of Naples* Naples, Florida 32,930
Memory Care of Westover Hills San Antonio, Texas 48,280
Memory Care of Little Rock At Good Shepherd Little Rock, Arkansas 44,250
Memory Care of New Braunfels New Braunfels, Texas 43,460
* The Memory Care of Naples facility is owned, and the other facilities are leased.
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Our adult day care center is located in San Antonio, Texas in a leased facility of approximately 5,100 square feet.
We also own our headquarters building located at 8800 Village Drive, San Antonio, Texas. This building is a 3-story medical office building located
on 0.84 acres and has approximately 22,265 rentable square feet.
Our Naples facility is subject to a mortgage of approximately $4,550,000 that is due on May 2, 2023. Our headquarters building in San Antonio,
Texas is subject to a mortgage of approximately $1,000,000 that is due on April 26, 2022, which date may be extended for one year by us.
We are also subject to a lease for a facility that we operated until September 30, 2021 in Simpsonville, South Carolina. This lease is subject to the
legal proceedings described below in Item 3 - Legal Proceedings. This property is subject to a sublease to the operator of the facility that has
entered into an agreement to purchase such facility from the lessor or owner.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
The Company has been, is currently, and expects in the future to be involved in claims, lawsuits, and regulatory and other government audits,
investigations and proceedings arising in the ordinary course of the Company’s business, some of which may involve material amounts. The
Company established accruals for specific legal proceedings when it is considered probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount of the
loss can be reasonably estimated. Also, the defense and resolution of these claims, lawsuits, and regulatory and other government audits,
investigations and proceedings may require the Company to incur significant expense. The Company accounts for claims and litigation losses in
accordance with FASB, Accounting Standards Codification™, or ASC, Topic 450, Contingencies. Under FASB ASC Topic 450, loss contingency
provisions are recorded for probable and estimable losses at the Company’s best estimate of a loss or, when a best estimate cannot be made, at the
Company’s estimate of the minimum loss. These estimates are often developed prior to knowing the amount of the ultimate loss, require the
application of considerable judgment, and are refined as additional information becomes known. Accordingly, the Company is often initially unable
to develop a best estimate of loss and therefore the estimated minimum loss amount, which could be zero, is recorded; then, as information becomes
known, the minimum loss amount is updated, as appropriate. Occasionally, a minimum or best estimate amount may be increased or decreased when
events result in a changed expectation.
From time to time, we are party to various lawsuits, claims and other legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of our business. Excluding
ordinary, routine litigation incidental to our business, we are not currently a party to any legal proceedings that we believe would reasonably be
expected to have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operation or cash flow.
As of the date of this Report, we are subject to certain lawsuits, claims and other legal proceedings, including the following:
The tenant, MCA Simpsonville Operating Company LLC, referred to as Tenant, of the MCA community that is located in Simpsonville, South
Carolina, referred to as the Simpsonville facility, and other affiliates of the Company have a dispute with the landlord of the Simpsonville Facility,
MC-Simpsonville, SC-UT, LLC, referred to as the Landlord, and its affiliates (Embree Group of Companies: Embree Construction Group, Inc., Embree
Asset Group, Inc., and Embree Capital Markets Group, Inc., referred to collectively as Embree) under the terms of the lease regarding alleged
material construction and related defects of the Simpsonville Facility and other memory care facilities that have been built by Embree and are leased
by subsidiaries of MCA, including the significant costs and additional investment that was required by MCA to remedy such defects. The Tenant
has stopped paying rent and related charges under the lease for the Simpsonville Facility from and after January 1, 2019. The Landlord has made
demands for past rent but has not instituted legal action against the Tenant. Instead, the Landlord filed a lawsuit against the guarantors of the
lease, including Trident Healthcare Properties I, L.P., referred to as Trident, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and an
unconditional guaranty of such lease; and the personal guarantors of the Tenant’s obligations under the Lease, including the Company’s Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer. The Company has an obligation to indemnify and hold such individuals (other than the Company’s Chairman) harmless
under such personal guarantees, and Trident is a consolidated subsidiary in the Company’s financial statements. The Company’s Chairman has
indemnified the Company for all obligations of the Company with respect to obligations to the Landlord in connection with this litigation, including
the Company’s obligations to such indemnified individuals and the Company’s subsidiaries. This litigation is captioned and numbered MC-
Simpsonville, SC-UT, LLC v. Steve Person, et. al., Cause No. 19-0651-C368 and is pending in the 368th Judicial District Court of Williamson County,
Texas. On October 21, 2020, the trial court has issued a judgment on damages in the amount of $2,801,365. The trial court has not made findings of
fact related to the Tenant’s liability under the Lease. Additionally, the Guarantors has appealed the trial court judgement as they believed it has
reasonable likelihood of success to reduce the judgment in the amount of $248,074 in attorney’ fees. In connection with this appeal, the Guarantors
made a cash deposit to the trial court of approximately $2,764,000. The appellate court recently entered a ruling reversing and remanding the
attorneys’ fees portion of the judgment to the trial court for renewed proceedings on that issue. After the entry of the appellate court’s ruling, the
Guarantors filed a motion for rehearing on the narrow issue of pre-judgment interest calculation, on which the Guarantors believe that they have a
reasonable likelihood of success. The Company has accrued an amount that it determines is reasonable with respect to this contingency. The
Landlord filed a second action against Trident and the other guarantors on April 9, 2021, for claims similar to the action described above including
relief for payment of rent past due and reimbursement of taxes from October 2020 to the time of the trial in this action. Trident and the other
guarantors intend to respond to this action. The Company is not able to determine if it will prevail in such litigation. The Company has entered into
an agreement to transfer certain operations, including lease obligations, of the Simpsonville Facility. See Note 15 - Subsequent Events.
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Certain subsidiaries of the Company that operate hotel assets have not paid employment related taxes such as required withholdings for Texas
State unemployment taxes and federal income tax and employee and employer contributions for FICA (Social Security and Medicare) taxes, and
federal unemployment tax for the period from December 31, 2018 to December 31, 2019. These subsidiaries have since made the appropriate filings
with the Internal Revenue Service and the Company has accrued the full estimated amount of the underpaid taxes as well as the estimated penalties
and interest. As of December 31, 2021, the amount of the estimated taxes, penalties, and interest, assuming that there is no waiver or mitigation of
the penalties, is $261,200. The Company has accrued this amount in its audited consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2021.
In addition, from time to time, the Company becomes involved in litigation matters in the ordinary course of its business. Such litigations include an
action that alleges negligence and other claims regarding the death of a resident in a memory care facility. For example, the case entitled Michael
Inderrieden, Individually and as Personal Representative of the Estate of Thomas Inderrieden v. MCA Simpsonville Operating Company, LLC dba
Memory Care of Simpsonville; Allied Integral United, Inc. d/b/a Clearday; Memory Care America, LLC.; MCA Management Company, Inc.;
Clearday Management, Ltd.; and MC-Simpsonville, SC-1-UT, LLC, filed June 28, 2021, in the Court of Common Pleas for Greenville County, South
Carolina, bearing Civil Action Nos. 2021-CP-23-03071 (Wrongful Death) & 2021-CP-23-03076 (Survival Action), is currently pending, and asserts
claims for survival and wrongful death. Such action has been referred to the Company’s insurance carrier and is in the discovery phase of litigation.
Although the Company is unable to predict with certainty the eventual outcome of any litigation, the Company does not believe any of its currently
pending litigation is likely to have a material adverse effect on its business.
Prior to the closing of the merger, on November 20, 2020, the landlord of the Company’s former headquarters, Prologis Texas III LLC, commenced an
action asserting that the Company breached its lease agreement. The Company has answered the compliant on January 11, 2021 and continues to
believe that it has meritorious defenses or responses to these claims.
In addition, a subsidiary of the Company was sued by Naples Property Ventures, LLC, alleging breach under a contract for sale of the Naples
property and facility. This litigation was settled with mutual releases during the first quarter of 2022.
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES



Not applicable.
PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF
EQUITY SECURITIES

Market for Common Stock
Our common stock trades on the OTC Markets OTCQB under the symbol “CLRD”. The following table details the high and low closing prices for
our Common Stock as reported by OTC Markets OTCQB for the periods indicated.*

2021 High Low
Quarter ended December 31, 2021 $ 4.15 $ 2.06
Quarter ended September 30, 2021* $ 10.87 $ 3.00
Quarter ended June 30, 2021 $ 10.76 $ 3.83
Quarter ended March 31, 2021 $ 7.58 $ 2.99
2020 High Low
Quarter ended December 31, 2020 $ 6.78 $ 2.99
Quarter ended September 30, 2020 $ 21.59 $ 5.30
Quarter ended June 30, 2020 $ 21.97 $ 6.82
Quarter ended March 31, 2020 $ 11.74 $ 5.30

* Our common stock was delisted from the Nasdaq Capital Market, effective September 30, 2020. All high and low closing prices prior to
September 30, 2020 were as reported by Nasdaq Capital Market.

Holders of Record
We had 425 holders of record of our common stock on April 15, 2022. This number does not include stockholders for whom shares were held in a
“nominee” or “street” name.
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Dividends
We have never paid cash dividends and intend to employ all available funds in the development of our business. We have no plans to pay cash
dividends in the near future. Our ability to declare or pay dividends on shares of our common stock is subject to the requirement that we pay an
equivalent dividend on each outstanding share of our Preferred Stock (on an as-converted basis).
Sales of Unregistered Securities
AIU, now known as Clearday Operations, Inc., which became our subsidiary in the AIU Merger, issued 334,173 warrants to purchase shares of
common stock during 2021 in connection with the offering by our subsidiaries of $897,000 (or 89,700 shares of the AIU Alt Care Preferred) and
$2,444,725 (or 244,473 Clearday OZ LP Interests in Clearday OZ Fund, a subsidiary of AIU Alt Care). These warrants have an exercise price per
share equal to $5.00, subject to adjustment for stock splits, reverse stock splits and similar transactions. These warrants were assumed by Clearday,
Inc. during the AIU Merger and the shares of our common stock issued upon the exercise of any such warrants has been registered under the
Securities Act under the AIU Merger Registration Statement.
Repurchases of Equity Securities
None.
Warrants
The Company has two separate types of warrants that are outstanding: (1) the warrants that were granted and outstanding by STI prior to the
effective date of the merger and (2) the warrants assumed by the Company that were granted by AIU prior to the effective date of the merger.
STI Warrants Prior to the Merger Effective Date.
The following is a summary of such outstanding warrants at December 31 2021:

Common Shares

Total
Currently

Exercisable
Exercise Price

per Share Expiration Date
Warrants related to August 2016 financing 2,481 2,481 $ 646.95 February 2, 2022
Warrants related to March 2018 financing 7,331 7,331 $ 245.84 September 9, 2023
Warrants related to March 2018 financing 513 513 $ 340.73 March 6, 2023
Warrants related to July 2018 financing 119,241 119,241 $ 75.48 July 25, 2023
Warrants related to July 2018 financing 7,154 7,154 $ 94.35 July 25, 2023
Warrants related to May 2019 financing 5,518 5,518 $ 26.96 May 23, 2024
Warrants related to October 2019 financing 100,719 100,719 $ 5.39 October 10, 2024
Warrants related to October 2019 financing 14,336 14,336 $ 6.74 October 8, 2024
Warrants issued by AIU that after the merger
(described below) 3,281,508 3,281,508 $ 5.00 November 15, 2029
Warrants issued by AIU for consultant 500,000 500,000 $ 11.00 August 10, 2026
Warrants that were issued by AIU and have been assumed by Clearday in the AIU Merger.
As of December 31 2021, there are 1,376,118 warrants that were issued by AIU to investors in the Alt Care Preferred and units of limited partnership
interests in Clearday OZ Fund. As of the effective date of the merger, such warrants were assumed by the Company and amended and restated to
represent the same number of shares of the Company’s Common Stock that would have been issued had the holders exercised such warrants in full
prior to the effective date of the merger, or an aggregate of 3,281,508 shares of the Company’s Common Stock. Each warrant may be exercised for
cash at an exercise price equal to $5.00 per share, subject to adjustment for specified fundamental transactions such as stock splits, reverse stock
splits and stock combinations.
Prior to the closing of the AIU merger, AIU issued to a consultant that is subject to an development agreement a warrant representing 500,000
shares of the Company’s Common Stock as of the effective date of the merger at an exercise price of $11.00 per share, which may be paid by
customary cashless exercise. Such warrant is subject to adjustment for specified fundamental transactions such as stock splits, reverse stock splits
and stock combinations.
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Stock Options
At December 31, 2021, we continued to have the two active equity award option plans, the 2003 Equity Incentive Plan and the 2013 Equity Incentive
Plan (collectively, the “Stock Option Plan”) that were in effect for STI prior to the effective date of the merger. Although we can only grant new
options under the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan. Under our Stock Option Plan, stock awards were made to our former directors, key employees,



consultants, and non-employee directors and consisted of stock options, restricted stock awards, performance awards, and performance share
awards. Stock options were granted at prices no less than the market value on the date of grant. There were no stock option exercises during the
three and twelve months ended December 31, 2021. None of the option grantees continued in service after the effective date of the merger. The
expiration date for all of the options under the Stock Option Plan granted to any officer, director or consultant is generally the last day of the three
(3)-month period following the date that such person ceases their continuous status in such capacity, subject to certain accelerated termination
events that are not applicable. There were no stock options that were exercisable at December 31, 2021.
At December 31, 2021, no options had an exercise price less than the current market value. All of the stock options award that were outstanding as
of December 31, 2021 were to officers and directors whose service terminated on September 9, 2021 in connection with the merger. Accordingly, all
such options that have not been exercised on December 8, 2021 shall expire.
Restricted Stock
On March 31, 2021, AIU issued an additional 57,000 total shares of restricted common stock to executives of AIU representing approximately
135,923 shares of Clearday, Inc. Common Stock. For the twelve months ended December 31, 2021, shares issued of restricted common stock vest
over 33 months and the Company valued the 135,923 shares at $5.07 per share, on the date of the agreement.
As of December 31, 2020, the Company has awarded restricted stock worth $5,103,160 or 510,316 shares to various officers, directors and
consultants that will be amortized over the requisite service period. As of December 31, 2021, there was 0 in unamortized stock compensation
Equity of Subsidiary
Non-Controlling Interest
In November 2019, a certificate of incorporation was filed by AIU Alt Care for its Series I 10.25% cumulative convertible preferred stock, par value
$0.01 per share (“AIU Alt Care Preferred”) that authorizes the issuance of 1,500,000 shares of preferred stock and 1,500,000 of common stock and
designated 700,000 as AIU Alt Care Preferred. Each share of AIU Alt Care Preferred has a stated value equal to the AIU Alt Care Preferred original
issue price of $10.00 per share. For the twelve months ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, $897,000 and $3,641,576 was invested in AIU Alt Care,
respectively in exchange for 89,700 and 364,158 shares of such preferred stock, respectively.
In October 2019, AIU Alt Care formed AIU Impact Management, LLC and they formed Clearday OZ Fund which is managed by AIU Impact
Management, LLC, as the general partner. For the twelve months ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, $2,494,621 and $940,307 was invested in
Clearday Oz Fund, respectively.
The exchange rate for each of the Alt Care Preferred Stock and the Clearday OZ LP Interests to Clearday, Inc. Common Stock is equal to (i) the
aggregate investment amount for such security plus accrued dividends at 10.25% per annum, (ii) divided by 80% of the 20 consecutive day volume
weighted closing price of the Common Stock of Clearday preceding the conversion date. Prior to the AIU Merger, these securities were
exchangeable to shares of AIU common stock at a rate of 1 share for every $10.00 of aggregate amount of the investment plus such accrued
dividends.
ITEM 6. [Reserved]
Not applicable.
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations includes many forward-looking statements.
For cautions about relying on such forward-looking statements, please refer to the section entitled “Forward Looking Statements” at the
beginning of this Report immediately prior to Item 1.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in
this Report. Some of the information contained in this discussion and analysis including information with respect to Clearday, its plans, and
strategy for its business and related financing, includes forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. On September 9, 2021, we
completed the AIU Merger. In connection with the AIU Merger, we changed our name to Clearday, Inc. and continued the business of AIU as the
acquired company and continued certain of STI’s businesses. The following discussion uses the term “Clearday” to mean the business and
operations of AIU prior to the AIU Merger continued after the AIU Merger and the business of STI that is continued after the merger, unless
otherwise indicated.
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Overview
We are a health care services company focused on servicing the largest demographic in the country - the older care consumer market, which we
define as adults that are 50 years of age or older. We provide a full care spectrum of care for older Americans through:

● Our foundational business, that includes our four residential memory care facilities that are located in three states; and one adult day
care center; and

● Our Clearday Labs that develops and brings to market innovative non-acute care and wellness solutions intended to disrupt the
traditional long-term care model. We have developed:

■ Clearday Restore, our proprietary sensory therapy that combines light, sound and aromas designed to reduce anxieties in older
Americans which have successfully used in our facilities for more than two years;

■ Clearday at Home, our proprietary digital service, during 2020 as response to COVID-19, launched through consumer and
business to business (B2B) sales channels and through our facilities;

■ Robotic services through our strategic alliance with a robotic developer and manufacturer;
■ Clearday Therapeutic Streams, our proprietary service that provides guidance to care givers as to specific issues such as

assisting with activities of daily living, for example sundowning, during 2021; and
■ STI cryocooler technologies to develop our cryogenic air quality system that removes particulates and volatile organics (which

effectively sterilizes the internal atmosphere), reduces CO2 (carbon dioxide), and regulates humidity, by condensing or freezing
the air in interior built spaces in a system that can easily integrate with HVAC systems.

Clearday has two financial business segments:
● Non-Acute Care and Wellness, is Clearday’s operating business including:

- Clearday’s innovative non-acute care and wellness services and products, including a virtual service delivered through
digital channels (Clearday at Home), and adult day care (Clearday Clubs);

- Clearday’s existing residential communities;
- Further development and commercial sales of products and services through Clearday Labs, including robotic technologies;
- Commercialization of its advanced air quality products; and
- All of Clearday’s general and administrative and research and development functions.

● Non-Core Assets and Related Businesses, which includes all of our assets that are held for disposition.
All net proceeds from dispositions of the non-core assets and related businesses have been used by Clearday for its working capital and to fund
the development of its innovative non-acute care and wellness businesses.
Our four residential memory care facilities are located in three U.S. states and operated through our Memory Care America LLC (“MCA”)



subsidiary. These facilities focus on treating residents suffering from any of the 25 forms of dementia that may be treated in a residential care
facility, Alzheimer’s being the most common. We use our knowledge and our experience in treating dementia and other cognitive disorders to
develop technology-enabled businesses, aligned to next-generation non-acute care and wellness services and products.
All of our long-lived assets are located in the United States and, during the year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, all of our revenue
was derived from within the United States.
Seasonality
Our residential care facilities are seasonal in nature. Generally, residential care facilities suffer revenue losses in winter months as there is often an
increase in the loss of residents during these periods primarily because flu and other health issues during such periods.
Results of Operations
Our operating revenues come predominately from our four residential memory care facilities and our adult day care center. MCA earns revenue
primarily by providing services to individual residents for a specified monthly fee, which fee includes all services such as room, meals and programs
and to a lesser extent, certain community fees for a resident to move into a facility. All of MCA’s revenues are “private pay” which are charged
directly to the resident and paid by such individual’s family or administrator. Residents may terminate services upon advance notice of a specified
period. A portion of our 2021 revenues were from our adult day care business. Our adult daycare service earns revenues primarily by providing
services to individual clients for weekday sessions, which includes activities. A part of our revenues includes reimbursements to veterans under a
program by the United States Department of Veterans Affairs (VA).
Our operating expenses are primarily the expenses of our MCA facilities described below as well as the expenses that we incur in our other
businesses including adult day care and our digital platform.
SG&A Expenses. Certain costs and expenses incurred by the Company are accounted for as Selling, General & Administrative Expenses (“SG&A”),
including costs and expenses that are summarized below, which we expect will not be incurred at the same level or amount. Because we do not
expect to incur the same level of the costs and expenses that are summarized below, we believe that disclosure of such amounts would be useful to
the analysis of our financial statements.
These SG&A Expenses during 2021 include:
(1) Development costs and expenses for the innovative services, including Clearday at Home, which primarily consisted of payments to a third-
party consulting firm to develop the Clearday at Home and Clearday Club business models, strategies, branding and marketing, and to a lesser
extent, the employment costs of the Company personnel dedicated to such development activities. For the year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,
these amounts were approximately $573,000 and $1,741,200 (including research and development costs), respectively. The decrease is primarily
because of we completed a material amount of research and development related to our digital platform used for Clearday at Home and related
digital services during 2020 and we capitalized a certain amount of payments in 2021. We may incur other development expenses through our
Clearday Labs for the development of other products and services to the extent that such amounts are not funded by others through our strategic
alliances.
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(2) Accounting and finance expenses related to the merger and becoming a public company, which primarily consisted of accounting and
consulting fees incurred to improve the accounting and finance department, the additional consulting fees regarding the audit and preparation of
our financial statements. For the year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 these costs were approximately $1,442,830 and $1,659,000 respectively.
While some of these expenses will continue, such as audit fees, we have reduced our reliance on third party accounting consultants as we have
increased the number and skill set of our accounting and financial staff. We incurred approximately $815,000 of costs and expenses paid to third
party accounting consultants for the period from January 1, 2021 to November 30, 2021, which is the period that included these services for the
audited financial statements included in the AIU Merger Registration Statement, our Current Report on Form 8-K for the AIU Merger and our
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ending September 30, 2021, or approximately $74,330 per month. We significantly reduced our use of
such consultants beginning December, 2021, which we expect will result in a significant decrease of future costs and fees to such consultants,
offset in part by our increase in the compensation expense for our financial accounting staff. We believe that we will reduce accounting expenses
for comparable accounting services by at least $500,000 per annum.
(3) Equity based compensation, which primarily consisted of restricted stock grants and warrants to the Company’s executives and third-party
consultants. For the year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, these amounts were $1,676,303 and $1,699,935 respectively. The 2021 annual amount
includes compensation to our employees and approximately $689,776 and the remaining amount for compensation to certain consultants that
received equity compensation through warrants. While we expect to continue to use equity-based compensation in future years such awards are
not expected to continue, generally, at such levels on a recurring basis.
(4) Lease Disputes, which primarily consisted of legal and related costs in connection with the Simpsonville litigation described under Item 3 - Legal
Proceedings. For the year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, these amounts were approximately $160,000 and $750,000, respectively. We expect
that these expenses will be significantly lower in 2022 as the Offering Costs related to our AIU Merger and the lease dispute related to the litigation
regarding litigation regarding a MCA facility located in Simpsonville, South Carolina, which we expect will not require significant additional legal
fees.
(5) Investment Banking Fees. We paid our financial consultant $2.6 million for fees regarding the AIU Merger, which included the identification of
STI and consulting services regarding the merger and public market capital access.
The following summarizes the adjustments summarized above:

Selling, General
and Administrative Expense Amount

Total per 2021 Audited Financial Statements $ 7,393,834
Adjustments:
Development costs and expenses for the innovative services 573,000
Accounting and finance consulting expenses 815,000
Equity based compensation 689,776
Lease Dispute 160,000
Investment banking fees for the AIU Merger 2,600,000
Total adjustments 4,837,776

Adjusted 2021 Selling, General and Administrative Expenses $ 2,556,058

Certain Key MCA Statistical Data For the year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020:
The following table presents a summary of our operations of our residential care business for the year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, which do
not include corporate overhead or our innovative care businesses such as Clearday at Home, our cryogenic air quality system or the development
and uses of robotic services or our adult daycare operations:

Year ended, Increase/(Decrease)



December
31, 2021

December
31, 2020 Amount Percent

Revenues:
MCA Resident Facilities $ 12,603,346 12,594,909 8,437 0.07%
Operating expenses:
Wages and benefits 9,276,098 8,636,227 639,871 7.41%
MCA facility operating
expenses 5,553,826 5,086,510 467,316 9.18%

Lease expenses (1) 4,885,958 4,545,660 340,298 7.49%
Depreciation and
amortization 465,089 542,427 (77,388) (14.26)%

Total operating expenses 20,180,971 18,810,824 1,370,147 7.35%
Operating loss (7,577,625) (6,215,915) (1,361,710) (21.9)%
Other (income) expenses
Interest 689,211 472,954 216,257 45.72%

Impairment(2) 4,396,228 - 4,396,228 100.00%

Other (income) expenses(3) (4,505,496) (169,751) (4,335,745) (2,554)%
Total other/(income)
expenses 579,943 303,203 276,740 91.27%
Net Loss (8,157,568) (6,519,118) 1,638,450 (25.13)%
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(1) Lease expenses includes the accrual of rent and related amounts that have not been paid to the lessor of the Simpsonville facility in connection
with a dispute described in Item 3 - Legal Proceedings based on the amounts stated in the applicable lease agreement.

(2) Impairment of Right of Use assets (leases) in New Braunfels, Naples, and Simpsonville.
(3) Other (income) expense includes the amount arising from the forgiveness of PPP loans, HHS grants and ERTC credits received.
MCA expenses are primarily related to the MCA facilities and providing care to the residents, including:

● wages and benefits, including wages and wage-related expenses, such as health insurance, workers’ compensation insurance and other
benefits for the Company MCA employees, including MCA management;

● MCA facility operating expenses, including utilities, housekeeping, dietary, maintenance, regulatory requirements, insurance and
administrative costs and salaries, including the compensation to persons who develop, market and provide our innovative products and
services;

● lease expenses for four of the five MCA facilities;
● other general and administrative expenses, principally comprised of general management including the Company’s headquarters, general

insurance, legal, accounting and investments in technology;
● depreciation and amortization expense on buildings and furniture and equipment;
● interest expenses for loans and other financings related to the MCA businesses, including loans to one lessor of three of the MCA

facilities and the mortgage financing of the one owned MCA facility; and
● Other expenses for the development of technology used in supporting operations and next generation of tech-enabled non-acute care and

wellness solutions.
Revenues. Our consolidated revenues increased by approximately 1.8% or $226,146 primarily due to due to additional revenues during 2021 from our
adult day care which we acquired at the end of May, 2021, resulting in approximately seven months of revenues from this facility during 2021 and
the change in our MCA Revenues. Our MCA revenues during 2021 increased slightly, $8,437, over our MCA revenues for 2020, primarily due to
increased revenues for the four MCA facilities that we continue to operate, offset by the loss of revenues resulting by the transfer of operating
management for our Simpsonville facility, in the fourth quarter of 2021 and the decrease of the revenues in such facilities during the second quarter
2021. Accordingly, during the fourth quarter of 2021, we operated 4 facilities compared with 5 facilities during 2020.
Operating Expense. Our consolidated operating expenses increased by approximately 24.2% or $4,388,220 to $22,487,970 during 2021 from
$18,099,750 during 2020. Our operating expenses are primarily allocated to the MCA wages and benefits and MCA facilities operating expenses and
MCA lease expenses, which amounts accounted for approximately 87.7% or $19,715,882 of such expenses during 2021 compared to approximately
100% during 2020, an increase of approximately 8.0% or $1,447,000. MCA wages and benefits increased by approximately 7.4%, or approximately
$639,871 primarily due to a need to hire additional employees as the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and the use of agency fees and overtime
compensation to maintain staffing levels. MCA facility total operating expenses increased by approximately 9.2% or $467,316, primarily due to (1)
the reclassification of some operating expenses into Selling General & Administrative expenses (2) offset in part by the reduction of operating
expenses because, in the fourth quarter, we transferred the operations and obligations of our Simpsonville facility resulting in our operating
expenses for the Simpsonville facility were reduced to a specified limit during the last quarter of 2021, which did not including the rental expense
which was included for the full annual period. As such, the decrease of operating expenses allocated to the Simpsonville facility reflected only the
operating expenses such as compensation and insurance during the fourth quarter. MCA lease expenses also increased due to operations and
related amounts. Operating expenses not allocated to such MCA expenses increased by approximately $2,772,088, primarily because of increased
expenses related to our digital platform, insurance, legal and accounting costs.
SG&A Expenses. Our consolidated SGA Expenses increased by approximately 34.0% or $1,877,141 to $7,393,834 during 2021 from $5,516,693 during
2020, primarily due to the fees paid to our financial consultant or investment banker for the AIU Merger of approximately $2.8 million.
Research & Development. Our consolidated research and development expenses decreased by approximately 100% or $1,741,177 to $0 during 2021
from $1,741,177 during 2020, primarily because our developmental costs regarding our Clearday at Home services was completed in 2020 and
additional development during 2021 that was capitalized and not included in research and development expenses.
Depreciation and amortization. Our consolidated depreciation and amortization expenses decreased by approximately 11.9% or $71,566 to $529,748
during 2021 from $601,314 during 2020, primarily because of the decrease in such expenses allocated to MCA facilities, which included a decrease of
approximately 14.26%, or $77,388 primarily due to a decrease of the depreciable base after giving effect to the impairment charge, offset in part by
additional depreciation amounts related to our headquarters building and related assets as well as the amortization of capitalized expenses related to
our digital platform.
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Interest. Our consolidated interest expense increased by approximately 192.12% or $689,211 to $1,381,670 during 2021 from $472,954 during 2020.
Our interest expense is primarily allocated to the MCA, which amounts accounted for approximately 50% or $689,211 of such expenses during 2021



compared to approximately 100% during 2020, an increase of approximately 45.7% or $216,257. The increase in MCA allocated interest is primarily
due to our high interest loans financings that were incurred to fund operating expenses and the development costs for our innovative products and
services in advance of amounts received from the Internal Revenue Service under the employee retention tax credit (“ERTC”) program which was
delayed. The interest expense that was not allocated to MCA related primarily to the mortgage on our headquarters building and other real estate
assets.
Impairment. The amount of impairments required under GAAP increased by 100% or 4,396,228 primarily to our MCA facilities in New Braunfels,
Texas; Naples, Florida; and Simpsonville, South Carolina. This increase is a non-cash expenses and related solely to analysis required under GAAP
for long lived assets as described in footnote 4 to our 2021 audited financial statements included in this Report.
Other (income) expenses. Our consolidated other (income) expenses increased significantly by approximately 2,554% or $4,335,745 primarily due to
ERTC grants, and HHS grants.
Gain on sale of investment. The amounts related to gain on sale of investment or $1,172,151 during 2021 and $0 are primarily due to the sale of a
property investment in 2021.
Unrealized gain/(loss) on equity investments. The amounts related to unrealized gain/(loss) on equity investments of $0 in 2021 and $1,284,000
during 2020, are primarily due to the accounting for our investment in STI common stock during 2020, which was merged or eliminated during 2021
at the closing of the AIU Merger.
Concentration of Risk-Revenues.
The Company’s revenue for the year ended 2021 and 2020 consist of operations from our MCA residential facilities and our adult daycare facility in
four states (three states as of December 31, 2021). The Company expects to continue to be dependent on revenues from the MCA communities until
the other planned businesses have revenues. Any failure of the MCA communities to continue these businesses would significantly and adversely
impact the Company. The MCA revenues are primarily private pay and do not rely on reimbursements from Medicare or Medicaid. The Company
expects that such concentration will continue until revenues are realized from its Clearday Clubs and digital service Clearday at Home. The
Company acquired an adult day care on May 28, 2021, which generated approximately $242,000 in revenue for the year ended December 31, 2021.
Non-Core Assets
The Company considers all its assets that are not used in the non-acute care and wellness industry as non-core assets. The non-core assets as of
December 31, 2021 are:

● One hotel property that suspended its operations since March, 2020 due to COVID-19 and which was sold on October 1, 2021;
● Commercial real estate investments; and
● Investments in land.

The Company continues to evaluate the manner to sell or otherwise monetize such assets. One of our land investments is subject to a purchase and
sale agreement for its sale that was entered into as of April 4, 2022.
Disposition Activities
During the year ended December 31, 2021 the Company disposed of the following non-core assets:

● Transferred one hotel property to the lender;
● Sold one other hotel property; and
● Sold our investment in a medical office building.
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The COVID-19 pandemic has slowed the ability of the Company to dispose of its remaining non-core assets and lowered the expected price of such
remaining assets. The Company recently has received an offer to sell one of its non-core assets, an investment in land, and expect to continue its
efforts to sell its non-core assets to fund its operations.
During 2022, we entered into an agreement to sell one of our non-core assets, land located in Leander, Texas for approximately $1.8 million. The
closing is subject to specified conditions, including land use and zoning approvals for the purchaser’s planned development of this land parcel.
Revenues of the Non-Core Assets.
The Company primarily derived revenues from Non-Core Assets from rents and related charges.
Liquidity and Capital Resources.
Clearday requires cash to fund its current operations and continued innovation of non-acute care and wellness services. As of December 31, 2021,
Clearday has an accumulated deficit of $65,208,327, loss from continued operations of $(21,981,244) and losses from cash flows from operating
activities in the amount of $(11,832,919). The COVID-19 pandemic has interrupted the non-core sale process and, to a certain extent, reduced the
expected net proceeds.
Net cash from investing activities of continuing operations of $(493,451) and net cash from financing activities was $3,208,648 due mostly to the
proceeds from sale of redeemable preferred shares and member units in subsidiaries.
We do not have sufficient cash resources from the net cash flows of operations from our current businesses to sustain our operations for the next
twelve months and will rely on the continued sale of non-core assets, tax credits, government sponsored financing programs and related amounts,
and raising capital through the sale of our securities.
The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic could continue to have a material adverse effect on Clearday’s business, results of operations, financial
condition, liquidity and prospects in the near-term and beyond 2021. The ultimate impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on Clearday’s results of
operations, financial condition and cash flows is highly uncertain, and cannot currently be accurately predicted. Clearday’s results of operations,
financial condition and cash flows are dependent on future developments, including the duration of the pandemic and the related length of
Clearday’s impact on the global economy, such as a lengthy or severe recession or any other negative trend in the U.S. or global economy and any
new information that may emerge concerning the COVID-19 pandemic and the actions to contain it or treat Clearday’s impact, which at the present
time are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted with any accuracy.
Clearday expects that the following factors will affect our future liquidity:
● Operating revenues are expected to be affected, primarily because of

- Our ability to increase residents through increased sales efforts and increased capacity as regulators are re-evaluating the number of
beds required for COVID-19 and related quarantine areas;

- Increased revenues from adult daycare, including a full year of revenues from our acquired adult daycare facility;
- Our ability to increase revenues by providing certain additional products and services to residents, and clients through our Clearday

Direct program, including our robotic service that we have begun to deploy in our Westover facility in April, 2022.
● Operating costs are expected to be affected, primarily because of:

- Our ability to reduce the staff to resident ratios in the post-COVID-19 environment and that our Clearday Clubs require less staff to
client ratio;

- Our ability to reduce staff turnover through better training and recruitment;
- The expiration of the Employee Retention Credit under the CARES Act,
- Increased pressures on wages and agency fees due to industry staffing shortages;



- Additional interest expenses related to our high interest loans that we have incurred during 2022, offset in part by expected
refinancing of certain mortgages and debt and the receipt of other financings such as SBA sponsored programs and additional
amounts that we expect to receive through tax credits;

- Reduced operating expenses related to our Simpsonville memory care facility.
● Selling and general administrative costs will be effected and are expected to decrease, primarily because:

○ We expect to reduce our reliance on consultants that have a higher cost than its employees that have assumed such functions and
work; and

○ The significant product development costs that are recorded as operating expenses are expected to remain consistent or be lower as
the Clearday at Home and Clearday Clubs business models, strategies and marketing plans have been developed.

Improved because of no merger costs We will have additional costs and expenses incurred in the merger, including fees to our financial advisor
and costs generally of being a public company.
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MCA Initiatives.
As business operations for residential care facilities began to normalize in the COVID-19 environment, we continued our evaluation of our
businesses. We expect to:

● Continue our sales and marketing training to maintain and increase resident or census occupancy percentages per available room in
our facilities maintained after December 31, 2021;

● Increase revenues per resident through the sale of innovative products and services, including upgraded or premium Clearday rooms
and digital and robotic services, as well as other revenue opportunities;

● Use innovative services such as digital platforms and robotic service to empower and enhance caregiver efficiency and effectiveness
which are intended to reduce employee / caregiver stress and turnover.

During the latter part of the third quarter of 2021, MCA began marketing its “Calm Rooms” initially at our Little Rock facility. Calm Rooms
incorporate Clearday Restore therapies and other premium services and are able to charge a premium monthly fee. There are no significant revenues
from such sales in such quarter.
COVID-19. The pandemic and the regulatory responses and additional initiatives have and will likely continue to have a material effect to
Company’s core businesses and operations.
Funding History.
Clearday has historically financed its operations primarily through the sale of its equity securities in private placements. Clearday has incurred
negative cash flows from operations. On December 31, 2021, Clearday had an aggregate amount of cash and restricted cash of $0.9 million and a
deficit of $48.1 million.
Cash Flows.
The following table ($ in 000) shows a summary of Clearday’s cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020:

Year ended December 31,
2021 2020

Net cash used in operating activities of continuing operations $ (11,832,919) (8,977,189)
Net cash used in operating activities for discontinued operations 9,222,731 (837,446)
Net cash used in operating activities (2,610,188) (9,814,636)

Net cash used in investing activities of continuing operations (493,451) (353,104)
Net cash provided by investing activities of discontinued operations - 16,101,584
Net cash provided by investing activities (493,451) 15,748,480
Net cash provided by financing activities of continuing operations - 4,884,808
Net cash used in financing activities of discontinued operations 3,208,648 (13,512,806)
Net cash (used)/provided in financing activities 3,208,648 (8,627,998)
Net (decrease)/Increase in cash and restricted cash $ 84,394 (2,694,155)

We expect that our net cash flow will be subject to the same adjustments that we discussed above under Results of Operations - SG&A Expenses.
Operating Activities.
Net cash used in operating activities was $2.6 million for year ended December 31, 2021, and $9.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2020. Net
cash used in continuing operations for the year ended December 31, 2021 resulted from a net loss of $19.6 million adjusted for certain non-cash
items including: (i) an increase in stock-based compensation for certain officers, directors and consultative services of $.7 million (ii) depreciation
and amortization of $1 million, (iii) $1.9 million of non-cash lease expenses and $7.4 million of Right of Use Asset Impairment losses relating to
Clearday’s Right of Use Assets, (iv) a $4.4 million increase in impairment losses for our MCA Naples facility, (v) loan forgiveness of $1.6 million.
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Investing Activities.
Net cash provided by investing activities was $.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2021, and net cash provided of $15.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2020. Net cash used for year ended December 31, 2021, consists primarily of investment activities in payments for capitalized
software costs of $1.6 million, $1.4 million in cash from sale of property & equipment.
Financing Activities.
Net cash provided by financing activities was $3.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2021, and net cash used of $8.6 million for year ended
December 31, 2020. Net cash provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2021, consisted primarily of net proceeds received
from the new loans is $12.9 million (i) cash in-flow from the sale of preferred and member interests in non-controlling entity of $3.3 million; (ii)
repayment of long-term debt in the amount of $13.3 million.
HHS Government Grants
The Company recognizes income for government grants when grant proceeds are received and the Company determines it is reasonably assured
that it will comply with the conditions of the grant, the Company will recognize the distributions received in the income statement on a systematic
and rational basis. The Company will estimate the fair value of the grant using the applicable HHS definitions of health care related expenses and
lost revenue attributable to COVID-19, considering the Company’s projected and actual results at the end of each reporting period.
Upon conclusion that AIU is reasonably assured that it has met the conditions of the grant, it must measure the amount of unreimbursed health-
care related expenses and lost revenue related to COVID-19 at the end of each reporting period and release that amount from Refundable Advance
to Other Revenue. During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company has received grants amounting to $289,487 and total grant received so
far by the Company amounts to $675,868.
Contractual Obligations and Commitments.



See the “Commitment and Contingencies” section within Note 7 of the audited consolidated financial statements within this Quarterly analysis,
which information is incorporated herein by reference
Legal Proceedings.
Clearday is subject to legal proceedings. The disclosures in this part of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations are provided under Item 3 - Legal Proceedings.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements.
Clearday is not a party to any off-balance sheet transactions. Clearday has no guarantees or obligations other than those which arise out of normal
business operations.
Cash and Restricted Cash.
Cash, consisting of short-term, highly liquid investments and money market funds with original maturities of three months or less at the date of
purchase, are carried at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates market.
Restricted cash as of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020 includes cash that Clearday deposited as security for obligations arising from
property taxes, property insurance and replacement reserve Clearday is required to establish escrows as required by Clearday’s mortgages andproperty taxes, property insurance and replacement reserve Clearday is required to establish escrows as required by Clearday’s mortgages and
certain resident security deposits. Restricted cash does not include the cash deposited of approximately $2,764,000 with the trial court in
connection with certain litigation described in Item 3 Legal Proceedings.
Critical Accounting Policies and Significant Judgments and Estimates.
The preparation of the audited consolidated financial statements requires our management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On a regular basis, we
evaluate these estimates. These estimates are based on management’s historical industry experience and on various other assumptions that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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For a description of the accounting policies that, in management’s opinion, involve the most significant application of judgment or involve complex
estimation and which could, if different judgment or estimates were made, materially affect our reported financial position, results of operations, or
cash flows, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition, Results of Operations - Critical Accounting Policies and
Estimates” and the notes to our audited consolidated financial statements included in this Quarterly analysis.
During the year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, there were no significant changes in our accounting policies and estimates other than the
newly adopted accounting standards that are disclosed in Note 2 to our audited consolidated financial statements.
Impact of Climate Change.
Concerns about climate change have resulted in various treaties, laws and regulations that are intended to limit carbon emissions and address other
environmental concerns. These and other laws may cause energy or other costs at The Company’s communities to increase. In the long-term, the
Company believes any such increased costs will be passed through and paid by the Company’s residents and other customers in higher charges
for The Company’s services. However, in the short-term, these increased costs, if material in amount, could materially and adversely affect the
Company’s financial condition and results of operations.
Some observers believe severe weather in different parts of the world over the last few years is evidence of global climate change. Severe weather
has had and may continue to have an adverse effect on certain senior living communities The Company operates. Flooding caused by rising seas
levels and severe weather events, including hurricanes, tornadoes and widespread fires may have an adverse effect on the senior living
communities the Company operates. The Company mitigates these risks by procuring insurance coverage The Company believes adequate to
protect the Company from material damages and losses resulting from the consequences of losses caused by climate change. However, the
Company cannot be sure that its mitigation efforts will be sufficient or that future storms, rising sea levels or other changes that may occur due to
future climate change could not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial results.
Market Risk
We are exposed to various market risks, including changes in interest rates. Market risk is the potential loss arising from adverse changes in market
rates and prices. We do not enter into derivatives or other financial instruments for trading or speculation purposes. Our money market investments
have no exposure to the auction rate securities market.
At December 31, 2021, we had approximately $0 invested in a money market account yielding a nominal bank rate.
ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
We are a “smaller reporting company,” and, accordingly, we are not required to provide the information required by this Item.
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
The consolidated financial statements required by this Item, together with the report of our independent registered public accounting firm, begin on
page F-1, immediately following the signatures to this annual report. Please refer to Item 15 of this report for an index of the consolidated financial
statements included in this annual report.
ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
We have changed our public accounting firms from and after the September 9, 2021 closing date of the AIU Merger. The following reports that we
have filed are incorporated by reference:

● Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 5, 2021 regarding the change of our accountants from Marcum LLP to Friedman LLP.
● Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 3, 2021 regarding the resignation of Friedman LLP as our accountants.
● Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 14, 2021 regarding our engagement of Turner, Stone & Company, L.L.P of December 10,

2021.
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ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures; Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures.
The Company’s management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer (our principal executive officer and
principal financial officer, respectively), has evaluated our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the
Exchange Act as of the end of the period covered by this Report. Any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can
provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired controls objectives. Any “material weaknesses” in the Company’s internal controls
may arise because of the internal control environment of the Company.
Based upon that evaluation, the Company’s principal executive officer and principal financial officer have concluded that the Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures were ineffective. Specifically, the Company does not have adequate segregation of duties that adequately restrict user and
privileged access to certain financial applications, programs, and data to appropriate company personnel; do not adequately limit access to
electronic payment systems for authorized expenditures; and have inadequate cyber controls regarding the protection of our data and restricting
data changes affecting financial IT applications and underlying accounting records are identified, tested, authorized and implemented appropriately.



Management has identified these weaknesses and have adopted a program to remediate such weaknesses.
Remediation Plan.
We instituted efforts to remediate these concerns and enhance our internal control environment, including increasing the number and skill set of its
accounting and financial staff and reducing our reliance on third party accounting consultants. We to remediate these issues by the end the second
quarter of 2022. However, any failure to maintain effective controls could result in significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and cause the
Company to fail to meet the Company’s periodic reporting obligations or result in material misstatements in the Company’s financial statements.
The Company may also be required to incur costs to improve its internal control system and hire additional personnel. This could negatively impact
the Company’s results of operations.
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
There has been changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during
the year ended December 31, 2021 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting, except as noted below.
The financial and management controls of the Company of the Company during the third quarter of 2021 have changed as a result of the AIU
Merger. The officers and directors of AIU became the officers and directors of the Company as of the effective date of the merger and the
accounting and financial management processes of AIU became the accounting and management processes of the Company.
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
ITEM 9C. DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS
Not Applicable

PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Directors and Executive Officers
The following table sets forth certain information regarding those individuals currently serving as our directors (or nominated to serve as a director)
and executive officers as of April 15, 2022:

Name Age Position
Independent Directors:
Elizabeth M. Caveness (2*)(3) 57 Director
Alan H. Channing (1)(2)(3*) 77 Director
Jeffrey A. Coleman (1)(3) 46 Director
Richard M. Levychin (1*) 63 Director
Executive Directors:
BJ Parrish 50 Director and Chief Operating Officer
James T. Walesa 62 Director and Chief Executive Officer
Other Executive Officers:
John R. Bergeron 65 Executive Vice President / Chief Financial Officer
Linda Carrasco 65 Executive Vice President / President of Memory Care America
Richard M. Morris 61 Executive Vice President / General Counsel
Gary Sawina 67 Executive Vice President / Director of Real Estate

(1) Member of our Audit Committee.
(2) Member of our Compensation Committee.
(3) Member of our Governance and Nominating Committee.
* Chair of such committee
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Each of our directors, including our current nominee, was nominated based on the assessment of our Nominating Committee and our Board that he
has demonstrated: an ability to make meaningful contributions to our Board; independence; strong communication and analytical skills; and a
reputation for honesty and ethical conduct. Our Board consists of, and seeks to continue to include, persons whose diversity of skills, experience
and background are complementary to those of our other directors.
James T. Walesa
Chair of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Walesa has served as the Chairman of Clearday’s board of directors and its Chief Executive Officer since the closing of the AIU Merger. He has
been the Chairman and CEO of AIU, now known as Clearday Operations, Inc., since its formation. Mr. Walesa has been part of the managers or
otherwise active in the business of Clearday and its predecessors. Mr. Walesa has more than three decades of experience in financial services with
an emphasis on the real estate, energy and care and wellness industries. In 1988, Mr. Walesa founded the Asset Management & Protection
Corporation (AMPC), where he currently serves as its Principal, a position he has held since 1988. Since September 4, 2019 to December, 2021 (when
he retired as a securities broker), Mr. Walesa was a registered representative with Arkadios Capital LLC, a SEC full service broker dealer, resident in
their office in Park Ridge, Illinois. After such retirement, Mr. Walesa has directed his business activities to Clearday. Mr. Walesa previously served
on the advisory board of Nasdaq-traded Bank Financial Corp. (Nasdaq: BFIN) and currently serves as a member of the board of directors of
Gadsden Properties, Inc. (OTC PINK: GADS), and the chairman of the board of Citadel Exploration, Inc. (OTC PINK: COIL) and a member of the
board of directors of SitePro, a private company. He was the Chicago chairman for the National Multiple Sclerosis Society and is a member of the
Alzheimer’s Alois Society in recognition of his leadership and support of the Alzheimer’s Association to prevent and cure dementia related
disease. Mr. Walesa received a B.S. in Business Administration from Rockford University. Mr. Walesa was selected to serve on the board of
Clearday due to his expertise in the real estate industry and his investment and capital market experience. Mr. Walesa was a director and officer of
Clearday when its subsidiary filed for bankruptcy protection during July 2019, which is described under “Description of Business-Legal
Proceedings”.
Clearday believes that Mr. Walesa’s knowledge of the business of Clearday, including his relationship with the Clearday stockholders, his
negotiation of the merger agreement and his knowledge of the longevity care and wellness market qualify him to serve as the Chairman of the board
of directors of the combined company.
BJ Parrish
Director and Chief Operating Officer
Mr. Parrish has served as a member of the Clearday’s board of directors and its Chief Operating Officer since the closing of the AIU Merger. He has
been a director and the Chief Operating Officer of AIU, now known as Clearday Operations, Inc., since its formation. Mr. Parrish has served as the
Chief Financial Officer and Secretary of Cibolo Creek Partners, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, (“Cibolo Creek”), since 2005 and a Director
since 2013 and, in such capacity, was integral to the investment and operations of the businesses that were acquired by Clearday. Mr. Parrish is



responsible for the financial management of Cibolo Creek and the investments of which it serves as general partner or manager. Mr. Parrish is also
instrumental in the raising of capital through both the equity and debt markets for all of Cibolo Creek’s investment ventures. Prior to Cibolo Creek,
Mr. Parrish served as the Vice President of Cibolo Creek’s predecessor company, Midland Red Oak Realty Inc. where he was involved in the
formation of a $100 million credit facility, as well the acquisition and disposition of over $200 million worth of commercial real estate assets across
the Southwest United States. Prior to Midland Red Oak Realty Inc., Mr. Parrish was a financial analyst and a manager of investor relations with
Southwest Royalties, Inc., a privately held oil and gas exploration and production company. Mr. Parrish received a B.B.A. in finance and an M.B.A.,
both from the University of Texas Permian Basin. Mr. Parrish is also the Interim Chief Executive Officer and a member of the board of directors of
Gadsden Properties, Inc. (OTC: GADS). Mr. Parrish was selected to serve on the board of GPI due to his expertise in the real estate industry and his
investment and capital market experience. Mr. Parrish was a director and officer of Clearday when its subsidiary filed for bankruptcy protection
during July 2019, which is described under “Description of Business-Clearday-Legal Proceedings”.
Clearday believes that Mr. Parrish’s knowledge of the business of Clearday, and his knowledge of the longevity care and wellness market as well as
his leadership in the sale of the non-core assets qualify him to serve as a member of the board of directors of the combined company.
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Elizabeth M. Caveness
Director
Beth Caveness has served as a director, the Chair of our Compensation Committee and a member of our Governance and Nominating Committee
since the closing of the AIU Merger. Beth Caveness, in 2001, founded Village Pharmacy of Hampstead Inc., an independent pharmacy located in
Hampstead, North Carolina. She grew the business to four pharmacies and sold three to a pharmacy chain or other pharmacists. Dr. Caveness is
active in advocacy and works on a state and national level to improve pharmacy. She is a member of National Community Pharmacists Association
(“NCPA”), North Carolina Association of Pharmacists and Community Pharmacy Enhanced Services Networks and serves on the Independent
Pharmacy Network committee of PillPAC, a political action committee for the NCAP and on the advisory board for the Pender County, North
Carolina Health Department. Dr. Caveness received her B.S. Biochemistry from North Carolina State University in 1986, a B.S. Pharmacy from the
University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill in 1990 and her PharmD. from the University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill in 2005.
Clearday believes that Dr. Caveness’ experience as a pharmacist of almost 35 years and her knowledge and advocacy of the evolutions in the
businesses that provide pharmaceuticals, nutraceuticals and related products in the longevity care and wellness industry qualify her to serve as a
member of the board of directors of the combined company.
Alan H. Channing
Director
Alan Channing has served as a director, member of our Audit Committee, member of our Compensation Committee, Chair of our Governance and
Nominating Committee since the closing of the AIU Merger. Alan Channing became the principal officer of Channing Consulting Group, LLC
following his retirement as President and CEO of the Sinai Health System, Chicago, Illinois, in 2014, a role he held for ten years. Sinai Health System,
a safety net provider, is an integrated delivery system located on Chicago’s west side. Under Mr. Channing’s leadership, Sinai achieved national
recognition for clinical quality, community engagement and benefit, addressing disparities and creating the concept of “pre-primary” care. Mr.
Channing has been the CEO of several large teaching hospitals including Wishard Memorial in Indianapolis, Elmhurst Hospital Center in Queens,
New York, and the renowned Bellevue Hospital Center in Manhattan. Channing has served as a resource to the Ohio Hospital Association, the
Cleveland Center for Health Affairs, Greater New York Hospital Association and the Hospital Association of New York State. He has testified before
the US Congress, the Ohio Senate, and both houses of the Illinois legislature. He served as chairman of the Illinois Hospital Association during a
challenging legislative year and as board chairman of Family Health Network, a Medicaid managed care company. He serves as an advisor to
several healthcare organizations including: AVIA Health which focuses on digital transformation for health care providers; 330 Partners which
advises Federally Qualified Healthcare Clinics (FQHCs) on strategy, partnerships, and operations; and Genesis Orthopedics & Sports Medicine, a
Chicago based orthopedic practice. Mr. Channing is active in many charities. He is a member of the Board of Directors of Medical Home Network
(MHN), a not-for-profit collaborative that unites provider communities and diverse healthcare entities around a common goal: to redesign
healthcare delivery and transform the way care is managed at the practice level. MHN began by focusing on Maternal and Child Health on the West
and South Sides of Chicago. From October 2015 to present is an Algebra and Trig tutor with the New York City Public Schools. Mr. Channing
graduated in 1968 with a B.S. Engineering /Industrial Management from the University of Cincinnati and in 2001 with a M.S. in Hospital
Management from The Ohio State University where he retains an assistant professorship.
Clearday believes that Mr. Channing’s experience and knowledge of approximately five decades in sophisticated hospital systems including his
knowledge of the longevity care and wellness qualify him to serve as a member of the board of directors of the combined company.
Jeffrey A. Coleman
Director
Jeffrey A. Coleman has served as a director, a member of our Audit Committee and a member of our Governance and Nominating Committee since
the closing of the AIU Merger. Jeffrey A. Coleman is an attorney with 20 years’ experience in litigation and transactional work with a focus on elder
and geriatric issues. This work has seen him represent an array of clients in his field, including professional fiduciaries, businesses, lenders, and
individuals. He has also represented businesses as general counsel, including work as general counsel for a publicly traded company, Citadel
Exploration, Inc. In his role as general counsel of such company, he was responsible for risk analysis, negotiation, solving operational challenges,
and successfully-completing acquisitions and divestitures. Mr. Coleman graduated from the University of California at Santa Barbara with high
honors in 1997, and received a J.D. from Fordham University School of Law in 2000.
Clearday believes that Mr. Coleman’s experience, including his role as the general counsel of a public company, and almost 20 years of legal
experience qualify him to serve as a member of the board of directors of the combined company.
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Richard Levychin, CPA, CGMA
Director
Richard Levychin has served as a director and Chair of our Audit Committee since his appointment on January 31, 2022. Richard Levychin is a
Managing Partner in the Commercial Audit and Assurance practice of Galleros Robinson, Certified Public Accountants, LLP, a mid-sized CPA and
Advisory firm with offices in New York, New Jersey, Florida, and the Philippines, where he focuses on both privately and publicly held companies.
Prior to taking this position in October 2018, Richard was the managing partner of KBL, LLP, a PCAOB certified independent registered accounting
firm, since 1994. Mr. Levychin has over 35 years of accounting, auditing, business advisory services and tax experience working with both privately
owned and public entities in various industries including media, entertainment, real estate, manufacturing, not-for-profit, technology, retail,
technology, and professional services. His experience also includes expertise with SEC filings, initial public offerings, and compliance with
regulatory bodies. As a business adviser, he advises companies, helping them to identify and define their business and financial objectives, and
then provides them with the on-going personal attention necessary to help them achieve their established goals. Mr. Levychin is a member the
Board of Directors of Pershing Resources Company, Inc. (OTCMKTS: PSGR) and a member of the Board of Directors and Chairperson the Audit



Committee of AgriFORCE Growing Systems Ltd. (NasdaqCM: AGRI).
Mr. Levychin has written articles on a wide range of topics, which have been featured in several periodicals including Dollars and Sense, New York
Enterprise Report, Black Enterprise Magazine, Forbes, Business Insider, and The Network Journal. He has also conducted seminars on a wide range
of business topics including SEC matters and taxation for several organizations including the Black Enterprise Entrepreneurs Conference, the
Entrepreneurs’ Organization (New York chapter) and the Learning Annex. Mr. Levychin is a member of several organizations including the New York
State Society of Certified Public Accountants, the National Association of Tax Professionals, and the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (AICPA). Richard was a founding member of the AICPA’s National Diversity and Inclusion Commission. He has also served as a
member of the Governing Council of the AICPA, which is the governing body that oversees and sets policies for the AICPA. Richard is a member
and a former board member of the New York Chapter of the Entrepreneurs’ Organization (“EO”), a dynamic, global network of more than 14,000
business owners in over 50 countries.
In 2018 Mr. Levychin was a recipient of the 5 Chamber Alliance MWBE Award from the Manhattan Chamber of Commerce. In 2016 Richard was
presented with the 2016 Arthur Ashe Leadership Award. In 2015 Richard was presented by his alma mater Baruch College with the Baruch College
Alumni Association’s “Alumni Leadership Award for Business”. In 2013 Richard received the title of Best Accountant from The New York
Enterprise Report. Mr. Levychin is a past winner of The Network Journal’s prestigious “40 Under 40” award.
He is a graduate of Baruch College, where he received a Bachelors in Business Administration Degree (Accounting).
We have determined that Mr. Levychin is well suited to serve on our Board and chair our Audit Committee due to his decades of experience as a
member of a PCAOB certified independent registered accounting firms, including decades of expertise with SEC filings and public offerings.
John R. Bergeron, CPA
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
John Bergeron has served as our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since December 8, 2021. In such capacity, he is our principal
financial officer and principal accounting officer. Mr. Bergeron provided consulting services to us during November and December, 2021. Mr.
Bergeron was also the Chief Financial Officer of Spine Injury Solutions, Inc., since October 2011 and one of their directors since July 2010 until the
date that such company was sold, March 30, 2022. From May 2008 through September 2014, he served as President of Jolpeg Inc., a private firm that
consults on financial matters in service industries. From May 2002 until May 2008, Mr. Bergeron served as Divisional Controller of Able
Manufacturing, a division of NCI Group, Inc, where his responsibilities included financial reporting, budgeting and Sarbanes-Oxley Act compliance.
Prior to that, Mr. Bergeron worked as controller of different internet companies and as an accounting manager for several other private firms. He has
also worked as an auditor for Arthur Andersen. Mr. Bergeron has more than thirty years’ experience in financial management and corporate
development of manufacturing and service industry companies. He has extensive experience in financial reporting of public companies, risk
management, business process re-engineering, and structuring and implementing accounting procedures and internal control programs for
Sarbanes-Oxley Act compliance. Mr. Bergeron is a Certified Public Accountant. He received a Bachelor of Business Administration in Accounting
from Lamar University in 1979.

Linda L. Carrasco
Executive Vice President and President Memory Care America LLC

Ms. Carrasco has served as our Executive Vice President since the closing of the AIU Merger and has served as the President of our subsidiary
MCA, Clearday’s residential memory care facility business, since July 2019, when she was promoted to that position from the Executive Director of
the MCA’s Westover Hills, Texas facility, a position she held since June, 2015. Prior to joining Clearday, Ms. Carrasco was the Executive Director-
Sales specialist of Emeritus Senior Living in San Antonio, Texas and Oklahoma. Ms. Carrasco has more than 35 years of experience in skilled care
residential facilities, including a license social worker (LBSW) for Town and Country Manor Nursing and Rehabilitation from 2010 to 2011, and
Executive Director and Marketing Director of Asista Corporation from 1998 to 2010, and Manager and Regional Manager of Texas and Arizona of
Southwest Health Management from 1994 to 1998. Ms. Carrasco holds a B.S. from Southwest Texas State University and holds the Assisted Living
/ Personal Care Management Certificate License, the Texas State Board of Social Workers Examiners Licensed Baccalaureate and is a
Certified/Qualified Activities Director.

43

Richard M. Morris
Executive Vice President and General Counsel

Richard M. Morris has served as Clearday’s Executive Vice President and General Counsel since the closing of the AIU Merger and served in such
capacity for AIU, now known as Clearday Operations, Inc., since January 1, 2020. Mr. Morris has been practicing attorney since 1990, including
being a Corporate partner with Herrick, Feinstein LLP, New York from 2002 to 2018 where he focused on securities and other regulatory matters; and
as a Corporate partner with Allegaert Berger & Vogel LLP, New York, New York, since November 2018 to January 2020. In such positions with law
firms, Mr. Morris was Clearday’s primary corporate and transaction counsel. While serving as Clearday’s General Counsel since January, 2020, Mr.
Morris continues to practice law as a partner of Wilson Williams LLC, a corporate transaction boutique firm in its New York City office. Prior to
becoming a lawyer, Mr. Morris was an auditor with the Commodities Exchange, Inc. in New York and later focused on operations and financial
management at Kidder Peabody & Co. He also was the U.S. Audit Manager for the financial division for a diversified Australian company. Mr.
Morris has a B.S. in Accounting from New York University (1982) and a J.D. from Fordham University School of Law (1990), with bar admissions in
New York and Connecticut.

Gary Sawina
Executive Vice President and Director of Real Estate Operations

Mr. Sawina has served Clearday as its Executive Vice President and Director of Real Estate since the closing of the AIU Merger and has served in
such position for AIU, now known as Clearday Operations, Inc., since its formation. In such capacity is the officer that oversees all aspects of the
development of Clearday’s real estate including the renovation of 8800 Village Drive, the design and build out spaces for Clearday’s Adult Day Care
centers and management of all of Clearday’s MCA and hotel facilities. Mr. Sawina has directly overseen the management of numerous new
construction projects ranging from $42 million to $500 million in capital expenditures. In response to the pandemic, Mr. Sawina designed retro-fits
for the hotel properties so that rooms may be efficiently converted to negative pressure rooms. Mr. Sawina is a Las Vegas native and has had a
career in gaming and hospitality of more than 40 years with senior positions. He held several gaming licenses, including Level 1 Gaming License-
Nevada from 1990 to 2000; Level 1 Gaming License-Louisiana from 2002 to 2004; Level 1 Gaming License-Indiana from 2004 to 2010; and Owner’s
Liquor License-Clark County, Nevada from 1999 to 2001. Mr. Sawina holds his B.S. in Business and Hotel Administration from University of
Nevada, Las Vegas (1979).
Corporate Governance Policies and Practices
The following is a summary of our corporate governance policies and practices:

● Our Board has determined that all of our directors, other than Mr. Walesa and Mr. Parrish, are independent as defined by the rules of
the SEC and The NYSE American stock exchange. Our Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and Governance and Nominating
Committee each consists entirely of independent directors under the rules of the SEC and The NYSE American stock exchange.

● We have a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for all of our employees, including our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating



Officer and Chief Financial Officer. If we amend any provision of our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to any such
officer (or any persons performing similar functions), or if we grant any waiver (including an implicit waiver) from any provision of our
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics to any such officer (or any persons performing similar functions), we will disclose those
amendments or waivers on our website at https://myclearday.com/corporate-governance/ within four business days following the
date of the amendment or waiver.

● Our Audit Committee reviews and approves all related-party transactions.
● As part of our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, we have made a “whistleblower” hotline available to all employees for

anonymous reporting of financial or other concerns. Our Audit Committee receives directly, without management participation, all
hotline activity reports concerning accounting, internal controls or auditing matters.

Board Leadership Structure and Role in Risk Oversight
Our Board is involved in overseeing our risk management through our Audit Committee. Under its charter, our Audit Committee is responsible for
inquiring of management and our independent auditors about significant areas of risk or exposure and assessing the steps management has taken
to minimize such risks.
Stockholder Communications with Directors
Stockholders who want to communicate with our Board or with a particular director or committee may send a letter to our Secretary at Clearday, Inc,

8800 Village Drive, 2nd Floor, San Antonio, Texas 78217. The mailing envelope should contain a clear notation indicating that the enclosed letter is a
“Board Communication” or “Director Communication.” All such letters should state whether the intended recipients are all members of our Board or
just certain specified individual directors or a specified committee. The Secretary will circulate the communications (with the exception of
commercial solicitations) to the appropriate director or directors. Communications marked “Confidential” will be forwarded unopened.
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Attendance at Annual Meetings of Stockholders
We expect that all of our Board members to attend our annual meetings of stockholders in the absence of a showing of good cause for failure to do
so.
Board Meetings and Committees
During 2021, each of our directors attended at least 75% of the aggregate of (i) the total number of Board meetings and (ii) the total number of
meetings of the committees on which the director served.
Board of Directors
Our Board has three standing committees: an Audit Committee established in accordance with section 3(a)(58)(A) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 (our “Audit Committee”), a Compensation Committee (our “Compensation Committee”) and a Governance and Nominating Committee (our
“Nominating Committee”). Our Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and Nominating Committee each have a charter, which is available at the
“Corporate Governance” section under the “Investors” tab on our website at www.myclearday.com.
Audit Committee
The principal functions of our Audit Committee are to hire our independent public auditors, to review the scope and results of the year-end audit
with management and the independent auditors, to review our accounting principles and our system of internal accounting controls and to review
our annual and quarterly reports before filing them with the SEC. The current members of our Audit Committee are Mr. Levychin (Chairman), Mr.
Channing and Mr. Coleman.
Our Board has determined that all members of our Audit Committee are “independent” as defined under the rules of the SEC. Our Board has
determined that Mr. Levychin is an “audit committee financial expert.”
Compensation Committee
Our Compensation Committee reviews and approves salaries, bonuses and other benefits payable to our executive officers and administers our
management incentive plan. Our Compensation Committee makes all compensation decisions with respect to our Chief Executive Officer and makes
recommendations to our Board regarding non-equity compensation and equity awards to our other named executive officers (set forth below under
“Executive Compensation-Summary Compensation Table”) and all other elected officers. In doing so, with respect to named executive officers other
than the Chief Executive Officer, our Compensation Committee generally receives a recommendation from our Chief Executive Officer and other
officers as appropriate. Our Chief Executive Officer also generally recommends the number of options or other equity awards to be granted to
executive officers, within a range associated with the individual executive’s salary level, and presents this to our Compensation Committee for its
review and approval.
Our Compensation Committee uses available data to review and compare our compensation levels to market compensation levels, taking into
consideration the other companies’ size, the industry, and the individual executive’s level of responsibility, as well as anecdotal data regarding the
compensation practices of other employers. We do not annually benchmark our executive compensation against a defined peer group, since we
believe that defining such a group is difficult and would not materially affect our decisions. Our Compensation Committee does not generally hire
an outside consulting firm to assist with compensation, as we believe that the value of doing so is exceeded by the costs. No compensation
consultant was engaged to provide advice or recommendations on our executive or director compensation for 2021.
Our Compensation Committee also reviews the compensation of directors and recommends to our Board the amounts and types of cash to be paid
and equity awards to be granted to our directors.
The current members of our Compensation Committee are Ms. Caveness (Chair), and Mr. Channing. Our Board has determined that all members of
our Compensation Committee are “independent” as defined under the rules of the SEC. Our Compensation Committee will only delegate its
authority to the extent consistent with our certificate of incorporation and bylaws and applicable laws, regulations and listing standards.
Our Compensation Committee created the Stock Option Committee (our “Stock Option Committee”) consisting of two members-our Compensation
Committee Chair and the Chief Executive Officer. The purpose of our Stock Option Committee is to facilitate the timely granting of stock options in
connection with hiring, promotions and other special situations, and therefore our Stock Option Committee meets only periodically as certain
events occur. Our Stock Option Committee is empowered to grant options to non-executive employees up to a preset annual aggregate limit. The
Stock Option Committee did not meet during 2021. Our Compensation Committee supervises these grants and retains exclusive authority for all
executive officer grants and the annual employee grants. The current members of our Stock Option Committee are Ms. Caveness (Chair) and Mr.
Walesa.
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Governance and Nominating Committee
Our Governance and Nominating Committee is responsible for overseeing and, as appropriate, making recommendations to our Board regarding,
membership and constitution of our Board and its role in overseeing our affairs. Our Governance and Nominating Committee is responsible for
proposing a slate of directors for election by the stockholders at each annual meeting and for proposing candidates to fill any vacancies. Our
Governance and Nominating Committee is also responsible for the corporate governance practices and policies of our Board and its committees.
The current members of our Governance and Nominating Committee are Mr. Channing (Chair), Ms. Caveness and Mr. Coleman. Our Governance



and Nominating Committee met one time in 2020. Our Board has determined that all members of our Governance and Nominating Committee are
“independent” as defined under the rules of the SEC.
Our Governance and Nominating Committee manages the process for evaluating current Board members at the time they are considered for re-
nomination. After considering the appropriate skills and characteristics required on our Board, the current makeup of our Board, the results of the
evaluations, and the wishes of our Board members to be re-nominated, our Governance and Nominating Committee recommends to our Board
whether those individuals should be re-nominated.
Our Governance and Nominating Committee periodically reviews with our Board whether it believes our Board would benefit from adding a new
member(s), and if so, the appropriate skills and characteristics required for the new member(s). If our Board determines that a new member would be
beneficial, our Governance and Nominating Committee solicits and receives recommendations for candidates and manages the process for
evaluating candidates. Our considerations for board members are described in the Report under “Human Capital-Board Members.”

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
The information contained in this Audit Committee Report shall not be deemed incorporated by reference in any filing under the Securities Act of
1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, whether made before or after the date hereof and irrespective of any general incorporation
language in any such filing (except to the extent that we specifically incorporate this information by reference) and shall not otherwise be
deemed “soliciting material” or “filed” with the SEC or subject to Regulation 14A or 14C, or to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (except to the extent that we specifically request that this information be treated as soliciting material or specifically
incorporate this information by reference).
Our Audit Committee reviews our financial reporting process on behalf of our Board. Management has the primary responsibility for the financial
statements and the reporting process, including the system of internal controls. Our Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the audited
financial statements with management. In addition, our Audit Committee has discussed with our independent registered public accounting firm the
matters required to be discussed by Statements on Public Company Accounting Oversight Board Auditing Standard No. 16 “Communications with
Audit Committees”.
Our Audit Committee has also received the written disclosures and the letter from our independent registered public accounting firm required by
applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board regarding their communications with the audit committee concerning
independence, and has discussed with them their independence, including whether their provision of other non-audit services to us is compatible
with maintaining their independence.
Our Audit Committee discussed with our independent registered public accounting firm the overall scope and plans for the audit. Our Audit
Committee meets with them, with and without management present to discuss the results of their examinations, the evaluation of our internal
controls and the overall quality of our reporting.
Based upon the review and discussions referred to in the foregoing paragraphs, our Audit Committee recommended to our Board that the audited
financial statements be included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for 2021 for filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Richard Levychin (Chairman)
Alan Channing and Jeffrey Coleman

April 15, 2022
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth for 2021, 2020 the base salary and other compensation of our (i) President and Chief Executive Officer and (ii) our
other two most highly compensated officers for 2021 (our “named executive officers”):

Name and Principal Position Year
Salary

($)

Stock
Awards
($)(1)

Option
Awards
($)(1)

Non-equity
Incentive

Plan
Compensation

($)

All Other
Compensation

($)(2)
Total
($)

Current Executive Officers
James T. Walesa 2021 99,600 101,400 - - 201,000
President, Chief 2020 63,000 75,000 - - $ 138,000
Executive Officer, Director
Richard M. Morris 2021 200,000 50,700 - - $ 250,700
Executive Vice President / General
Counsel 2020 200,000 765,592 - - $ 965,592
Gary Sawina 2021 132,000 7,605 - - $ 139,605
Executive Vice President / Director of
Real Estate Operations 2020 132,000 - - - 23,857 $ 155,857
Prior Executive Officers
Jeffrey A. Quiram 2021 279,526 333,333(3) 612,859
Former Director and Chief Executive
Officer 2020 324,450 13,828 338,278
Adam L. Shelton 2021 212,972 333,333(3) 546,305
Former Vice President Product
Management and Marketing 2020 247,200 6,375 253,575

(1) The Stock Awards amounts represent the aggregate grant date fair value of the options to purchase common stock or shares of restricted
common stock (as applicable) calculated in accordance with ASC 718, under the assumptions included in Note [5] to our audited financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 included in this Report.

(2) The All Other Compensation amounts shown reflect the value attributable to term life insurance premiums, certain tax payments and
company 401(k) matching for each named executive officer, if applicable, as well as other perquisites described below. Each named
executive officer is responsible for paying income tax on such amounts. Pursuant to the terms of his employment agreement, Mr. Quiram
received $8,138, in 2020, for travel expenses from his home in Minnesota, temporary housing near our Santa Barbara and Austin facilities,
the use of an automobile, and special indemnity payments to cover the taxes resulting from the payment or reimbursement of such travel
and housing expenses.

(3) Compensation accrued under the Officer Agreements entered into by such executive and us in connection with the AIU Merger, which are
described below.



Narrative Disclosure to Summary Compensation Table
Employment Agreements
We do not have any employment agreements with any of our current executive officers other than the Officer Agreements with our prior executives.
We had an employment agreement with our prior Chief Financial Officer, which is described in the AIU Merger Registration Statement and is no
longer in effect.
The executive officers of STI as of the closing of the AIU Merger had existing contractual rights under their employment or change in control
agreements with STI (as applicable, the “Existing Agreements”) to change in control or severance cash payments, totaling approximately $1.5
million in the aggregate, payable following a termination of employment without cause or for good reason within twenty-four months following the
closing of the AIU Merger, or, in the case of Jeffrey A. Quiram, our Chief Executive Officer as of immediately prior to the AIU Merger, with respect
to the closing of the AIU Merger, regardless of any termination of employment. These STI executive officers have agreed to amend their Existing
Agreements (such amendments, collectively, the “Officer Agreements”) such that, their change in control or severance payments will be made in
the form of shares of our common stock rather than (except in certain circumstance at Clearday’s option) in cash. The number of shares of our
common stock delivered to each such officer will equal the product of (i) a fraction, the numerator of which is the change in control or severance
payment payable to the officer under their Existing Agreement and the denominator of which is the aggregate change in control or severance
payments payable to all of the officers under their Existing Agreements (i.e., $1.5 million), and (ii) a fraction, the numerator of which is $1 million and
the denominator of which is the volume weighted average closing price of our common stock on the OTCQB market for the 30 OTCQB market
trading days immediately prior to the date that the change in control or severance payments are made under the Existing Agreements; provided,
however, that the price is subject to a floor equal to the lowest price Clearday issues common stock or common stock equivalents, if such stock is
sold in an arms’ length transaction for proceeds of at least $1 million, or in a registered transaction other than an “at the market” offering. Clearday
may, at its option, elect to pay the cash value of any shares that would otherwise have been issued. Accordingly, the maximum aggregate value of
the Officer Agreements is equal to $1 million.
Non-Equity Incentive Compensation
We maintain a bonus plan for executive officers and selected other members of senior management that was created by STI and which we will
continue. Under the plan, our Compensation Committee establishes financial and other pertinent objectives for the period and assigns each
executive officer an annual target bonus amount based on a percentage of his or her base salary, which ranges from 20% to 100%. Our
Compensation Committee also retains the authority to award discretionary bonuses for performance in other aspects of the business not covered
by the established goals. In December 2017, our Compensation Committee decided, based on then-current economic conditions, to not establish
financial performance targets under this plan and to not award cash bonuses based on financial objectives going forward. Our Compensation
Committee did reserve its right to award discretionary bonuses if appropriate; however no bonuses were awarded for 2020 or 2021 under this plan.
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Equity Grants
For 2020 and 2021 STI made no grants of restricted stock awards or options to the individuals who were are our named executive officers
immediately prior to the AIU Merger.
During 2020 and 2021, AIU issued restricted stock to our executive officers as disclosed under the Summary Compensation Table, above.

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End
The following table sets forth certain information with respect to outstanding options and unvested shares of restricted stock on December 31,
2021: There are no options outstanding at December 31, 2021.

Option Awards Stock Awards
All of the stock options that have been issued to the STI executives under a stock option plan have expired. There are no options that have been
issued by Clearday after the closing date by the AIU Merger nor has AIU issued any options to our executives for compensation.
Non-employee Director Compensation Table
The following table summarizes the compensation paid to our non-employee directors for 2021:

Fees earned or
paid in cash

Stock
Awards

Option
Awards Total

Name ($) ($)(1) ($)(1) ($)
Current Directors:
Elizabeth M. Caveness - -
Alan H. Channing - -
Jeffrey A. Coleman - -
Richard M. Levychin - - - -

BJ Parrish (2) - -
Former Directors:

Lynn J. Davis (3) 40,000 - - 40,000

David W. Vellequette (3) 45,000 - - 45,000

Julia S. Johnson (3) 37,500 - - 37,500

Robert Watson (4)

(1) The amounts in this column represent the aggregate grant date fair value of the options to purchase common stock calculated in
accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 718, under the assumptions included in Note 13 to our audited
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 included in this Report. As of December 31, 2021: there were no
options to purchase our common stock outstanding that were awarded to any director as compensation.

(2) BJ Parrish is also an executive officer.
(3) Director until the September 9, 2021 closing of the AIU Merger.
(4) Director until December 31, 2021.

ITEM 12. SECURITIES OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

The following table sets forth the beneficial ownership of our common stock as of March 31, 2022 by (i) each person known by us to be the
beneficial owner of more than 5% of our outstanding common stock, (ii) each of our directors, (iii) each of our executive officers named in the table
under “Executive Compensation - Summary Compensation Table,” and (iv) all of our directors and executive officers as a group. Except as otherwise
indicated in the footnotes to the table, (i) the persons and entities named in the table have sole voting and investment power with respect to all
shares beneficially owned, subject to community property laws where applicable, and (ii) the address of each person is c/o Clearday, Inc., 8800

Village Drive, 2nd Floor, San Antonio, Texas 78217. The following table includes the 2,861,334 shares of our common stock (“Incentive Shares”)



issued to the holders of our Series F Preferred that did not sell or transfer their shares of Series F Preferred other than to permitted transferees. The
issuance of the Incentive Shares was described in the AIU Merger Registration Statement.
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Name
Number of
Shares (1)

Percentage
Ownership

Directors and Officers:
James T. Walesa
Common Stock 904,713 5.1%
Series F Preferred Stock 652,828 13.1%
Total Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock 2,398,768 13.5%
BJ Parrish *
Common Stock 302,329 1.8%
Series F Preferred Stock 54,054 1.1%
Total Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock 356,383 2.0%
Linda Carrasco
Common Stock 5,976 *
Total Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock 5,976 *
John Bergeron
Common Stock 0 *
Total Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock 0 *
Richard Morris
Common Stock 511,561 2.9%
Total Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock 511,561 2.9%
Gary Sawina
Common Stock 3,585 *
Total Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock 28,410 *
Elizabeth Caveness
Common Stock 0 *
Series F Preferred Stock 0 *
Total Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock 8,275 *
Alan H. Channing
Common Stock 128,188 *
Series F Preferred Stock 101,420 2.0%
Total Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock 312,359 1.8%
Jeffrey W. Coleman
Common Stock 0
Series F Preferred Stock 0
Total Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock 82,751 *
Richard Levychin
Common Stock 0 *
Series F Preferred Stock 0 *
Total Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock 0 *
All directors and executive officers as a group (10 persons)
Clearday Common Stock 1,856,352 10.4%
Clearday Series F Preferred Stock 808,301 16.24%
Total Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock 3,704,483 20.8%
Beneficial Owner of 5% or more

Cibolo Creek Partners, LLC (^)

Clearday Common Stock 221,370 1.2%
Clearday Series F Preferred Stock 572,752 11.51%
Total Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock 794,122 4.5%
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The only voting securities are the (1) common stock and (2) the Series F Preferred Stock.
Beneficial ownership includes the shares of common stock held by such holder and those shares that would be issued to such holder upon exercise
or conversion of any of the following securities into shares of our common stock at the sole option of the holder within 60 days: (1) Series F
Preferred stock; (2) warrants issued by AIU that were assumed by Clearday, Inc. in the AIU Merger; (3) AIU Alt Care Preferred, and (4) Clearday OZ
LP Interests. Such warrants, AIU Alt Care Preferred, and Clearday OZ LP Interests are not a voting security of Clearday, Inc. Total Beneficial
Ownership of Common Stock is computed assuming that all such securities of such holder are exchanged or converted to common stock and the
percentage is computed by dividing such amount by the 17,771,902 shares of common stock issued and outstanding, after giving effect to the
Incentive Shares.

* Represents beneficial ownership of Clearday’s common stock of less than 1%.
^ Address of Cibolo Creek Partners, LLC is 200 N. Loraine St, Suite 1515, Midland, TX 79701. The managers of Cibolo Creek Partners,

LLC are B.J. Parrish, H.H. Wommack, III, George Wommack and J. Steven Person. No such individual is to be construed as an
admission that such person is, for the purposes of sections 13(d) or 13(g) of the Act, the beneficial owner of any securities owned by
Cibolo Creek Partners, LLC. Cibolo Creek Partners, LLC is managed by a board of managers of at least three individuals. In accordance
with the Staff of the SEC no-action letter re The Southland Corp. (August 10, 1987), which gives rise to the so-called “rule of three,”
and holds that, where voting and investment decisions regarding an entity’s portfolio securities are made by three or more
individuals, and a voting or investment decision requires the approval of a majority of those individuals, then none of the individuals,
in this case the managers of the Cibolo Creek Partners, LLC, is deemed a beneficial owner of such entity’s portfolio securities.

(1) The shares of common stock that are included in the beneficial ownership with respect to the holdings by such holder of AIU Alt
Care Preferred and Clear OZ LP Interests are computed using a conversion price computed as of March 31, 2022 equal to $1.59 or 80%
of the 20 day volume average weighted price of $1.99 per share.



ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
Our Chief Executive Officer has guaranteed certain of our loan obligations and the lease that we entered into for our adult daycare center. He will
receive a guaranty fee payable in our common stock.
One of our executives has guaranteed certain of our loan obligations and will receive a guaranty fee payable in our common stock. She may be
considered related to our Chief Executive Officer as they share the same residence. She also receives compensation as the Director of Education.
On February 18, 2021, our General Counsel has purchased an undivided interests in the land and improvements (the “Naples Property”) that we use
for our Memory Care of Naples care facility that is located in Naples, Florida (the “Naples Facility”). The purchase price of $100,000 was paid for
undivided interests equal to 1.23% of the aggregate interests in the Naples Property. This price per interest was the same price that was paid by
unaffiliated purchasers for undivided interests on October 25, 2021. The closing of the purchase of such undivided interests is expected to close
after customary closing conditions are satisfied. The cash amount was paid to us as a non-refundable deposit.
Approval of Related Party Transactions
The foregoing transactions were approved by the independent members of the Board without the related party having input with respect to the
discussion of such approval. In addition, the Board believes that the foregoing transactions were necessary for our business and each such
transaction were on terms no less favorable to us than would reasonably be expected to be obtained from independent third parties. Our policy
requiring that independent directors approve any related party transaction is not evidenced by writing but has been the Company’s consistent
practice.
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Director Independence
Because our common stock is not currently listed on a national securities exchange, we have used the definition of “independence” of The
NASDAQ Stock Market to make this determination. NASDAQ Listing Rule 5605(a)(2) provides that an “independent director” is a person other
than an officer or employee of the Company or any other individual having a relationship that, in the opinion of the Company’s Board, would
interfere with the exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of a director. The NASDAQ listing rules provide that a
director cannot be considered independent if:

● the director is, or at any time during the past three years was, an employee of the Company;
● the director or a family member of the director accepted any compensation from the Company in excess of $120,000 during any period of 12

consecutive months within the three years preceding the independence determination (subject to certain exclusions, including, among
other things, compensation for board or board committee service);

● a family member of the director is, or at any time during the past three years was, an executive officer of the Company;
● the director or a family member of the director is a partner in, controlling stockholder of, or an executive officer of an entity to which the

Company made, or from which the Company received, payments in the current or any of the past three fiscal years that exceed 5% of the
recipient’s consolidated gross revenue for that year or $200,000, whichever is greater (subject to certain exclusions);

● the director or a family member of the director is employed as an executive officer of an entity where, at any time during the past three
years, any of the executive officers of the Company served on the compensation committee of such other entity; or

● the director or a family member of the director is a current partner of the Company’s outside auditor, or at any time during the past three
years was a partner or employee of the Company’s outside auditor, and who worked on the Company’s audit.

We have determined, based on the foregoing definition, that a majority of the directors of our Board are independent, and that such directors are:
Elizabeth Caveness, Alan H. Channing, Jeffrey A. Coleman and Richard Levychin.
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES
Our Audit Committee regularly reviews and determines whether specific non-audit projects or expenditures with our independent registered public
accounting firm, potentially affects its independence. Our Audit Committee’s policy is to pre-approve all audit and permissible non-audit services
provided by our public accounting firm. Pre-approval is generally provided by our Audit Committee for up to one year, as detailed as to the
particular service or category of services to be rendered, and is generally subject to a specific budget. Our Audit Committee may also pre-approve
additional services of specific engagements on a case-by-case basis.
The following table sets forth the aggregate fees billed to us by our public accounting firms for 2021 and 2020, all of which were pre- approved by
our Audit Committee:

Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020

Turner, Stone & Company, L.L.P
Audit fees 200,000 0
All other fees
Total Fees 200,000 0
Friedman LLP
Audit fees 40,000
All other fees (1) 206,405
Total Fees 246,405
Marcum LLP
Audit fees (2) $ $ 110,000
All other fees $ $ 0
Total Fees $ $ 110,000
Total: $ 446,405 $ 110,000

(1) Includes fees for professional services rendered for the reviews of the condensed consolidated financial statements included in our audits
and the AIU Merger Registration Statement for AIU.

(2) Marcum LLP was the prior independent accountants for STI and did not provide services to Clearday for the 2021 audited financial
statements included in this Report.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) Financial Statements

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for the 2021 Audited financial statements (PCAOB ID: 76) F-1
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for the 2020 Audited financial statements (PCAOB ID: 711) F-2
Consolidated financial statements:



Consolidated balance sheets F-3
Consolidated statements of operations F-4
Consolidated statement of changes in stockholders’ deficit F-5
Consolidated statements of cash flows F-6
Notes to the consolidated financial statements F-7
(b) Financial Statement Schedules
All consolidated financial statement schedules are included in the footnotes to the financial statements, are inapplicable, or otherwise not required.
(c) Exhibits
Exhibit No. Description
1. Exhibits
Exhibit

No. Description Form File No. Exhibit
Filing
Date

2.1 Amended and Restated Agreement and Plan of Merger, by and among Superconductor
Technologies Inc., AIU Special Merger Company, Inc. and Allied Integral United, Inc.,
dated June 11, 2021

S-4 333-256138 2.1 06/14/2021

2.2 Certificate of Merger effective September 9, 2021 at 6:00 pm Eastern Time regarding the
merger of AIU Special Merger Company, Inc. with Allied Integral United, Inc. with
Allied Integral United, Inc. being the surviving corporation

8-K 000-21074 2.1 09/10/2021

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company as amended through March 1,
2006

10-K 000-21074 3.1 March 17.
2010

3.2 Certificate of Amendment of Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, filed
March 11, 2013

8-K 000-21074 3.1 March 14,
2013

3.3 Certificate of Amendment of Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, filed
July 18, 2016

8-K 000-21074 3.1 July 18,
2016

3.4 Certificate of Amendment of Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, filed
July 19, 2018, effective July 24, 2018

S-1/A 333-226025 3.4 July 19,
2018

3.5 Certificate of Amendment of Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, filed
September 10, 2020

8-K 000-21074 3.1 09/10/2020

3.6 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company 10-K 000-21074 3.1 March 17.
2010

3.7 Amendment adopted March 29, 2010 to Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company 8-K 000-21074 3(ii).1 April 2,
2010

3.8 Amendment adopted October 28, 2013 to Amended and Restated Bylaws of the
Company

8-K 000-21074 3(ii).1 October
31, 2013

3.9 Amendment to the Restated Certificate of Incorporation filed in connection with the
AIU Merger to effect a reverse stock split of the common stock and change the name of
the Company

8-K 000-21074 3.1 09/10/2021

3.10 Amendment to the Restated Certificate of Incorporation filed in connection with the
AIU Merger to increase the number of authorized shares

8-K 000-21074 3.1 09/10/2021

4.1 Form of Common Stock Certificate 10-K 000-21074 4.1 04/15/2022
4.2 Form of the Series F Preferred Stock Certificate 10-K 000-21074 4.2 04/15/2022
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Exhibit
No. Description Form File No. Exhibit

Filing
Date

4.3 Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock of the Company filed November 13, 2007

8-K 000-21074 3.1 11/15/2007

4.4 Certificate of Designations of 6.75% Series F Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock 8-K 000-21074 3.1 09/10/2021
4.5 Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock issued by the Company on August 2, 2016 8-K 000-21074 4.1 08/02/2016
4.6 Form of Placement Agent Warrant to Purchase Common Stock issued by the Company

on August 2, 2016
8-K 000-21074 4.2 08/02/2016

4.7 Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock issued by the Company on December 14,
2016

S-1 333-214433 4.24 12/06/2016

4.8 Form of Pre-Funded Common Stock Purchase Warrant issued by the Company on
March 9, 2018

8-K 000-21074 4.1 03/09/2018

4.9 Form of Placement Agent Common Stock Purchase Warrant issued by the Company on
March 9, 2018

8-K 000-21074 4.2 03/09/2018

4.10 Form of Series A Common Stock Purchase Warrant issued by the Company on March 9,
2018

8-K 000-21074 4.3 03/09/2018

4.11 Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant issued by the Company on July 30, 2018 S-1 333-226025 4.27 07/24/2018
4.12 Form of Placement Agent Common Stock Purchase Warrant issued by the Company on

July 30, 2018
S-1 333-226025 4.28 07/24/2018

4.13 Description of Securities 10-K 000-21074 4.13 04/15/2022
10.1 2003 Equity Incentive Plan As Amended May 25, 2005+ 8-K 000-21074 10.1 05/27/2005
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Exhibit
No. Description Form File No. Exhibit

Filing
Date

10.2 Form of Notice of Grant of Stock Options and Option Agreement for 2003 Equity
Incentive Plan+

10-K 000-21074 10.51 03/16/2005

10.3 Management Incentive Plan (adopted July 24, 2006) + 8-K 000-21074 10.1 07/28/2006
10.4 STI (pre AIU Merger) Form of Director and Officer Indemnification Agreement+ 10-K 000-21074 10.27 03/12/2015
10.5 Lease Agreement between the Company and Prologis Texas III LLC dated December 5,

2011
10-K 000-21074 10.29 03/30/2012

https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000149315221014326/forms-4a.htm#d_001
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000149315221022360/ex2-1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000095012310025550/v55462exv3w1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000118143113016991/rrd374200_39381.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000119312516650270/d224636dex31.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000119312518224021/d647904dex34.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000117184320006394/exh_31.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000095012310025550/v55462exv3w2.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000118143110019858/rrd272028_31660.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000117184313004274/exh_3ii1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000149315221022360/ex3-1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000149315221022360/ex3-1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000149315222010141/ex4-1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000149315222010141/ex4-2.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000117184307000696/exh_31.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000149315221022360/ex3-3.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000119312516667374/d201993dex41.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000119312516667374/d201993dex42.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000119312516785598/d284258dex424.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000119312518077338/d463591dex41.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000119312518077338/d463591dex42.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000119312518077338/d463591dex43.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000119312518224021/d647904dex427.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000119312518224021/d647904dex428.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000149315222010141/ex4-13.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000095012905005790/v09579exv10w1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000095012905002492/v06812exv10w51.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000095013406014179/v22471exv10w1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000119312515088511/d845758dex1027.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000119312512142978/d320822dex1029.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000119312512467419/d398237dex101.htm


10.6 First Amendment to Lease Agreement between the Company and Prologis Texas III LLC
dated August 23, 2012

10-Q 000-21074 10.1 11/13/2012

10.7 Second Amendment to Lease Agreement between the Company and Prologis Texas III
LLC dated July 18, 2014

10-K 000-21074 10.19 03/12/2015

10.8 2013 Equity Incentive Plan adopted October 25, 2013, and forms of Award Agreements
+

Sch. 14A 000-21074 Ex. A 10/31/2013

10.9 Settlement Agreement dated as of July 31, 2019 by and among Invesque Holdings, LP
(“Invesque”), MHI-MC New Braunfels, LP (“New Braunfels”), MHI-MC San Antonio,
LP (“San Antonio”), and MHI Little Rock, LP (“Little Rock”; together with New
Braunfels and San Antonio, the “Landlords”; together with Invesque, the “Landlord
Parties”), Memory Care America LLC (“MCA”), MCA Mainstreet Tenant LLC (“MCA
Mainstreet”), MCA Westover Hills Operating Company, LLC (“MCA Westover
Operating”), MCA Management Company, Inc. (“MCA Management”); MCA New
Braunfels Operating Company, LLC (“MCA New Braunfels”), MCA Westover Hills, LLC
(“MCA Westover”), and Memory Care at Good Shepherd, LLC (“MCA Good
Shepherd”; together with MCA, MCA Mainstreet, MCA Westover Operating, MCA
Management, MCA New Braunfels, and MCA Westover, the “Debtors”), Trident
Healthcare Properties I, L.P. (“Trident”), Steve Person (“Mr. Person”), James Walesa
(“Mr. Walesa”), and B.J. Parrish

10-Q 000-21074 10.1 11/19/2021

10.10 Second Amended and Restated Promissory Note dated July 31, 2019 in the initial
principal amount of $3,328,105.65 issued by Memory Care America LLC, a Tennessee
limited liability company (“MCA”), MCA Mainstreet Tenant LLC, a Tennessee limited
liability company (“MCA Mainstreet”), MCA Westover Hills Operating Company, LLC,
a Tennessee limited liability company (“MCA Westover Operating”), MCA
Management Company, Inc. (“MCA Management”), a Tennessee corporation, MCA
New Braunfels Operating Company, LLC, a Tennessee limited liability company (“MCA
New Braunfels”), MCA Westover Hills, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
(“MCA Westover”), and Memory Care at Good Shepherd, LLC, an Arkansas limited
liability company (“MCA Good Shepherd”; together with MCA, MCA Mainstreet, MCA
Westover Operating, MCA New Braunfels, and MCA Westover, the “Debtors”), to the
order Invesque Holdings, LP, a Delaware limited partnership (“Invesque”), MHI-MC
New Braunfels, LP, a Delaware limited partnership (“New Braunfels”), MHI-MC San
Antonio, LP, a Delaware limited partnership (“San Antonio”), and MHI Little Rock, LP, a
Delaware limited partnership (“Little Rock”; together with Invesque, New Braunfels and
San Antonio, together with their respective successors and assigns, the “Landlord
Parties”)

10-Q 000-21074 10.2 11/19/2021
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Exhibit
No. Description Form File No. Exhibit

Filing
Date

10.11 Second Amendment to Lease Agreement dated as of July 31, 2019 by and between
MHI-MC San Antonio, LP, a Delaware limited partnership (“Landlord”), and MCA
Mainstreet Tenant, LLC, a Tennessee limited liability company (“Tenant”) and the First
Amendment to such Lease Agreement, dated as of June 29, 2018 and the Lease
Agreement, dated December 16, 2016 (the “Original Lease”), regarding the memory care
facility located on the Leased Property and commonly known as Memory Care of
Westover Hills

10-Q 000-21074 10.3 11/19/2021

10.12 Second Amendment To Lease Agreement dated as of July 31, 2019 by and between
MHI-MC New Braunfels, LP, a Delaware limited partnership (“Landlord”), and MCA
Mainstreet Tenant, LLC, a Tennessee limited liability company (“Tenant”) and the First
Amendment to such Lease Agreement, dated as of June 29, 2018 and the Lease
Agreement, dated December 16, 2016, regarding the memory care facility located on the
Leased Property and commonly known as Memory Care of New Braunfels

10-Q 000-21074 10.4 11/19/2021

10.13 Second Amendment To Lease Agreement dated as of July 31, 2019 by and between
MHI Little Rock, LP, a Delaware limited partnership (“Landlord”), and MCA Mainstreet
Tenant, LLC, a Tennessee limited liability company (“Tenant”) and the First Amendment
to such Lease Agreement, dated as of June 29, 2018 and the Lease Agreement, dated
December 16, 2016 regarding memory care facility located on the Leased Property and
commonly known as Memory Care of Little Rock

10-Q 000-21074 10.5 11/19/2021

10.14 Amended, Restated And Consolidated Guaranty Agreement dates as of July 31, 2019,
by each guarantor named therein to Invesque Holdings, LP, a Delaware limited
partnership and the other guaranteed parties named therein as to the obligations
described therein

10-Q 000-21074 10.6 11/19/2021

10.15 Reaffirmation of Pledge Agreement dated as of July 31, 2019, by Trident Healthcare
Properties I, LP, a Delaware limited partnership for the benefit of Invesque Holdings, LP,
a Delaware limited partnership (successor-in-interest to Invesque Financing, LP,
formerly known as Mainstreet Health Financing, LP)

10-Q 000-21074 10.7 11/19/2021

10.16 Lease Agreement dated as of February 3, 2016 by and between MC-Simpsonville, SC-1
UT, LLC, a Utah limited liability company and MCA Simpsonville Operating Company,
LLC, a Tennessee limited liability company; and First Amendment thereto dated as of
October 17, 2017, and Second Amendment thereto dated as of March 12, 2018 and the
Third Amendment thereto dated as of May ___, 2018

10-Q 000-21074 10.8 11/19/2021

10.17 Settlement Agreement dated as of March 10, 2021 by and between Pender Capital Asset
Based Lending Fund I, L.P., a limited partnership (“Pender”) on the one hand and Pritor

10-Q 000-21074 10.9 11/19/2021

https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000119312512467419/d398237dex101.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000119312515088511/d845758dex1019.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000119312513420867/d615241ddef14a.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000149315221029422/ex10-1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000149315221029422/ex10-2.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000149315221029422/ex10-3.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000149315221029422/ex10-4.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000149315221029422/ex10-5.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000149315221029422/ex10-6.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000149315221029422/ex10-7.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000149315221029422/ex10-8.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000149315221029422/ex10-9.htm


Longhorn Seaworld, LLC, James Walesa, and B.J. Parrish, on the other
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Exhibit
No. Description Form File No. Exhibit

Filing
Date

10.18 Amended and Restated Promissory Note dated April 1, 2015 by Memory Care America,
LLC as the maker, payable to the order of Betty Gearhart in the original principal amount
of $238,577.81 and the Amendment thereto dated April 1, 2017 and the Second
Amendment thereto dated March 5, 2020

10-Q 000-21074 10.10 11/19/2021

10.19 Assignment and Security Agreement dated July 13, 2012 by and between Memory Care
America, LLC and Betty Gearhart, as the secured party

10-Q 000-21074 10.11 11/19/2021

10.20 Amended and Restated Promissory Note dated as of April 1, 2019 by Allied Integral
United, Inc., now known as Clearday Operations, Inc., payable to The Five C’s LLC in
the principal amount of $325,000

10-Q 000-21074 10.12 11/19/2021

10.21.1 Mortgage and Security Agreement dated April 28, 2021 by MCA Naples, LLC, a
Tennessee limited liability company in favor of Benworth Capital Partners, LLC, a
Florida limited liability company

10-Q 000-21074 10.13.1 11/19/2021

10.21.2 Solvency Affidavit by James Walesa and MCA Naples Holdings, LLC, a Tennessee
limited liability company, in favor of Benworth Capital Partners, LLC, a Florida limited
liability company, dated April 28, 2021

10-Q 000-21074 10.13.2 11/19/2021

10.21.3 Subordination Agreement dated April 28, 2021 by and among Benworth Capital
Partners, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, MCA Naples, LLC, a Tennessee limited
liability company and James Walesa

10-Q 000-21074 10.13.3 11/19/2021

10.21.4 Continuing and Unconditional Guaranty dated April 28, 2021 by MCA Naples Holding,
LLC, a Tennessee limited liability company in favor of Benworth Capital Partners, LLC, a
Florida limited liability company

10-Q 000-21074 10.13.4 11/19/2021

10.21.5 Deed in Lieu Agreement dated April 28, 2021 by MCA Naples, LLC, a Tennessee limited
liability company and the escrow agent named therein in favor of Benworth Capital
Partners, LLC, a Florida limited liability company

10-Q 000-21074 10.13.5 11/19/2021

10.21.6 Assignment of Rents and Leases dated April 28, 2021 by MCA Naples, LLC, a
Tennessee limited liability company, as assignor, and Benworth Capital Partners, LLC, a
Florida limited liability company, as assignee

10-Q 000-21074 10.13.6 11/19/2021

10.21.7 Subordination, Nondisturbance and Attornment Agreement dated April 28, 2021 by and
among Benworth Capital Partners, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, MCA Naples
Operating Company, LLC, a Tennessee limited liability company, and MCA Naples, LLC,
a Tennessee limited liability company

10-Q 000-21074 10.13.7 11/19/2021

10.21.8 Continuing and Unconditional Guaranty dated April 28, 2021 by James Walesa in favor
of Benworth Capital Partners, LLC, a Florida limited liability company

10-Q 000-21074 10.13.8 11/19/2021
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Exhibit
No. Description Form File No. Exhibit

Filing
Date

10.21.9 Loan Agreement dated April 28, 2021 by and between MCA Naples, LLC, a Tennessee
limited liability company and Benworth Capital Partners, LLC, a Florida limited liability
company

10-Q 000-21074 10.13.9 11/19/2021

10.21.10 Promissory Note dated April 28, 2021 by MCA Naples, LLC, a Tennessee limited liability
company payable to the order of Benworth Capital Partners, LLC, a Florida limited
liability company and the ACH Rider thereto

10-Q 000-21074 10.13.10 11/19/2021

10.22.1 Commercial Loan Agreement dated as of October 5, 2018 by and between Leander
Associates, LTD, a Texas limited partnership, as borrower, James Walesa, as the
guarantor, and Equity Secured Investments, Inc. as the lender

10-Q 000-21074 10.14.1 11/19/2021

10.22.2 Modification and Extension of Real Estate Lien and Note dated as of October 5, 2020 by
and between Leander Associates, LTD, a Texas limited partnership, as borrower, James
Walesa, as the guarantor, and Equity Secured Investments, Inc. as the lender

10-Q 000-21074 10.14.2 11/19/2021

10.22.3 Guaranty Agreement dated October 4, 2018 by James Walesa in favor of Equity Secured
Investments, Inc

10-Q 000-21074 10.14.3 11/19/2021

10.23.1 Commercial Loan Agreement dated as of March 26, 2021 by and among AIU 8800 Village
Drive, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as the borrower, James Walesa, as the
guarantor, and Equity Secured Fund I, LLC, as the borrower

10-Q 000-21074 10.15.1 11/19/2021

10.23.2 Environmental Indemnification Agreement dated as of March 26, 2021 by and among
AIU 8800 Village Drive, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as the borrower,
James Walesa, as the guarantor, and Equity Secured Fund I, LLC, as the borrower

10-Q 000-21074 10.15.2 11/19/2021

10.23.3 Assignment of Leases and Rents dated as of March 26, 2021 by AIU 8800 Village Drive,
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company in favor of Equity Secured Fund I, LLC

10-Q 000-21074 10.15.3 11/19/2021

10.23.4 Promissory Note dated March 26, 2021 by AIU 8800 Village Drive, LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company, payable to the order of Equity Secured Fund I, LLC in the
initial principal amount of $1,000,000

10-Q 000-21074 10.15.4 11/19/2021

10.23.5 Deed of Trust with Security Agreement and Assignment of Rents dated March 26, 2021
by AIU 8800 Village Drive, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, unto the trustee
named therein

10-Q 000-21074 10.15.5 11/19/2021

10.23.6 Guaranty Agreement dated March 26, 2021 by James Walesa in favor of Equity Secured
Fund I, LLC

10-Q 000-21074 10.15.6 11/19/2021

10.24.1 Term Promissory Note dated July 23, 2018 by SRP Artesia, LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company, as borrower, payable to the order of Firstcapital Bank of Texas, N.A., a

10-Q 000-21074 10.16.1 11/19/2021
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national banking association, as lender in the initial principal amount of $266,048.29
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Filing
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10.24.2 Renewal, Extention and Amendment Agreement regarding the amendment to the Deed
of Trust and Security Agreement regarding the Term Promissory Note issued by SRP
Artesia, LLC payable to the order of Firstcapital Bank of Texas, N.A., a national banking
association

10-Q 000-21074 10.16.2 11/19/2021

10.25 Renewal, Extension, and Modification of Real Estate Note and Lien dated as of March
12, 2019 by Cibolo Rodeo, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership, as borrower, in favor Tamir
Enterprises, Ltd., as the lender

10-Q 000-21074 10.17.1 11/19/2021

10.26.1 Promissory Note dated as of August 18, 2021, by Pritor Longhorn Buda Hotel, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company, and Cibolo Rodeo, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership,
payable to the order of 2K Hospitality, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, as lender,
in the initial principal amount of $120,000

10-Q 000-21074 10.18.1 11/19/2021

10.26.2 Deed of Trust, Security Agreement - Financing Statement dated August 18, 2021 by
Cibolo Rodeo, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership in favor of the trustee named therein for
the benefit of 2K Hospitality LLC, a Texas limited liability company, as the lender

10-Q 000-21074 10.18.2 11/19/2021

10.26.3 Guaranty Agreement dated as of August 18, 2021 by Billie Jay Parrish a.k.a. B.J. Parrish
to and in favor of 2K Hospitality, LLC, a Texas limited liability company

10-Q 000-21074 10.18.3 11/19/2021

10.24 Purchase Agreement dated as of August 18, 2021, by and between CFG Merchant
Solutions, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as the buyer, and MCA Naples,
LLC, as Seller and the personal guaranty of performance of the obligations thereunder
dated as of August 18, 2021 by Christen Hemmens and the Additional Seller Addendum
thereto, and the Consent and Reaffirmation of the Guarantor thereto

10-Q 000-21074 10.19 11/19/2021

10.25 Operations Transfer, Interim Management and Security Agreement dated as of
September 9, 2021, by and between MCA Simpsonville Operating Company, LLC and
Brookstone Terrace of Simpsonville, LLC

10-Q 000-21074 10.20 11/19/2021

10.26 Standard Merchant Cash Advance Agreement dated as of September 10, 2021 by and
between LG Funding LLC, as the merchant, and each of MCA Naples, LLC, Memory
Care America LLC, MCA Management Company, Inc., MCA Naples Operating
Company, LLC and MCA Naples Holdings, LLC, the addendums thereto, and the
guarantee of the obligations thereunder dated as of September 10, 2021 by Christin
Hemmens

10-Q 000-21074 10.21 11/19/2021

10.27 Futures Receipts Sale and Purchase Agreement dated as of September 28, 2021, by and
between MCA New Braunfels Operating Company LLC and Cloudfund LLC d/b/a
Samson Group and the Personal Guaranty of Performance by James Walesa for the
benefit of Cloudfund LLC d/b/a Samson Group dated September 28, 2021 and the
addendums thereto

8-K 000-21074 10.1 10/04/2021
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Filing
Date

10.28 Revenue Purchase Agreement and Security Agreement and Guaranty of Performance
dated September 28, 2021 between Samson MCA LLC, as the funder, and MCA New
Braunfels Operating Company LLC and the Security Agreement and Guaranty of
Performance and the Appendixes thereof, and the Personal Guaranty of Performance by
James Walesa for the benefit of Samson MCA LLC dated September 28, 2021

8-K 000-21074 10.2 10/04/2021

10.29 Agreement between Clearday, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and Emerging Markets
Consulting, LLC dated as of October 18, 2021

8-K 000-21074 10.1 10/19/2021

10.30 Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of October 26, 2021 by and between MCA
Naples, LLC and the purchasers party thereto and the form of the Tenants in Common
Agreement among MCA Naples, LLC and the other holders of the undivided interests
in the property named therein

8-K 000-21074 10.1
And
10.2

11/01/2021

10.31 Form of the Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement of Clearday
Alternative Care OZ Fund LP

10-Q 000-21074 10.26 11/19/2021

10.32 Promissory Note dated September 10, 2021 by Clearday, Inc. payable to the order of
A.G.P. / Alliance Global Partners in the initial principal amount of $2,630,000

10-Q 000-21074 10.27 11/19/2021

10.33.1 Business Loan Agreement dated October 2, 2019 by and among Memory Care America
LLC, MCA New Braunfels Operating Company, LLC and James T. Walesa and
ServisFirst Bank, and the Change in Terms Agreement thereto

10-Q 000-21074 10.28.1 11/19/2021

10.33.2 Commercial Guaranty dated October 2, 2019 BJ Parrish, as the guarantor, in favor of
ServisFirst Bank with respect to the obligations of under the Business Loan Agreement
dated as of even date

10-Q 000-21074 10.28.2 11/19/2021

10.33.3 Commercial Guaranty dated October 2, 2019 by John S. Person, as the guarantor, in
favor of ServisFirst Bank with respect to the obligations of under the Business Loan
Agreement dated as of even date

10-Q 000-21074 10.28.3 11/19/2021

10.33.4 Commercial Security Agreement dated October 2, 2019 by and among MCA New
Braunfels Operating Company, LLC, as the grantor, Memory Care America LLC, MCA
New Braunfels Operating Company, LLC and James T. Walesa, as the borrowers, and
ServisFirst Bank and the lender

10-Q 000-21074 10.28.4 11/19/2021

10.34.1 Advisory and Development Agreement dated as of August 10, 2021 by and between
Sterling Select II Advisory LLC, and Allied Integral United, Inc

10-Q 000-21074 10.29.1 11/19/2021
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10.34.2 Warrant dated August 10, 2021the purchase of shares of Common Stock, par value
$0.001 per share, of Clearday, Inc., issued to Sterling Select II Advisory LLC

10-Q 000-21074 10.29.2 11/19/2021

10.35 Services Agreement dated as of March 6, 2019 by and between Thinktiv, Inc. and Allied
Integral United, Inc.

10-Q 000-21074 10.30 11/19/2021
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Filing
Date

10.36 Amended And Restated Backstop Indemnity Agreement, dated as of February 26, 2020
by and among (a) Allied Integral United, Inc., (the “Corporation”); and each of Steve
Person, and James Walesa, and BJ Parrish

10-Q 000-21074 10.31 11/19/2021

10.37.1 Simpsonville Backstop Indemnity Agreement dated as of July 30, 2020 by and among
James Walesa and Allied Integral United, Inc. and the Amendment thereto dated as of
January 19, 2021

10-Q 000-21074 10.32.1 11/19/2021

10.37.2 Securities Pledge Agreement dated as of January 19, 2021 by and among James Walesa
and Allied Integral United, Inc.

10-Q 000-21074 10.32.2 11/19/2021

10.38 Form of the Restricted Stock Award Agreement by and among Clearday, Inc. and the
grantee named therein

10-Q 000-21074 10.33 11/19/2021

10.39 Form of the Indemnity Agreement by and among Clearday, Inc. and the officer or
director named therein +

10-Q 000-21074 10.34 11/19/2021

10.40 Employment Agreement of Randall Hawkins dated as of September 1, 2020. Filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on September 10,
2021 +

8-K 000-21074 10.1 09/10/2021

10.41 Form of the Officer Agreements with certain officers of STI + S-4 333-256138 Ex. F 06/14/2021
10.42 Agreement by and between Emerging Markets Consulting, LLC and Clearday, Inc.

dated as of October 18, 2021
8-K 000-21074 10.1 10/19/2021

10.43 Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of October 26, 2021 by and between MCA
Naples, LLC, and the purchasers party thereto regarding sale of undivided interests in
land

8-K 000-21074 10.1 11/01/2021

10.44 Strategic Alliance, Development and Distribution Terms Agreement by and between
Clearday Management Ltd., and Invento Research Inc. dated as of November 11, 2021

8-K 000-21074 10.1 11/17/2021

10.45 Form of the Warrant issued to the Investors in securities issued by AIU Alternative
Care, Inc. and Clearday Alternative Care OZ Fund LP

10-Q 000-21074 10.37 11/19/2021

10.46 Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of February 18, 2022 by and between MCA
Naples, LLC and the purchaser party thereto

8-K 000-21074 10.1 02/25/2022

10.47.1 Purchase Agreement dated as of February 28, 2022, by and between MCA and CFG
Merchant Solutions, LLC

8-K 000-21074 10.1 03/04/2022

10.47.2 Personal Guaranty of Performance by Christen Hemmens for the benefit of CFG
Merchant Solutions, LLC

8-K 000-21074 10.2 03/04/2022

10.47.3 Agreement of Sale of Future Receipts by and between Memory Care At Good
Shepherd, LLC, as the Merchant, and James Walesa as Guarantor, and Libertas Funding
LLC, as the Purchaser

8-K 000-21074 10.3 03/04/2022
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Filing
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10.48.1 Futures Receipts Sale and Purchase Agreement dated as of March 16, 2022 between
MCA and Cloudfund LLC d/b/a Samson Group and Personal Guaranty of Performance
dated as of March 16, 2022 between James Walesa and Cloudfund LLC d/b/a Samson
Group

8-K 000-21074 10.1 03/22/2022

10.48.2 Revenue Purchase Agreement and Security Agreement and Guaranty of Performance
dated as of March 16, 2022 between MCA and Samson MCA LLC and the Security
Agreement and Guaranty of Performance dated March 16, 2022 by James Walesa

8-K 000-21074 10.2 03/22/2022

10.49 Merchant Agreement dated as of March 24, 2022 by and among MCA Westover Hills
Operating Company, LLC (“MCA”) and PIRS Capital, LLC (“Merchant”) and the related
Guaranty dated as of March 24, 2022 by James Walesa

8-K 000-21074 10.1 03/30/2022

10.50.1 Form of Promissory Note dated April 5, 2022 in the principal amount of $172,200 payable
to the lender specified therein

8-K 000-21074 10.1 04/11/2022

10.50.2 Form of Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 5, 2022, by and between
Clearday, Inc. and Sixth Street Lending LLC

8-K 000-21074 10.2 04/11/2022

10.51 Purchase and Sale Agreement, effective April 5, 2022, by and between Leander
Associates, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership (“Seller”), and the purchaser specified
therein

8-K 000-21074 10.3 04/11/2022

10.52 Merchant Cash Advance Agreement, effective April 12, 2022 by and between LG
Funding LLC and MCA Naples LLC and its affiliates named therein and the Personal
Guaranty by Christin Hemmens

10-K 000-21074 10.52 04/15/2022

10.53 Merchant Agreement dated April 13, 2022 by Premium Merchant Funding 18, LLC and
Memory Care At Good Shepherd LLC

10-K 000-21074 10.53 04/15/2022

14 Code of Business Conduct and Ethics 10-K 000-21074 14 04/15/2022
16.1 Letter re change in certifying accountant - Marcum LLP dated November 5, 2021 8-K 000-21074 16.1 11/05/2021
16.2 Letter re change in certifying accountant - Friedman LLP dated November 5, 2021 8-K 000-21074 10.61 12/03/2021
21 List of Subsidiaries. (32) 10-K 000-21074 21 04/15/2022
23.1 Consent of Turner, Stone & Company, L.L.P, Independent Registered Public Accounting

Firm.
10-K 000-21074 23.1 04/15/2022
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https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000149315222006108/ex10-1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000149315222006108/ex10-2.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000149315222006108/ex10-3.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/895665/000149315222007459/ex10-1.htm
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23.2 Consent of Friedman LLP 10-K 000-21074 23.2 04/15/2022
31.1 Statement of CEO Pursuant to 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2 Statement of CFO Pursuant to 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1 Statement of CEO Pursuant to 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. *^
32.2 Statement of CFO Pursuant to 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. *^
101 Financials provided in Inline XBRL format. (38)
104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibits

101)
* Filed herewith
^ Furnished, not filed
+ This exhibit is a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

(a) Exhibits. See Item 15(a) above.

ITEM 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARY
None.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of
Clearday, Inc and Subsidiaries

Opinion on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Clearday, Inc. (formerly Superconductor Technologies, Inc.) and Subsidiaries
(the “Company”) as of December 31, 2021, and the related consolidated statements of operations, mezzanine equity, convertible preferred stock and
deficit and cash flows for the year then ended and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “financial statements”). In our opinion, the
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2021, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the years then ended, in conformity with acc
ounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Going Concern
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As
discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has suffered recurring losses from operations and has insufficient
working capital to fund future operations both of which raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern. Management’s
plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note 1. The consolidated financial statements do not include any adju
stments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

Basis for Opinion
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
financial statements based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) (“PCAOB”) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the
applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not
required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audit, we are required to
obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
Our audit included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and
performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. Our audit also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that our audit provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matter
The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that was communicated or
required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) related to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and
(2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our
opinion on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing separate opinions
on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.

● Fair value of business combination - as discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company entered into a business
combination during the year, which we identified as a critical audit matter. There was a high degree of auditor judgment to evaluate the
significant assumptions used by management in determining the relative fair values of acquired tangible assets and liabilities including
any intangible assets or goodwill. The sensitivity of reasonably possible changes to those assumptions could have had a significant
impact on the determination of recorded amounts of such assets and liabilities.

The following are the primary procedures we performed to address this critical audit matter. We reviewed the underlying documents, evaluated the
reasonableness of the Company’s fair value determinations, performed selected tests related to acquired assets and liabilities and we evaluated the
appropriateness of the accounting recognition and the adequacy of the related disclosures.
/s/ Turner, Stone & Company, LLP
We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2022
April 15, 2022
Turner, Stone & Company, LLP
Dallas, Texas
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
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Clearday Inc. (f/k/a Allied Integral United, Inc.)

Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Clearday Inc. (f/k/a Allied Integral United Inc.) (the “Company”) as of December
31, 2020, and the related consolidated statements of operations, mezzanine equity, convertible preferred stock and deficit, and cash flows for the
year then ended, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”). In our opinion, the consolidated
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2020, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with accou
nting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The Company’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As
discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company’s significant accumulated deficit and recurring losses from operations
and negative cash flows from operating activities raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Management’s plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial
statements do not include an
y adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

Basis for Opinion
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States) (“PCAOB”) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal
securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The
Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audit, we
are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
Our audit included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error
or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audit also included evaluating the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
/s/ Friedman LLP
We served as the Company’s auditor from 2019
Marlton, New Jersey
May 13, 2021
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash $ 965,075 $ 780,262
Restricted cash 10,000 89,804
Accounts receivable-net 50,761 198,037
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 132,926 179,496
Other Current Assets 2,763,936 -
Current assets held for sale (Notes 2 and 5) - 393,307

Total current assets 3,922,698 1,640,906
Patents & Development 8,930 -
Operating lease right-of-use assets 32,818,019 36,452,438
Property and equipment, net 7,418,836 8,853,284
Other non current assets 288,155 448,580
Non-current assets held for sale (Notes 2 and 5) 2,086,245 8,396,215

Total assets $ 46,542,883 $ 55,791,423
LIABILITIES, MEZZANINE EQUITY AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 3,392,772 $ 4,688,385
Accrued expenses 9,202,644 1,097,362
Accrued interest - 103,631
Current portion of long-term debt 7,169,994 1,623,375
Due to related parties 283,023 -
Deferred revenue - 367,122
Operating lease liabilities 953,817 790,126
Other current liabilities 1,110,000 1,635,123
Current liabilities related to assets held for sale (Notes 2 and 5) 1,438,192 5,339,003
Total current liabilities 23,550,442 15,644,127
Long-term liabilities:
Operating lease liabilities 36,642,807 37,617,081
Mortgage note payable - 639,883
Long-term debt, less current portion, net 5,572,427 4,810,673



Non-current liabilities related to assets held for sale (Notes 2 and 5) 712,847 5,906,804
Total liabilities 66,478,523 64,618,568
Commitments and contingencies (Note 7)
Mezzanine equity
Series F 6.75% Convertible Preferred Stock, $.001 par value, 5,000,000 share authorized,
4,797,052 and 4,606,853 issued and outstanding at December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020,
respectively. Liquidation value $96,296,493 and $92,137,060 at December 31, 2021 and
December 31, 2020, respectively. 16,857,267 10,969,078
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Preferred Stock, $0.001 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, $0.001 par value, 2,000,000 shares authorized, 328,925
and 328,925 shares issued and outstanding, as of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020,
respectively. Liquidation value of $329 and $329 at December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020,
respectively 329 329
Common stock, $.001 par value, 80,000,000 shares authorized, 14,914,458 and 13,048,942 shares
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively 14,915 13,049
Additional paid-in-capital 17,069,481 17,913,638
Accumulated deficit (65,208,327) (45,522,907)

Clearday, Inc. shareholders deficit: (48,123,602) (27,595,891)
Non-controlling interest in subsidiaries 11,330,695 7,799,668
Total deficit (36,792,907) (19,796,223)

TOTAL LIABLITIES, MEZZANINE EQUITY AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT) $ 46,542,883 $ 55,791,423

See accompanying notes to the Audited consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Operations

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
REVENUES
Resident fee revenue, net $ 12,603,346 $ 12,655,527
Adult Day Care and other revenue 242,019 -
Commercial Property Rental Revenue 36,310

$ 12,881,675 $ 12,655,527
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operating expenses 22,487,970 18,099,750
Selling, general and administrative expenses 7,393,834 5,516,693
Loss on Impairment 7,454,692 -
Research & development - 1,741,177
Depreciation and amortization expenses 529,748 601,314
Total operating expenses 37,866,244 25,958,934
Operating loss (24,984,569) (13,303,407)
Other (income) expenses
Interest and other expense 1,381,670 472,954
Gain on sale of investment (1,172,151) -
Unrealized gain/(loss) on equity investments - 1,284,000
Other (income)/expenses (1,596,740) (169,751)
PPP Loan Forgiveness (1,616,104) -

Total other (income)/expenses (3,003,325) 1,587,203
Net Loss from continuing operations (21,981,244) (14,890,610)
(Loss) Income from discontinued operations, net of tax (Note 5) 2,474,569 1,115,540
Net loss (19,506,675) (13,775,070)

Net (loss) gain attributable to non-controlling interest (178,745) 1,994,708
Preferred stock dividend (5,888,013) (10,944,480)

Net loss applicable to Clearday, Inc. $ (25,573,433) $ (22,724,842)

Basic and diluted loss per share attributable to Clearday, Inc.
Net loss from continued operations (1.59) (1.20)
Net loss/income from discontinued operations 0.18 .092
Net loss (1.41) (1.11)
Weighted average common shares basic and diluted outstanding 13,791,741 12,373,493

See accompanying notes to the Audited consolidated financial statements.
F-4

Clearday, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Mezzanine Equity, Convertible Preferred Stock and Deficit

Mezzanine Equity Series F
Preferred Stock

Preferred Stock
Series A Common Stock

Additional
Paid-in Accumulated

Clearday,
Inc.

shareholder
Non-

Controlling Total

Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Deficit Deficit Interest Deficit

Balance at December 31, 2019 4,333,241 $ 5,496,838 328,925 $ 329 11,315,499 $ 11,314 10,743,199 $ (22,798,067) $ (12,043,225) $ 5,162,413 (6,880,812)
Stock compensation for services - - - - 1,080,983 1,081 1,698,854 - 1,699,935 110,000 1,809,935
Issuance of series I Convertible
Preferred Stock in subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 3,206,576 3,206,576



Issuance of partnership units in
subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 990,387 990,387
PIK dividends on Series F
Convertible Preferred Stock - - - - - - - - - 325,000 325,000
PIK dividends on Convertible -
Preferred Stock 273,613 5,472,240 - - 652,460 654 5,471,585 (10,944,480) (5,472,241) - (5,472,241)

Net Loss - - - - - - - (11,780,360) (11,780,360) (1,994,708) (13,775,068)

Balance at December 31, 2020 4,606,853 $ 10,969,078 328,925 $ 329 13,048,942 $ 13,049 $ 17,913,638 $ (45,522,907) $ (27,595,891) 7,799,668 $ (19,796,223)

Stock compensation for services - - - - 135,923 136 689,776 - 689,912 10,765 700,677
Issuance of series I Convertible
Preferred Stock in subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 897,000 897,000
Issuance of partnership units in
subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 2,444,517 2,444,517
PIK dividends on Convertible
Preferred Stock 190,199 5,888,189 - - 453,551 454 (5,888,467) (5,888,013) - (5,888,013)
Issuance of common stock in
connection with reverse merger - - - - 1,276,042 1,276 3,380,235 3,381,511 - 3,381,511
Redemption of fractional shares - - - - - - (2,110) (2,110) - (2,110)
Warrants Issued for Service 976,409 976,409 976,409

Net Income - - - - - - - (19,685,420) (19,685,420) 178,745 (19,506,675)

Balance at December 31, 2021 4,797,052 $ 16,857,267 328,925 $ 329 14,914,458 $ 14,915 $ 17,069,481 $ (65,208,327) $ (48,123,602) 11,330,695 $ (36,792,907)

See accompanying notes to the Audited consolidated financial statements.
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Clearday, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss $ (19,506,675) $ (13,775,070)
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax (2,474,569) (1,115,540)
Loss from continuing operations, (21,981,244) (14,890,610)
Adjustments required to reconcile net loss to cash flows used in operating activities
Depreciation and amortization expense 529,748 601,314
Impairment of assets 7,454,692 -
Allowance for doubtful accounts 108,360 (5,016)
Amortization of right of use assets 1,983,618 1,298,177
Stock based compensation 700,677 1,809,935
Amortization of debt issuance costs 494,685 1,032
Gain of PPP Loan forgiveness (1,616,104) -
Redemption of fractional shares (2,110) -
Warrants issued for Services 976,409 -
Effect of reverse merger 64,041 -
Unrealized gain on securities - 1,295,000
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable 38,916 (49,874)
Prepaid expenses (2,490,450) (76,864)
Other current assets - -
Accounts payable (1,126,238) 1,859,609
Accrued expenses 7,581,560 (299,332)
Accrued interest (103,631) 44,398
Deferred revenue (367,122) 322,722
Other non-current asset (2,795,782) (227,021)
Other current liabilities (472,361) (12,637)
Change in operating lease liability (810,583) (648,022)

Net cash used in activities of continuing operations (11,832,919) (8,977,189)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities of discontinued operations 9,222,731 (837,446)
Net cash used in operating activities (2,610,188) (9,814,636)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for property and equipment (240,727) (193,000)
Proceeds from sale of non-consolidated subsidiary 1,456,206 -
Payment for capitalized software costs (1,608,930) (160,104)
Shares issued under merger - -
Payment for acquisitions (100,000) -
Net cash used (provided by) in investing activities of continuing operations (493,451) (353,104)
Net cash provided by investing activities of discontinued operations - 16,101,584
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities (493,451) 15,748,480
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of long-term debt (13,321,372) (1,115,112)
Borrowings on long-term debt, net 12,929,498 1,802,957
Cash received from merger transaction 259,005 -
Proceeds from sale of preferred stock and member units in subsidiary 3,341,517 4,196,963
Net cash provided by continuing operations 3,208,648 4,884,808
Net cash used in financing activities of discontinued operations - (13,512,806)
Net cash provided by (used) in financing activities 3,208,648 (8,627,998)
Change in cash and restricted cash from continuing operations (9,117,722) (4,445,486)
Change in cash and restricted cash from discontinued operations 9,222,731 1,751,331



Cash and restricted cash at beginning of the year 870,066 3,564,222

Cash and restricted cash at end of year $ 975,075 $ 870,067
Reconciliation of cash and restricted cash consist of the following:
End of period
Cash and cash equivalents 965,075 780,262
Restricted cash 10,000 89,804

Cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash $ 975,075 $ 870,066
Beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents 780,262 2,900,207
Restricted cash 89,804 664,016

Cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash $ 870,066 $ 3,564,223
Supplemental cash flow information:
Non-cash financing activities
Debt to equity of non-controlling interest - 325,000
Preferential interest in real estate for 400,000 shares issued by STI - 1,600,000
Net assets acquired in merger, net of cash acquired - -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Audited consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization, Description of Business, Basis of Presentation, Summary of Significant Accounti
ng Policies, Liquidity and Going Concern

Description of Business
Clearday, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), formerly known as Superconductor Technologies Inc., was established in 1987 and closed
a merger with Allied Integral United, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“AIU”), on September 9, 2021. This merger was described in the Registration
Statement (“AIU Merger Registration Statement”) on Form S-4, as amended and supplemented (Registration No. 333-256138). Prior to the closing of
the merger, the Company was a leading company in developing and commercializing high temperature superconductor (“HTS”) materials and
related technologies. As described in the AIU Merger Registration Statement, after the merger, the Company continued the businesses of AIU and
continued one of the businesses of the Company related to its Sapphire Cryocooler and its related patents and intellectual property. AIU was
incorporated on December 20, 2017 and began its business on December 31, 2018 when it acquired the businesses of certain private funds that
operate five (5) memory care residential facilities and other businesses (the “2018 Acquisition”), including commercial real estate and hospitality
assets from related parties. The memory care business is conducted through the Memory Care America LLC subsidiary (“MCA”), which has been
in the residential care business since November 2010 and has been managed by the Company’s executives for approximately 5 years. Since the 2018
Acquisition, the Company has been developing innovative care and wellness products and services focusing on the longevity market.
All of the Company’s assets that were acquired in the 2018 Acquisition and are not related to the memory care facilities or the non-acute care and
wellness industry were designated as non-core businesses and held for disposition. Accordingly, such assets and liabilities are classified as held
for sale in the audited consolidated balances sheets as of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020. Additionally, the results of operations for
these non-core businesses are classified as income from discontinued operations within the audited consolidated statements of operations for the
years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020.
On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of COVID-19, which spread throughout the U.S. and the world, as a
pandemic and has had a significant impact on the global economy, resulting in rapidly changing market and economic conditions. National and
local governments around the world instituted certain measures, including travel bans, prohibitions on group events and gatherings, shutdowns of
certain non-essential businesses, curfews, shelter-in-place orders and recommendations to practice social distancing. The governmental response
includes additional protocols for the health and safety of residents and staff in the Company’s facilities. The outbreak and associated restrictions
on travel that have been implemented have had a material adverse impact on the Company’s business and cash flow from operations, similar to
many businesses. The Company has begun, and intends to continue, to resume normal operations as soon as practicable. However, the Delta
Variant of the COVID-19 has become the predominant COVID-19 strain in the United States and has put a renewed focus on prevention and has
caused many governments and other authorities to re-institute preventive measures to mitigate the risk of hyperlocal outbreaks. The total impact of
COVID-19 is unknown and may continue as the rates of infection, including of the Delta Variant, have increased in Texas and many other states in
the U.S. As a result, management has concluded that there was a long-lived asset impairment triggering event during 2020 and 2021, which required
management to perform an impairment evaluation. See Note 5 - Discontinued Operations for additional discussion and results.
As noted above in the Introductory Note, this Report is the first Annual Report on Form 10-K by the Company after the merger. Accordingly, this is
the first Annual Report on Form 10-K by the Company that includes the businesses conducted by AIU prior to the merger. Additionally, this annual
Report on Form 10-K by the Company uses a date for the year end that is the last day of the year or December31, 2021 which is a change of the year
ended date that was previously used. The Company has assessed the change of the fiscal year ending dates and believes that the change in year
ending dates by the Company has not had a material impact on the financial results for the year ended provided in
this Report and improves the comparability between fiscal periods.

Merger between Allied Integral Untiled, Inc and AIU Special merger Company, Inc and Name Change
On September 9, 2021,

● The merger that was described in the AIU Merger Registration Statement was completed.
● In connection with, and prior to completion of, the Merger, the Company (1) effected a 3.773585 -for-1 share reverse stock split (the

“Reverse Stock Split”) of its Common Stock resulting in a decrease of outstanding shares of common stock from 2,751,780 to
approximately 729,222; and (2) changed its name to “Clearday, Inc.”

● A special distribution for the issuance and delivery of additional shares of its common stock (“True Up Shares”) to the holders of its
shares of Clearday Common Stock of record as of 5:00 pm Eastern Time on September 9, 2021 was declared, which provided for the
distribution of an aggregate amount of approximately 546,820 shares of such Common Stock (representing a dividend rate of approximately
0.749868); such shares were distributed on or about September 20, 2021.
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Under the terms of the merger:
● There was an increase in the number of shares of AIU common stock (2:1), 50% of the shares of AIU’s 6.75% Series A Cumulative

Convertible Preferred Stock were converted into AIU common stock and then the shares of AIU common stock were exchanged for shares
of Clearday, Inc. Common Stock at an exchange ratio of approximately 1.192 shares of Common Stock for each share of AIU common stock;

● Each share of AIU’s 6.75% Series A Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock that was not converted into AIU common stock were
exchanged for an equal number of a new series of preferred stock issued by Clearday, par value $0.001 per share that are designated
Clearday 6.75% Series F Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series F Preferred”), which provide substantially similar terms as the
AIU Series A Preferred, except that such preferred stock will convert to that number of shares of the Clearday’s Common Stock after giving
effect to the exchange ratio used in the Merger or 2.384675 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exchange of 1 share of Series F
Preferred;

● The Company assumed the obligations of the warrants issued by AIU so that such warrants now represent the right to be exercised for
shares of the Clearday’s Common Stock equal to approximately 3,781,509 shares;

● Clearday assumed the obligation to issue its shares of Common Stock with respect to the (1) 10.25% Series I Cumulative Convertible
Preferred Stock (AIU Alt Care Preferred”) issued by AIU Alternative Care, Inc. (“AIU Alt Care”), a subsidiary of AIU, and (2) units of
limited partnership interest (“Clearday OZ LP Interests”) of Clearday Alternative Care OZ Fund LP (“Clearday OZ Fund”), a subsidiary of
AIU Alt Care, which as of the effective date of the merger was equal to an aggregate amount of approximately $15,253,740 of investment
and accrued dividends.

The merger was accounted for as a reverse asset acquisition in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of
America (“GAAP”). Under this method of accounting, AIU was deemed to be the accounting acquirer for financial reporting purposes. This
determination was primarily based on the facts that, immediately following the Merger: (i) AIU’s stockholders owned a substantial majority of the
voting rights in the combined company, (ii) AIU designated a majority of the members of the initial board of directors of the combined company,
and (iii) AIU’s senior management holds all key positions in the senior management of the combined company. As a result, as of the closing date of
the Merger, the net assets of the Company were recorded at their acquisition-date relative fair values in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements of the Company and th
e reported operating results prior to the Merger are those of AIU.

Liquidity and Going Concern
The Company has incurred significant cumulative consolidated operating losses and negative cash flows. As of December 31, 2021, the Company
has an accumulated deficit of $(65,208,327) continued loss from operations of $(19,506,675) and negative cash flows from continued operations in
the amount of $(11,832,919). These factors raise substantial doubt regarding the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The Company
plans to continue to fund its losses from operations and capital funding needs through public or private equity or debt financing or other sources,
including the continued sale of its non-core assets and sale or disposition of other assets. If the Company is not able to secure adequate additional
funding, the Company may be forced to make reductions in spending, extend payment terms with suppliers, liquidate assets where possible, or
suspend or curtail planned programs. Any of these actions could materially harm the Company’s business, results of operations and future
prospects. The accompanying audited consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going
concern, which contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business, and do not include any
adjustments to reflect the possible future effects on the recoverability and classification of assets or amounts and classification of liabilities that
may result should the Company not continue as a going concern. Management does not believe they have sufficient cash for the next twelve
months from the date of this report to continue as a going concern without raising additional capital.
On April 29, 2021, the Company executed a secured promissory note with Benworth Capital Partners, LLC in the amount of $4,550,000, which
included the grant of a first mortgage regarding the property owned by the Company and used to conduct its operations for its Naples Memory
Care facility located at 2626 Goodlette-Frank Road, Naples, Florida 34105 (the “Naples Property”). The original mortgage on this property was paid
off in the amount of $2,739,195 and closing costs of $354,357 were paid. The net proceeds to the Company in this mortgage refinancing was
$1,456,448. This first mortgage loan has a one-year term as compared to the prior (refinanced) mortgage which had a maturity date of 2041. This first
mortgage loan provides for interest only payments at a fixed interest rate of 9.95%. The loan is guaranteed by certain officers.
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For the period ended December 31, 2021 the Company entered into certain financing transactions related to the sale or forward sale of approximately
$1,623,500 of revenues from the MCA residential fees. These transactions resulted in net proceeds of approximately $1,141,600. The repayment of
these financing transactions range from 210 days to one year. (See “Note 6 - Indebtedness”)
For the period ended December 31, 2021, the Company sold undivided interests, representing 67.36% of the aggregate interests, in the Naples
Property for an aggregate cash amount of $3,141,000 which was received by, and is available to, Clearday. The remaining 32.64% of the undivided
interests in the Naples Property are retained by the Company.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation.
The accompanying audited consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, including its wholly owned subsidiaries. In
2019, AIU Alternative Care, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“AIU Alt Care”) and Clearday Alternative Care Oz Fund, L.P, a Delaware limited
partnership (“Clearday OZ Fund”), were formed. The Company owns all of the voting interests of AIU Alt Care and the sole general partner of
Clearday OZ Fund, and less than 1% of the preferred economic interests in such companies.
In November, 2019, AIU Alt Care filed a certificate of designation that authorized preferred stock designated as the Series I 10.25% cumulative
convertible preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share (the “Alt Care Preferred Stock”). The certificate of incorporation of AIU Alt Care authorizes
1,500,000 shares of preferred stock of which 700,000 is designated Alt Care Preferred Stock; and 1,500,000 of common stock. Each share of The Alt
Care Preferred Stock has a stated value equal to the $10.00 Alt Care Preferred Stock original issue price. For the year ended on December 31, 2021,
$897,000 was invested in AIU Alt Care in exchange for 89,700 shares of Alt Care Preferred Stock.
In October, 2019, AIU Alt Care formed AIU Impact Management, LLC and Clearday OZ Fund was formed. AIU Impact Management, LLC manages
Clearday OZ Fund as its general partner, owns 1% of Clearday OZ Fund and allocates 99% of income gains and losses accordingly to the limited
partners. For the year ended on December 31, 2021 Clearday OZ Fund issued 244,462 Clearday OZ Fund LP Interests in the amount $2,444,517.
The exchange rate for each of the Alt Care Preferred Stock and the Clearday OZ LP Interests are equal to (i) the aggregate investment amount for
such security plus accrued and unpaid dividends at 10.25% per annum, (ii) divided by 80% of the 20 consecutive day volume weighted closing
price of the Common Stock of Clearday preceding the conversion date. Prior to the merger, the exchange rate was 1 share for every $10.00 of



aggregate amount of the investment plus such accrued dividends
The Company reports its non-controlling interest in subsidiaries as a separate component of equity in the audited consolidated balance sheets and
reports both net loss attributable to the non-controlling interest and net loss attributable to the Company’s common shareholders on the face of the
audited consolidated statement of operations.
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The accompanying audited consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the annual financial statements of the Company
and of AIU that are contained in the AIU Merger Registration Statement. In the opinion of our management, all adjustments, which include only
normal recurring adjustments considered necessary for a fair presentation, have been included. All intercompany transactions and balances with or
among our consolidated subsidiaries have been eliminated upon consolidation. Our operating results for interim periods are not necessarily
indicative of the results that may be expected for the full year.

Basis of Presentation.
The Company’s audited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“GAAP”). Any reference in these notes to applicable guidance is meant to refer to the authoritative GAAP as found in
the Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) and Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) of the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”). The accompanying audited consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiary. All
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Reclassifications.
Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified on the accompanying audited consolidated statements to conform to the current year
presentation. This reclassification had no effect on previously reported net income (loss), deficit or cash flows from operating activities.

Classification of Convertible Preferred Stock.
In 2021, the Company applied ASC 480, distinguishing liabilities from equity, and revised the consolidated financial statement presentation of its
convertible preferred stock whose redemption is outside the control of the issuer. Registrants having such securities outstanding are required to
present separately, in balance sheets, amounts applicable to the following three general classes of securities: (i) preferred stocks subject to
mandatory redemption requirements or whose redemption is outside the control of the issuer; (ii) preferred stocks which are not redeemable or are
redeemable solely at the option of the issuer; and (iii) common stocks. In addition, the rules require disclosure of redemption terms, five-year
maturity data, and changes in redeemable preferred stock.

Use of Estimates.
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and contingencies at the date of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the periods presented. Management believes that these estimates
and assumptions are reasonable, however, actual results may differ and could have a material effect on future results of operations and financial
position.
The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic could continue to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operations, financial
condition, liquidity and prospects in the near-term and beyond 2020. While management has used all currently available information in its forecasts,
the ultimate impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on its results of operations, financial condition and cash flows is highly uncertain, and cannot
currently be accurately predicted. The Company’s results of operations, financial condition and cash flows are dependent on future developments,
including the duration of the pandemic and the related length of its impact on the global economy, such as a lengthy or severe recession or any
other negative trend in the U.S. or global economy and any new information that may emerge concerning the COVID-19 outbreak and the actions to
contain it or treat its impact, which at the present time are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted with any accuracy.
Significant estimates in our consolidated financial statements relate to valuation of stock-based compensation, internally developed software,
assets held for sale, impairment of long-lived assets and allocations related to the reverse merger.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments.
The Company’s financial instruments are limited to cash, accounts receivable, debt and equity investments, accounts payable, operating leases and
mortgage notes payable. The fair value of these financial instruments was not materially different from their carrying values at December 31, 2021.

Segment Reporting.
Operating segments are identified as components of an enterprise about which separate discrete financial information is available for evaluation by
the chief operating decision-maker, the Chief Executive Officer, in making decisions regarding resource allocation and assessing performance. The
Company views its operations and manages its business as one operating segment.

Cash, and Restricted Cash.
Cash, consisting of short-term, highly liquid investments and money market funds with original maturities of three months or less at the date of
purchase, are carried at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates market.
Restricted cash as of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020 includes cash that the Company deposited as security for obligations arising from
property taxes, property insurance and replacement reserve the Company is required to establish escrows as required by its mortgages and certain
resident security deposits.

Investments.
The Company follows ASU 2016-01, “Financial Instruments-Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities” (“ASU 2016-01”). The Company only has one investment in securities as of December 31, 2020 and applies the Fair Value
approach to record and revalue the share prices on a mark to market basis at each reporting interim period since the original purchase agreement.
All common stock has been marked to market to reflect the current value of the shares.



Goodwill.
Goodwill, which has an indefinite useful life, represents the excess of purchase consideration over fair value of net assets acquired. The Company’s
goodwill is associated with STI’s business prior to the Merger and its other acquisition for Primrose Wellness Group LLC by AIU prior to the
merger (See Note 11 - Acquisitions). In the fourth quarter of 2021, the goodwill associated with the merger was impaired after analysis. Goodwill is
not subject to amortization and is required to be tested for impairment at least on an annual basis. The Company tests goodwill for impairment as of
December 31 of each year. The Company determines whether goodwill may be impaired by comparing the carrying value of the single reporting unit,
including goodwill, to the fair value of the reporting unit. If the fair value is less than the carrying amount, a more detailed analysis is performed to
determine whether goodwill is impaired. The impairment loss, if any, is measured as the excess of the carrying value of the goodwill over the implied
fair value of the goodwill and is recorded in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations.

Software Capitalization.
With regards to developing software, any application costs incurred during the development state, both internal expenses and those paid to third
parties are capitalized and amortized per ASC350-40. Once the software has been developed, the costs to maintain and train others for its use will be
expensed.

Risks and Uncertainties.
The Company’s financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash, investments
and trade receivables. At certain times throughout the year, the Company may maintain deposits in federally insured financial institutions in excess
of federally insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to significant risk on its
cash balances due to the financial position of the depository institutions in which those deposits are held. The Company performs ongoing credit
evaluations of its customers, and the risk with respect to trade receivables is further mitigated by the diversity, both by geography, of the customer
base.
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On March 27, 2020, President Trump signed into law the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (the “CARES Act”). The CARES Act,
among other things, includes provisions relating to refundable payroll tax credits, deferment of employer side social security payments, net
operating loss carry back periods, alternative minimum tax credit refunds, modifications to the net interest deduction limitations, increased
limitations on qualified charitable contributions and technical corrections to tax depreciation methods for qualified improvement property. The
Company continues to examine the impact that the CARES Act may have on its business. Currently, the Company is unable to determine the impact
that the CARES Act will have on its financial condition, results of operations, or liquidity.
The CARES Act also appropriated funds for the U.S. Small Business Administration Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP”) loans that are forgivable
in certain situations and employment related tax credits to promote continued employment, as well as Economic Injury Disaster Loans to provide
liquidity to small businesses harmed by COVID-19.

Comprehensive Income (Loss).
The Company is required to report all components of comprehensive income (loss), including net income (loss), in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements in the period in which they are recognized. Comprehensive income (loss) is defined as the change in equity during a period
from transactions and other events and circumstances from non-owner sources, including unrealized gains and losses on investments. The
company did not have any comprehensive income or losses in 2021.

Earnings Per Share.
Basic and diluted earnings per share are computed and disclosed in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 260, Earnings Per Share. The Company
utilizes the two-class method to compute earnings available to common shareholders. Under the two-class method, earnings are adjusted by
accretion amounts to redeemable noncontrolling interests recorded at redemption value. The adjustments represent dividend distributions, in
substance, to the noncontrolling interest holder as the holders have contractual rights to receive an amount upon redemption other than the fair
value of the applicable shares. As a result, earnings are adjusted to reflect this in substance distribution that is different from other common
shareholders. In addition, the Company allocates net earnings to each class of common stock and participating security as if all of the net earnings
for the period had been distributed. The Company’s participating securities consist of share-based payment awards that contain a non-forfeitable
right to receive dividends and therefore are considered to participate in undistributed earnings with common shareholders. Basic earnings per
common share excludes dilution and is calculated by dividing net earnings allocated to common shares by the weighted-average number of
common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per common share is calculated by dividing net earnings allocable to common shares
by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period, as adjusted for the potential dilutive effect of non-participating
share-based awards.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts.
The Company records accounts receivable at their estimated net realizable value. Additionally, the Company estimates allowances for uncollectible
amounts based upon factors which include, but are not limited to, historical payment trends, write-off experience, and the age of the receivable as
well as a review of specific accounts, the terms of the agreements, the residents, the payers’ financial capacity to pay and other factors which may
include likelihood and cost of litigation.
The allowance for doubtful accounts reflects estimates that the Company periodically reviews and revises based on new information, to which
revisions may be material. The Company’s allowance for doubtful accounts consists of the following:

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Balance at
Beginning of

Period

Provision for
Doubtful
Accounts Write-offs

Balance at 
End of Period

December 31, 2021 68,911 108,360 (177,271) 0
December 31, 2020 63,895 68,911 (63,895) 68,911

Assets and Liabilities Held for Sale.
The Company designated its real estate and hotels as held for sale when it is probable these non-core business assets will be sold within one year.
The Company records these assets on the audited consolidated balance sheets at the lesser of the carrying value and fair value less estimated
selling costs. If the carrying value is greater than the fair value less the estimated selling costs, the Company records an impairment charge. The
Company evaluates the fair value of the assets held for sale each period to determine if it has changed (See Note 5 - Discontinued Operations).
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Property and Equipment.
Property and equipment are recorded at cost and depreciated using the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, which are typically as
follows:

Asset Class

Estimated
Useful Life (in

years)
Buildings 39
Building improvements 39
Equipment 7
Computer equipment and software 5
Furniture and fixtures 7
The Company regularly evaluates whether events or changes in circumstances have occurred that could indicate impairment in the value of the
Company’s long-lived assets. If there is an indication that the carrying value of an asset is not recoverable, the Company determines the amount of
impairment loss, if any, by comparing the historical carrying value of the asset to its estimated fair value, with any amount in excess of fair value
recognized as an expense in the current period. The Company determines estimated fair value through an evaluation of recent financial
performance, recent transactions for similar assets, market conditions and projected cash flows using standard industry valuation techniques.
Undiscounted cash flow projections and estimates of fair value amounts are based on a number of assumptions such as revenue and expense
growth rates, estimated holding periods and estimated capitalization rates (Level 3).

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets.
Long-lived assets to be held and used, including property and equipment, right to use assets and definite life intangible assets, are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable. As of December
31, 2021, the Company has recognized certain impairments, See Note 3 - Real Estate, Property and Equipment, Net.

Gain (Loss) on Sale of Assets.
The Company enters into real estate transactions which may include the disposal of certain commercial shopping centers and hotels, including the
associated real estate; such transactions are recorded in Note 5 - Discontinued Operations. The Company recognizes gain or loss on these property
sales when the transfer of control is complete. The Company recognizes gain or loss from the sale of equity method investments when the transfer
of control is complete, and the Company has no continuing involvement with the transferred financial assets.

Legal Proceedings and Claims.
The Company has been, is currently, and expects in the future to be involved in claims, lawsuits, and regulatory and other government audits,
investigations and proceedings arising in the ordinary course of the Company’s business, some of which may involve material amounts. The
Company establish accruals for specific legal proceedings when it is considered probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount of the loss
can be reasonably estimated. Also, the defense and resolution of these claims, lawsuits, and regulatory and other government audits,
investigations and proceedings may require the Company to incur significant expense. The Company accounts for claims and litigation losses in
accordance with FASB, Accounting Standards Codification™, or ASC, Topic 450, Contingencies. Under FASB ASC Topic 450, loss contingency
provisions are recorded for probable and estimable losses at the Company’s best estimate of a loss or, when a best estimate cannot be made, at the
Company’s estimate of the minimum loss. These estimates are often developed prior to knowing the amount of the ultimate loss, require the
application of considerable judgment, and are refined as additional information becomes known. Accordingly, the Company is often initially unable
to develop a best estimate of loss and therefore the estimated minimum loss amount, which could be zero, is recorded; then, as information becomes
known, the minimum loss amount is updated, as appropriate. Occasionally, a minimum or best estimate amount may be increased or decreased when
events result in a changed expectation.
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Lease Accounting.
The Company follows FASB ASC Topic 842, Leases, or ASC Topic 842, utilizing the modified retrospective transition method with no adjustments
to comparative periods presented. The Company has elected the practical expedient to account for each separate lease component of a contract and
its associated non-lease components as a single lease component, thus causing all fixed payments to be capitalized.
Lessee.
The Company regularly evaluates whether a contract meets the definition of a lease whenever a contract grants a party the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To the extent the identified asset is able to be shared among multiple
parties, the Company has determined that one party does not have control of the identified asset and the contract is not considered a lease. The
Company accounts for contracts that do not meet the definition of a lease under other relevant accounting guidance (such as ASC 606 for revenue
from contacts with customers).
The Company’s lease agreements primarily consist of building leases. These leases generally contain an initial term of 15 to 17 years and may
contain renewal options. If the Company’s lease agreements include renewal option periods, the Company includes such renewal options in its
calculation of the estimated lease term when it determines the options are reasonably certain to be exercised. When such renewal options are
deemed to be reasonably certain, the estimated lease term determined under ASC 842 will be greater than the non-cancelable term of the contractual
arrangement.
The Company classifies its lessee arrangements at inception as either operating leases or financing leases. A lease is classified as a financing lease
if at least one of the following criteria is met: (1) the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the lessee, (2) the lease grants the lessee
an option to purchase the underlying asset that the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise, (3) the lease term is for a major part of the remaining
economic life of the underlying asset, (4) the present value of the sum of the lease payments equals or exceeds substantially all of the fair value of
the underlying asset, or (5) the underlying asset is of such a specialized nature that it is expected to have no alternative use to the lessor at the end
of the lease term. A lease is classified as an operating lease if none of the five criteria described above for financing lease classification is met. The
Company has no financing leases as of December 31, 2021.



ROU assets associated with operating leases are included in “Right of Use Asset” on the Company’s audited balance sheet. Current and long-term
portions of lease liabilities related to operating leases are included in “Lease Liabilities, Current” and “Lease Liabilities, Long-Term” on the
Company’s balance sheet as of December 31, 2021. ROU assets represent the Company’s right to use an underlying asset for the estimated lease
term and lease liabilities represent the Company’s present value of its future lease payments. In assessing its leases and determining its lease
liability at lease commencement or upon modification, the Company was not able to readily determine the rate implicit for its lessee arrangements,
and thus has used its incremental borrowing rate on a collateralized basis to determine the present value of the lease payments. The Company’s
ROU assets are measured as the balance of the lease liability plus or minus any prepaid or accrued lease payments and any unamortized initial
direct costs. Operating lease expenses are recognized on a ratable basis, regardless of whether the payment terms require the Company to make
payments annually, quarterly, monthly, or for the entire term in advance. If the payment terms include fixed escalator provisions, the effect of such
increases is recognized on a straight-line basis. The Company calculates the straight-line expense over the contract’s estimated lease term,
including any renewal option periods that the Company deems reasonably certain to be exercised.
The Company reviews the carrying value of its ROU assets for impairment, similar to its other long-lived assets, whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. The Company could record impairments in the future if there are changes
in (1) long-term market conditions, (2) expected future operating results or (3) the utility of the assets that negatively impact the fair value of its
ROU assets.
Lessor.
The Company’s lessor arrangements primarily included tenant contracts within shopping centers, which is included in discontinued operations.
The Company classifies its leases at inception as operating, direct financing, or sales-type leases. A lease is classified as a sales-type lease if at
least one of the following criteria is met: (1) the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the lessee, (2) the lease grants the lessee an
option to purchase the underlying asset that the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise, (3) the lease term is for a major part of the remaining
economic life of the underlying asset, (4) the present value of the sum of the lease payments equals or exceeds substantially all of the fair value of
the underlying assets or (5) the underlying asset is of such a specialized nature that it is expected to have no alternative use to the lessor at the end
of the lease term. Furthermore, when none of the above criteria is met, a lease is classified as a direct financing lease if both of the following criteria
are met: (1) the present value of the of the sum of the lease payments and any residual value guaranteed by the lessee, that is not already reflected
in the lease payments, equals or exceeds the fair value of the underlying asset and (2) it is probable that the lessor will collect the lease payments
plus any amount necessary to satisfy a residual value guarantee. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not qualify as a sales-type or
direct financing lease. Currently, the Company classifies all of its lessor arrangements as operating leases.
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Revenues from the Company’s lessor arrangements are recognized on a straight-line, ratable basis over the fixed, non-cancelable term of the
relevant tenant contract, regardless of whether the payments from the tenant are received in equal monthly amounts during the life of a tenant
contract. Certain of the Company’s tenant contracts contain fixed escalation clauses (such as fixed-dollar or fixed-percentage increases) or inflation-
based escalation clauses (such as those tied to the change in CPI) and is included in discontinued operations. If the payment terms call for fixed
escalations, upfront payments, or rent-free periods, the rental revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over the fixed, non-cancelable term of
the agreement. When calculating straight-line site rental revenues, the Company considers all fixed elements of tenant contractual escalation
provisions.
Certain of the Company’s arrangements with tenants contain both lease and non-lease components. In such circumstances, the Company has
determined (1) the timing and pattern of transfer for the lease and non-lease component are the same and (2) the stand-alone lease component
would be classified as an operating lease. As such, the Company has aggregated certain non-lease components with lease components and has
determined that the lease components represent the predominant component of the arrangement.

Income Taxes.
The Company’s income tax expense includes U.S. income taxes. Certain items of income and expense are not reported in tax returns and financial
statements in the same year. The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method, which requires the recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences to be included in the Company’s audited consolidated financial
statements. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined on the basis of the differences between the financial statement and
tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse, while the effect of a
change in tax rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.
The Company can recognize a tax benefit only if it is “more likely than not” that a particular tax position will be sustained upon examination or audit.
To the extent the “more likely than not” standard has been satisfied, the benefit associated with a tax position is measured as the largest amount
that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized.
Changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded in the provision for income taxes. The Company assesses the likelihood that its deferred
tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income and, to the extent, the Company believes that the Company is more likely than not that all or
a portion of deferred tax assets will not be realized, the Company establishes a valuation allowance to reduce the deferred tax assets to the
appropriate valuation. To the extent the Company establishes a valuation allowance or increase or decrease this allowance in a given period, the
Company includes the related tax expense or tax benefit within the tax provision in the audited consolidated statement of operations in that period.
In making such a determination, the Company considers all available positive and negative evidence, including future reversals of existing taxable
temporary differences, projected future taxable income, tax-planning strategies, and results of recent operations. In the future, if the Company
determines that it would be able to realize its deferred tax assets in excess of their net recorded amount, the Company will make an adjustment to the
deferred tax asset valuation allowance and record an income tax benefit within the tax provision in the audited consolidated statement of operations
in that period.
The Company pays franchise taxes in certain states in which it has operations. The Company has included franchise taxes in general and
administrative and operating expenses in its audited consolidated statements of operations.

Revenue Recognition.
The Company recognizes revenue from contracts with customers in accordance with ASC Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, or
ASC Topic 606, using the practical expedient in paragraph 606-10-10-4 that allows for the use of a portfolio approach, because we have determined
that the effect of applying the guidance to our portfolios of contracts within the scope of ASC Topic 606 on our audited consolidated financial
statements would not differ materially from applying the guidance to each individual contract within the respective portfolio or our performance
obligations within such portfolio. The five-step model defined by ASC Topic 606 requires the Company to: (i) identify its contracts with customers,
(ii) identify its performance obligations under those contracts, (iii) determine the transaction prices of those contracts, (iv) allocate the transaction
prices to its performance obligations in those contracts and (v) recognize revenue when each performance obligation under those contracts is



satisfied. Revenue is recognized when promised goods or services are transferred to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration
expected in exchange for those goods or services.
A substantial portion of the Company’s revenue at its independent living and assisted living communities relates to contracts with residents for
services that are generally under ASC Topic 606. The Company’s contracts with residents and other customers that are within the scope of ASC
Topic 606 are generally short-term in nature. The Company has determined that services performed under those contracts are considered one
performance obligation in accordance with ASC Topic 606 as such services are regarded as a series of distinct events with the same timing and
pattern of transfer to the resident or customer. Revenue is recognized for those contracts when the Company’s performance obligation is satisfied
by transferring control of the service provided to the resident or customer, which is generally when the services are provided over time.
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Resident fees at our independent living and assisted living communities consist of regular monthly charges for basic housing and support services
and fees for additional requested services, such as assisted living services, personalized health services and ancillary services. Fees are specified in
our agreements with residents, which are generally short term (30 days to one year), with regular monthly charges billed in advance. Funds received
from residents in advance of services provided are not material to our audited consolidated financial statements. Some of our senior living
communities require payment of an upfront entrance fee in advance of a resident moving into the community; substantially all of these community
fees are non-refundable and are initially recorded as deferred revenue and included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities in our audited
consolidated balance sheets. These deferred amounts are then amortized on a straight-line basis into revenue over the term of the resident’s
agreement. When the resident no longer resides within our community, the remaining deferred non-refundable fees are recognized in revenue.
Revenue recorded and deferred in connection with community fees is not material to our audited consolidated financial statements. Revenue for
basic housing and support services and additional requested services is recognized in accordance with ASC Topic 606 and measured based on the
consideration specified in the resident agreement and is recorded when the services are provided.

Core Business - Continuing Operations.
Resident Care Contracts. Resident fees at the Company’s senior living communities may consist of regular monthly charges for basic housing and
support services and fees for additional requested services and ancillary services. Fees are specified in the Company’s agreements with residents,
which are generally short term (30 days to one year), with regular monthly charges billed the first of the month. Funds received from resident in
advance of services are not material to the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements.
Below is a table that shows the breakdown by percent of revenues related to contracts with residents versus resident fees for support or ancillary
services.

For the years ended December 31,
2021 % 2020 %

Revenue from contracts with customers:
Resident rent - over time $ 12,104,591 94% $ 12,287,423 97.1%
Day care 278,329 2% - -
Amenities and conveniences - point in time 498,755 4% 368,104 2.9%
Total revenue from contracts with customers $ 12,881,675 $ 12,655,527 100.%
Rent increases helped augment revenue in 2021 however, total revenue decreased due to the relinquishment of operations in Simpsonville, NC. in
September 2021, resulting in a decrease in total revenue in Q4. Day care revenue is from Primrose Day care center which was purchased in 2021.
Seven months of day care revenue are included in the total.

Other Operating Income.
On March 27, 2020, the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act, or CARES Act, was signed into law. Under the CARES Act, the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services, or HHS, established the Provider Relief Fund. The Provider Relief Fund was further supplemented on
December 27, 2020 by the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021. Retention and use of the funds received under the CARES Act are subject to
certain terms and conditions, including certain reporting requirements. Other operating income includes income recognized for funds received
pursuant to the Provider Relief Fund of the CARES Act for which the Company has determined that it was in compliance with the terms and
conditions of the Provider Relief Fund of the CARES Act. The Company recognized other operating income in its consolidated statements of
operations to the extent it had estimated that it had COVID-19 incurred losses or related costs for which provisions of the CARES Act is intended
to compensate. The amount of income recognized for these estimated losses and costs is limited to the amount of funds received during the period
in which the estimated losses and costs were recognized or incurred or, if funds were received subsequently, the period in which the funds were
received.
During the year ended December 31, 2021 the Company has received HHS Government grants amounting to $289,487 and total HHS Government
grants received by the Company of $675,868. As of December 31, 2021, the Company has included the funds as part of other income in the
statement of operations. (See “Note 1 - Description of Business, Basis of Presentation, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Liquidity and
Going Concern - HHS Government Grants”).
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Discontinued Operations.
Hotels. During 2020 the hotel operations were suspended due to the COVID-19 and as of the date of this Report, the Company does not have any
hotel properties.
The hotels’ results of operations consist primarily of room rentals, food and beverage sales and other ancillary goods and services from hotel
properties. Hotel operating revenues are disaggregated into room revenue, ancillary hotel revenue and other revenue on the audited consolidated
statements of operations. Revenues are recorded net of any discounts or sales, occupancy or similar taxes collected from customers at the hotels, in
the audited consolidated statements of operations under discontinued operations.
Room revenue is generated through short-term contracts with customers whereby customers agree to pay a daily rate for the right to occupy hotel
rooms for one or more nights. The Company’s performance obligations are fulfilled at the end of each night that the customers have the right to
occupy the rooms. Room revenues are recognized daily at the contracted room rate in effect for each room night.
Food and beverage revenues are generated when customers purchase food and beverage at a hotel’s restaurant, bar or other facilities. The
Company’s performance obligations are fulfilled at the time that food and beverage is purchased and provided to the customers.



Other revenues such as cancellation fees, telephone services or ancillary services such as laundry are recognized at the point in time or over the
time period that the associated good or service is provided.
Payment received for a future stay is recognized as an advance deposit, which is included in Other Current Liabilities in Discontinued Operations
on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet (see Note 5 - Discontinued Operations). Advance deposits are recognized as revenue when rooms
are occupied, or goods or services have been delivered or rendered to customers. Advance deposits are generally recognized as revenue within a
one-year period.
Commercial Shopping Centers and other Rental Properties: Leasing revenue from commercial shopping centers includes minimum rents,
percentage rents, tenant recoveries and other leasing income which are accounted for under ASC Topic 842. Minimum rental revenues are
recognized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the related leases. The difference between the amount of rent due in a year and the amount
recorded as rental income is referred to as the “straight-line rent adjustment.” Percentage rents are recognized and accrued when tenants’ specified
sales targets have been met. Estimated recoveries from certain tenants for the pro rata share of real estate taxes, insurance and other shopping
center operating expenses are recognized as revenues in the period the applicable expenses are incurred. Other tenants pay a fixed rate, and these
tenant recoveries are recognized as revenues on a straight-line basis over the term of the related leases.
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Cost of Product Revenue.
Cost of product revenue represents direct and indirect costs incurred to bring the product to saleable condition.

Research and Development Expenses.
All research and development costs are charged to expense as incurred. Research and development expenses primarily include (i) payroll and
related costs associated with research and development performed, (ii) costs related to clinical and preclinical testing of the Company’s
technologies under development, and (iii) other research and development costs including allocations of facility costs.

PPP Loans.
The Company recognizes Paycheck Protection Program loans (PPP loans) under the Small Business Administration as debt instruments in
accordance with ASC 470, Debt. When the loan proceeds are received, a long-term liability account (i.e., “PPP Loan Liability”) is set up. The
presentation of the loan in the balance sheet is accounted for in accordance with U.S. GAAP regarding the presentation of assets and liabilities,
whereas the portion of the loan due within 12 months from year end will be considered a current liability and the remaining portion will be
considered a long-term liability. Also, under this guidance, a borrower should not recognize any income from the extinguishment of its debt until the
borrower has been legally released as the primary obligor under the loan. In addition, the forgiveness of PPP loans as income has been recorded as
other income and not included in income from operations based on the unprecedented nature of COVID-19.

HHS Government Grants.
The Company recognizes income for government grants when grant proceeds are received and the Company determines it is reasonably assured
that it will comply with the conditions of the grant, the Company will recognize the distributions received in the income statement on a systematic
and rational basis. The Company will estimate the fair value of the grant using the applicable HHS definitions of health care related expenses and
lost revenue attributable to COVID-19, considering the Company’s projected and actual results at the end of each reporting period.
Upon conclusion that Clearday, Inc. is reasonably assured that it has met the conditions of the grant, it must measure the amount of unreimbursed
health-care related expenses and lost revenue related to COVID-19 at the end of each reporting period and release that amount from Refundable
Advance to Other Revenue. During the year ended December 31, 2021 the Company has received grant amounting to $289,487 and total grant
received so far by the Company amounts to $675,868.

ERTC Funds.
The Company is eligible to claim the employee retention tax credit (“ERTC”) for certain of our employees under the CARES act. The refundable tax
credit for 2021 is available to employers that fully or partially suspend operations during any calendar quarter in 2021 due to orders from an
appropriate governmental authority limiting commerce, travel, or group meetings due to COVID-19, and is equal to 70% of qualified wages paid after
March 12, 2020 through December 31, 2020 to qualified employees, with a maximum credit of $7,000 per employee. We estimate that we will be
eligible to claim tax credits of approximately $1.6 million per quarter for 2021. The credit was modified and extended for wages paid from January 1,
2021 through December 31, 2021 by the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021. Certain of these credits are obtained by refunds of employer taxes
that have been paid and other amounts were obtained by reducing the amount of withholdings remitted to the IRS. The ERTC has recently been
terminated as of fourth quarter of 2021.

General and Administrative Expenses.
General and administrative expenses represent personnel costs for employees involved in general corporate functions, including finance,
accounting, legal and human resources, among others. Additional costs included in general and administrative expenses consist of professional
fees for legal (including patent costs), audit and other consulting services, travel and entertainment, charitable contributions, recruiting, allocated
facility and general information technology costs, depreciation and amortization, and other general corporate overhead expenses.
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Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted.
In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Financial Instruments-Credit Losses (Topic 326), which requires a financial asset, or a group of
financial assets measured at amortized cost basis to be presented at the net amount expected to be collected. This ASU eliminates the probable
initial recognition threshold and instead requires reflection of an entity’s current estimate of all expected credit losses. In addition, this ASU amends
the current available for sale security other-than-temporary impairment model for debt securities. The length of time that the fair value of an
available for sale debt security has been below the amortized cost will no longer impact the determination of whether a credit loss exists and credit
losses will now be limited to the difference between a security’s amortized cost basis and its fair value. In November 2018, the FASB issued ASU
No. 2018-19, Codification Improvements to Topic 326, Financial Instruments-Credit Losses, which amends the transition and effective date for
nonpublic entities and clarifies that receivables arising from operating leases are not in the scope of this ASU. These ASUs are effective for
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2022. The Company is assessing the potential impact that the adoption of these ASUs will have on



its audited consolidated financial statements.
In December 2019, the FASB also issued ASU 2019-12, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes, which simplifies
certain requirements under Topic 740, including eliminating the exception to intra-period tax allocation when there is a loss from continuing
operations and income from other sources, such as other comprehensive income or discontinued operations. The amendments in this ASU are
effective for the fiscal year beginning after December 15, 2020. The Company has determined that this ASU does not have a material impact on its
audited consolidated financial statements.
In March 2021, the FASB issued ASU 2021-03 - Intangibles - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Accounting Alternative for Evaluating Triggering
Events, which requires entities to monitor and evaluate goodwill impairment triggering events throughout the reporting period. ASU 2021-03
provides an accounting alternative to perform the goodwill impairment triggering event evaluation as required in Subtopic 350-20 as of the end of
the reporting period, whether the reporting period is an interim or annual period. This alternative requires entities to evaluate the facts and
circumstances as of the end of each reporting period to determine whether a triggering event exists and, if so, whether it is more likely than not that
goodwill is impaired. The amendments in this Update do not require incremental disclosures beyond the existing requirements in Topic 235, Notes
to Financial Statements, and Subtopic 350-20. ASU No. 2021-03 was effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. ASU 2021-03 was
adopted by the Company on January 1, 2021. The adoption of this new guidance did not have a material impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Company.
In May 2021, the FASB issued ASU 2021-04 - Earnings Per Share (Topic 260), Debt - Modifications and Extinguishments (Subtopic 470-50),
Compensation - Stock Compensation (Topic 718), and Derivatives and Hedging - Contracts in Entity’s Own Equity (Subtopic 815-40): Issuer’s
Accounting for Certain Modifications or Exchanges of Freestanding Equity-Classified Written Call Options (a consensus of the FASB Emerging
Issues Task Force). ASU 2021-04 clarifies and reduces diversity in an issuer’s accounting for modifications or exchanges of freestanding equity-
classified written call options that remain equity classified after modification or exchange. Modifications and exchanges should be treated as an
exchange of the original instrument for a new instrument. The amendment requires entities to measure the effect as the difference between the fair
value of the modified or exchanged written call option and the fair value of that written call option immediately before it is modified or exchanged if
the modification or the exchange that is a part of or directly related to a modification or an exchange of an existing debt instrument or line-of-credit
or revolving-debt arrangements.
For all other modifications or exchanges, the effect should be measured as the excess, if any, of the fair value of the modified or exchanged written
call option over the fair value of that written call option immediately before it is modified or exchanged for all other modifications or exchanges. The
amendments require entities to recognize the effect on the basis of the substance of the transaction, in the same manner as if cash had been paid as
consideration. The amendments also require entities to recognize the effect in accordance with the guidance in Topic 718, Compensation - Stock
Compensation. ASU No. 2021-04 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021, including interim periods within those fiscal years.
ASU 2021-04 will be adopted on January 1, 2022.
Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by FASB that do not require adoption until a future date are not expected to have a
material impact on the consolidated financial statements upon adoption. The Company does not discuss recent pronouncements that are not
anticipated to have an impact on or are unrelated to its financial condition, results of operations, cash flows or disclosures.

Merger.
On September 9, 2021, the Company completed the merger that is described in Note 1 in this Report “Description of business, Basis of Presentation,
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Liquidity and Going Concern - Merger between Allied Integral Untiled, Inc and AIU Special merger
Company, Inc and Name Change.” The merger was accounted for as a reverse asset acquisition pursuant to Topic 805, Clarifying the Definition of
a Business, as substantially all of the fair value of the assets acquired were concentrated in a group of similar non-financial assets, and the acquired
assets did not have outputs or employees.
The total preliminary purchase price paid in the Merger has been allocated to the net assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their fair
values as of the completion of the Merger. The following summarizes allocation of purchase price paid in the Merger (in thousands, except share
and per share amounts):
Number of shares of the combined organization owned by the Company’s pre-merger stockholders 1,276,042
Multiplied by the fair value per share of Superconductor common stock $ 2.65
Fair value of consideration issued to effect the Merger (preliminary) $ 3,381,510
Transaction costs -

Purchase price $ 3,381,510

The allocation of the purchase price is as follows
Cash acquired $ 259,005
Net assets acquired:
Prepaid expenses 162,434
Inventory 68,000
Investment in AIU real estate (eliminated in consolidation) 1,600,000
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (298,353)
Accrued compensation (1,000,000)
Debt assumed (468,040)
Total net assets 64,041
Fair value of excess of purchase price over net assets acquired - Preliminary Goodwill 3,058,464
Purchase price $ 3,381,510
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3. Real Estate, Property and Equipment, Net
Property and equipment, net, consists of the following:
Schedule of Real Estate, Property and Equipment

Memory Care Facilities and Corporate

Estimated
Useful Lives

December 31,
2021

December 31,
2020

Land $ 1,255,477 $ 1,940,389
Building and building improvements 39 years 4,508,797 7,277,693



Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 3-7 years 5,127,466 2,588,781
Total 10,891,740 11,806,863
Less accumulated depreciation (3,472,904) (2,953,579)
Real estate, property and equipment, net $ 7,418,835 $ 8,853,284

Non-core businesses classified as assets held for sale:
Estimated

Useful Lives December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Land $ 1,688,070 $ 4,288,915
Building and building improvements 39 years 466,447 5,898,419
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5-7 years - 2,099,568
Other 3-5 years - 200,969
Total 2,154,517 12,487,871
Less accumulated depreciation (68,272) (4,175,035)
Real estate, property and equipment, net $ 2,086,245 $ 8,312,836

The Company recorded depreciation expense relating to real estate, property, and equipment for the Company’s memory care facilities and
corporate assets in the amount of $529,748 and $601,314 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
The Company has reviewed the carrying value of long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If there is an indication that the value of an asset is not recoverable, the Company determines
the amount of impairment loss, if any, by comparing the historical carrying value of the asset to its estimated fair value. The Company determined
estimated fair value based on input from market participants, the Company’s experience selling similar assets, market conditions and internally
developed cash flow models that the Company’s assets or asset groups are expected to generate, and the Company considers these estimates to be
a Level 3 fair value measurement.
Based on the Company’s review of carrying value of long-lived assets included in discontinued operations, the Company concluded that a)several
of its properties were sold and did not warrant consideration; b) certain properties belonging to their continuing operations segment generate
revenue, are cash flow positive and have assets with low carrying values as compared to the recoverable amounts and therefore do not meet
impairment requirements; and that c) several properties might be impaired due to extended closures. Both the SeaWorld and Buda hotels have
experienced extended closures since March, 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic and this has meant significant reductions in cash flows and on the
ability to repay the mortgage loans on the properties. The Company transferred the SeaWorld property to the lender in the first Quarter of 2021 and
in the fourth quarter of 2021, sold the Buda hotel. The SeaWorld hotel was impaired in the amount of $986,000 in the third Quarter of 2020 and
$600,000 in the fourth Quarter of 2020. Additionally, the Buda hotel was impaired in the amount of $811,061 in the fourth Quarter of 2020.
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On March 10, 2021, the Company executed a side agreement with the lender of the SeaWorld Hotel Note (“SeaWorld Settlement Agreement”) that
provided for the transfer of the hotel property to the lender and the limitation of the obligations to the Company and the guarantors. See Note 5 -
Discontinued Operations.
On May 24, 2021, the Company entered into an agreement to sell its Buda Hotel in the amount of $4,350,000. This property was sold on October 1,
2021 under the terms of this agreement, as described in Note 5 - Discontinued Operations. Considering the above offer for sale and guidance
available as per ASC 360, management considered the offer price less cost of transfer as fair market value of group assets of Buda Hotel and
reversed the impairment provision of $811,061 on June 30, 2021.

4. Leases
The Company follows ASC 842, as discussed in Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, the Company has elected the package of
practical expedients offered in the transition guidance which allows management not to reassess the lease identification, lease classification, and
initial direct costs. The Company has elected the accounting policy practical expedient to exclude recording short term leases for all asset classes,
as right-of-use assets, and lease liabilities on the audited consolidated balance sheet. Finally, the Company has elected to recognize lease com
ponents and non-lease components separately for real estate leases.

Leases for Memory Care Facilities.
The Company leased three memory care facilities from MHI-MC San Antonio, LP, MHI-MC Little Rock, LP, and MHI-MC New Braunfels, LP
(collectively “MHI entities”) under three separate lease agreements and originally recorded a right of use asset and a lease liability of $35,782,153.
The Amended Leases contain three options to renew, which were not considered reasonably certain of being exercised as of the lease
commencement date nor the balance sheet date.
As of December 31, 2021, the Company leased one memory care facility from MC-Simpsonville, SC-1-UT, LLC (the “Simpsonville Landlord”) under a
15-year non-cancelable lease agreement. Provided the Company is not in default, the lease agreement has three successive five-year renewal
options and has the right of first refusal to acquire the Simpsonville Landlord’s interest in the property in certain situations. Beginning January
2019, the Company ceased paying the Simpsonville Landlord rent. The Landlord filed a lawsuit against the guarantors of the lease and on October
21, 2020, the trial court issued a final judgment of the damages for the plaintiff in the amount of $2,801,365. The trial court has not made findings of
fact related to the Company’s liability under the Lease. Additionally, the Company has appealed the trial court judgement as they believe it has
reasonable likelihood of success to reduce certain fees in the amount of $190,043 in past taxes and $248,074 in attorney’ fees. In connection with
this appeal, the Guarantors made a cash deposit to the trial court of $2,763,936. The Company has accrued an amount that it determines is
reasonable with respect to this contingency. See Note 7 - Commitments and Contingencies for additional information.
All leases are classified as operating leases. The Company does not have any leases within its non-core business. Therefore, no right-of-use assets
or lease liabilities were recorded within non-current assets held for sale or lease liability on the audited consolidated balance sheet following the
adoption of ASC 842. Weighted-average remaining lease terms and discount rate as of December 31, 2021, are 13.5 years and 8.25%, respectively.
Per ASC 360-10-35-21, the Company performed an impairment test on our long term assets, including ROU or leased assets. The New Braunfels,
Simpsonville, Naples Operating and Naples LLC facilities failed the recoverability test as set out in the accounting standard. As a result, the New
Braunfels, Simpsonville, Naples Operating and Naples LLC facilities incurred impairment charges in the amounts of $1,423,328, $227,473, $77,369 and
2,668,059, respectively in the year 2021.
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Lease Costs.
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and, 2020, the lease costs recorded in the audited consolidated statement of operations are as follows:

For the years ended December 31,
2021 2020

Lease costs:
Operating lease costs $ 4,885,958 $ 4,545,660
Short-term lease costs 44,591 95,184

Total lease costs $ 4,930,549 $ 4,640,844

Operating Lease Payments.
The following table summarizes the maturity of the Company’s operating lease liabilities as of December 31, 2021:
Year Ending December Operating Leases
2022 4,974,059
2023 4,114,830
2024 4,211,665
2025 4,310,799
2026 4,412,289
2027 4,516,191
Thereafter 40,289,687
Total minimum lease payments $ 66,829,520
Less: amounts representing interest 29,232,896
Present value of future minimum lease payments 37,596,624
Less current portion 953,817
Non-current lease liabilities $ 36,642,807
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5. Discontinued Operations
The Company held two hotel properties during 2021, each of which were classified as non-core assets and had experienced an extended closure
since March 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic, resulting in significant reductions in cash flows and
ability to repay the separate mortgage loans on these properties.

SeaWorld Hotel.
During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company entered into an agreement with Pender Capital Asset Based Lending Fund I, L.P. regarding
the SeaWorld hotel property and transferred the property to this lender. This lender agreed to limit the aggregate obligations under the secured
obligations to the amount of the deficiency realized by the lender on the subsequent sale of the SeaWorld hotel property, subject to an aggregate
specified limit assuming that the Company complied with the terms of the agreement. In May, 2021, the lender sold the SeaWorld hotel property
which created an aggregate deficiency of $216,000 plus the required payment of taxes in the amount of $82,500 which the Company has accrued as
of December 31, 2021. Furthermore, the Company is liable to pay the property taxes for 2021, which amount would be due by January 31, 2022 and is
approximately $
20,000.

Buda Hotel.
As of May 24, 2021, the Company has entered into an agreement for the sale of the Buda hotel property amounting to $4,350,000. The sale closed
on October 1, 2021 and resulted in a gain of $204,719 after deducting fees and the net book value of the property
The Company previously recognized an impairment provision amounting to $811,061 for this property in accordance with ASC360 and ASC820.
Considering the sale offer and guidance available as per ASC 360, the Company considered the offer price less cost of transfer as fair market value
of the Buda hotel property and reversed the impairment provision of $811,061 on June 30, 2021. The impairment amount was included in the other
income portion of the audited statement of operations-discontinued operations and was also included in the income from discontinued operations
line item in the audited consolidated statement of operations.
The sale of the Buda hotel property completes the sale of all of the Company’s hotel properties and relieves approximately $4,500,000 of financing
liabilities and approximately $4,100,000 of long-term assets, net of accumulated depreciation, from the Company’s audited consolidated balance
sheet resulting in a gain of $204,719.
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During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company sold three non-core assets: A hotel property, commercial real estate property and the
remaining portion of a previously sold commercial real estate property. The commercial real estate property and the hotel property, which were
owned separately by two of the Company’s subsidiaries in San Antonio, Texas, were sold, with proceeds of $13,300,000 a n d  $2,500,000,
respectively. Additionally, the remaining portion of a commercial real estate property located in San Antonio, Texas, was also sold, with proceeds of
$700,000. See Note 6 - Indebtedness for more information regarding these and other transactions.

Commercial 
Property #1 Hotel Property

Parcel -
Commercial
Property #2 Total 2020

Contract sales price $ 13,300,000 $ 2,500,000 $ 700,000 $ 16,500,000
Fees (1,461,312) (134,043) - (1,595,355)
Seller buildout obligation (856,085) - - (856,085)
Net book value of assets 6,425,983 1,981,889 622,466 9,030,338

Gain/(loss) on sale of assets $ 4,556,620 $ 384,068 $ 77,534 $ 5,018,222

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company sold two non-core assets: The two hotel properties were owned separately by two of the
Company’s subsidiaries in San Antonio, Texas. Hotel Property #1 was sold with proceeds of $4,350,000 and Hotel Property #2 was surrendered to



its lending institution.
Hotel 

Property #1
Hotel

Property #2 Total 2021
Contract sales price $ 4,350,000 $ - $ 4,350,000
Fees (111,056) 165,000 53,944
Seller buildout obligation 26,836 2,900,000 2,926,836
Net book value of assets (4,061,061) (2,950,000) (7,011,061)
Gain/(loss) on sale of assets $ 204,719 $ 115,000 $ 319,719

The following statements are the audited consolidated balance sheets and income statements for the Company’s discontinued operations:
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 20,615 $ 343,044
Restricted cash - 8,201
Accounts receivable - 18,421
Prepaid expenses - 23,641
Total current assets 20,615 393,307
Due from related parties
Investments in non-consolidated entities - 77,056
Note Receivables - 6,323
Real estate, property and equipment, net 2,086,245 8,312,836

Total long-term assets held for sale 2,086,245 8,396,215

TOTAL ASSETS $ 2,106,860 $ 8,789,522
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ - $ 66,650
Accrued expenses 438,192 1,031,584
Accrued interest 133,170
Current portion of long-term debt 1,000,000 4,107,599
Due to related parties

Total current liabilities 1,438,192 5,339,003
Long-term liabilities:
Note payable 487,678 784,945
Long-term debt, less current portion 225,169 5,121,760

Total long-term liabilities held for sale 712,847 5,906,705

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 2,151,039 $ 11,245,708

Shareholders’ Equity
Total shareholders’ equity (44,179) (2,456,285)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY $ 2,106,860 $ 8,789,522
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Years ended
December 31,

2021 2020
REVENUES
Hotel room and other revenue $ - $ 353,437
Commercial property rental revenue 85,346 220,388
Total revenues, net 85,346 573,825
Costs and expenses
Operating expenses 1,949,773 598,995
Impairment - 2,397,114
General and administrative expenses 1,077,735 1,487,515
Total operating expenses 3,027,508 4,483,624
Loss from operations (2,942,162) (3,909,799)
Other/(income) expenses
Interest expense 230,368 696,431
Gain on disposal of assets 319,718 (5,018,222)
Equity income from investees, net of applicable taxes - (402,976)
Impairment expense (recovery) (811,061) -
Other (income) expenses 5,155,757 (300,572)
Total (income)/expense 5,416,731 (5,025,339)

Net (loss) income $ 2,474,568 $ 1,115,540

6. Indebtedness
As of December 31, 2021, and December 31, 2020, the current portion of long-term debt within the Company’s audited financial statements for our
core MCA and Corporate facilities is $7,169,994 and $1,623,375 respectively. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020 the long term debt less the current
portion of the company debt is $5,572,427 and $4,810,673, respectively. As of December 31, 2021, and December 31, 2020, the debt associated with
our current portion of long-term debt within the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements for our assets held for sale as is $1,000,000
and $5,539,003, respectively. This debt is expected to be repaid primarily with the proceeds from the sales of these assets. See Note 2 - Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies f



or more information about the Company’s assets held for sale.

Interest and Future Maturities.
The Company has recorded interest expense in the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements of $1,071,756 and $372,954 for the year
ended December 31, 2021, and 2020, respectively, and $309,914 and $796,431 for discontinued operations for the same periods.
The change in the interest expense reflects primarily the impact of the repayment of debt since the beginning of the prior year period and during
this period, offset in part by incurrence of indebtedness at the latter part of this period at higher and lower interest rates.

As of December 31, Continuing Core
Discontinued Non-

Core Total
2022 7,438,139 1,000,000 8,438,139
2023 5,014,975 0 5,014,975
2024 57,452 57,452
2025 500,000 487,678 987,678
Thereafter - 225,169 225,169

Total obligations $ 13,010,566 $ 1,712,847 $ 14,723,413
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The following table summarizes the maturity of the Company’s long-term debt and notes payable as of December 31, 2021:

Maturity Date
Interest

Rate
December 31,

2021
December 31,

2020
Memory Care (Core) Facilities:
Naples Mortgage 3.99% $ - $ 2,731,100
Naples Equity Loan May 2023 9.95% 4,550,000 -
Libertas Financing Agreement May 2022 33.00% 283,685 -
New Braunfels Samson Funding 1 April 2022 25.00% 80,467 -
New Braunfels Samson Group 2 April 2022 39.00% 80,467 -
Naples Operating Samson Funding April 2022 31.00% 92,519 -
Naples LLC CFG Merchant Solutions September 2022 15.00% 134,239

MCA Invesque Loan(1) January 2022 8.50% 57,452 1,610,577
New Braunfels Business Loan March 2022 6.25% 64,072 185,359

Gearhart Loan(2) December 2022 7.00% 213,578 238,578
Five C’s Loan June 2022 9.85% 325,000 325,000
Equity Secure Funds 1, LLC June 2022 11.5% 1,000,000
Buda 2k Loan Hospitality October 2022 15.0% 100,000
SBA PPP Loans February 2022 1.00% 2,510,998 1,364,962
Notional amount of debt 9,492,477 6,455,576
Less: current maturities 4,910,863 1,623,375
Unamortized Discount - 21,528

$ 4,581,614 $ 4,810,673
Non-core businesses classified as
liabilities held for sale:
Hotels:

Seaworld Hotel Note (3) January 2021 Variable $ - $ 3,395,000

Buda Hotel Note (4) November 2036 Variable - 4,046,771
PPP Loan 255,300

Buda Tax Loans (5) May 2031 8.99% - 271,365
Notional amount of debt - 7,968,436
Less: current maturities - 3,395,000

$ - $ 4,573,436

Real Estate:

Artesia Note (6) June 2033 Variable $ 225,436 $ 238,168
Tamir Note March 2022 12.00% 300,000 300,000
Leander Note March 2022 12.75% 700,000 700,000
Notional amount of debt 1,225,436 1,238,168
Less: current maturities 1,000,000 712,599

$ 225,436 $ 525,569

As of December 31, 2021, the current portion of long-term debt on the accompanying audited consolidated balance sheet for core business
operations includes $189,809 of unamortized debt discounts. As of December 31, 2020, the long-term debt on the accompanying audited
consolidated balance sheet for non-core business operations includes $21,528 of unamortized debt discount.
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Notes:
(1) Note is issued by MCA and is secured by all of MCA’s assets which consist primarily of its ownership of its residential facilities.
(2) Note is issued by MCA and is secured by a senior subordinated lien on all of MCA’s assets which consist primarily of its ownership of its

residential facilities. This stated maturity of this note has been extended to December 31, 2022.



(3) Obligations have been compromised under the terms of a settlement agreement as of March 10, 2021 to approximately $318,500, as described
above.

(4) This note is a senior secured with an interest rate equal to greater of 10.5% or 30-day LIBOR plus 8.175%. This note was repaid in full in
connection with sale of the mortgaged property as described in Note 15 - Subsequent Events.

(5) Interest rate is 8.99%, per annum and is secured by the Buda Hotel property. This note was repaid in full in connection with sale of the
mortgaged property as desc
ribed in Note 15 - Subsequent Events.

Maturity Date
Interest

Rate December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Core Businesses (Continuing Operations)
Notes Payable
Cibolo Creek Partners promissory note December 2025 0.09% $ 66,208 $ -
EIDL SBA Treas 310 December 2051 3.75% 494,900
AGP Contract October 2022 2.00% 2,522,922
Round Rock Development Partners Note December 2025 0.09% 500,000 500,000
Notional amount of debt 3,584,030 500,000
less current maturities 2,522,922

1,061,108
Other Current Liabilities
Related Party Payable - Guarantee Fees 283,023 139,883

$ 283,023 $ 139,883

Non-Core Businesses (Discontinued
Continuing Operations) Notes Payable
Cibolo Creek Partners promissory note December 2025 0.09% $ 421,470 $ 641,804
Notional amount of debt 421,470 641,804
Other Current Liabilities
Related Party Payable - Guarantee Fees - 143,141

$ 421,470 $ 784,945

In addition, the Company has an obligation for the payment of the acquisition of the Primrose adult daycare center of $110,00
0 getting due for payment on May 31, 2022.

Memory Care (Core) Facilities:

Naples Equity Loan.
On April 29, 2021, the Company executed a secured promissory note with Benworth Capital Partners, LLC in the amount of $4,550,000. The original
Naples mortgage was paid off in the amount of $2,739,195 and there were closing costs of $354,357 which netted the Company proceeds in the
amount of $1,456,448. This secured promissory note is a one-year loan with interest only payments at a fixed interest rate of 9.95%. This loan is
guaranteed by certain officers of the Company and is secured by the Memory Care facility located at 262
6 Goodlette-Frank Road, Naples, Florida 34105.

Libertas Financing Agreement.
On May 25, 2021, the Company executed a merchant cash advance loan with Libertas Funding LLC in the amount of $737,000 with a purchase price
consideration of $550,000 less $11,000 in origination fees for net proceeds of $539,000. The debt discount on the loan is $187,000 and will be
amortized over the life of the loan. The weekly payment amount under the agreement is $14,623 and interest rate associated with this agreement is
1.28% per week. Additionally, the Company can terminate the transaction at any time by repurchasing future receipts sold to purchaser but not
delivered. This agreement has no stated maturity date. However, based on historical revenue, management has estimated that repayment will 12
months. The obligations under this agreement a
re guaranteed by James Walesa, the Chairman and CEO of the Company.

New Braunfels Samson Funding 1.
The Company entered into a Futures Receipts Sale and Purchase Agreement dated as of September 28, 2021 (“Factoring Agreement 1”), with
Cloudfund LLC d/b/a Samson Group (“NB Financier 1”). Under Factoring Agreement 1, a specified percentage of its future receipts (as defined by
Factoring Agreement 1, which include the future resident revenues in the New Braunfels residential care facility owned by MCA) were sold to NB
Financier 1, which were equal to $142,000 for a purchase price of $100,000, less origination and other fees of $5,075. The obligations under Factoring
Agreement 1 are repaid in 10 equal weekly installments. Factoring Agreement 1 expressly provides that the sale of the future receipts shall be
construed and treated for all purposes as a true and complete sale and includes customary provisions granting a security interest under the
Uniform Commercial Code in accounts and the proceeds. The obligations under Factoring Agreement 1 are guaranteed by James Walesa, the
Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.
The Company entered into a Revenue Purchase Agreement and Security Agreement and Guaranty of Performance dated as of September 28, 2021
(“Factoring Agreement 2”) Samson MCA LLC (“NB Financier 2”). Under Factoring Agreement 2, a specified percentage of its future receipts (as
defined by Factoring Agreement 2, which include the payments to MCA as a result of its sale of goods and/or services such as its future resident
revenues in the New Braunfels residential care facility owned by MCA), which were equal to $142,000 for a purchase price of $100,000, less
origination and other fees of $5,075. Factoring Agreement 2 expressly provides that the sale of the future receipts shall be construed and treated for
all purposes as a true and complete sale and includes customary provisions granting a security interest under the Uniform Commercial Code in
accounts and the proceeds. The obligations under Factoring Agreement 2 are guaranteed by Jame
s Walesa, the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.

PPP Loans.
In May 2020, the Company was granted four separate loans under the Paycheck Protection Program (the “PPP Loans”) administered by the United
States Small Business Administration (“SBA”) established under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (“CARES”) Act, which has
enabled the Company to retain the Company’s employees during the period of disruption created by the Coronavirus pandemic. The PPP Loans,
which are evidenced by Notes issued by the Company (the “Note”), mature in May 2022 and bear interest at a fixed rate of 1.0% per annum,
accruing from May 2020 (“Loan Date”) and payable monthly. The Note is unsecured and guaranteed by the SBA. The Note may be prepaid by the



Company at any time prior to maturity with no prepayment penalties. The Note provides for customary defaults, including failure to make payment
when due or to fulfill the Company’s obligations under the notes or related documents, reorganizations, mergers, Consolidations or other changes
to the Company’s business structure, and certain defaults on other indebtedness, bankruptcy events, adverse changes in financial condition or
civil or criminal actions. The PPP Loans may be accelerated upon the occurrence of a default. During the year, the Company has received an
additional $2,042,958 in PPP loans. Superconductor Technologies also received a PPP Loan in the amount of $468,000 that was still outstanding at
the time of acquisition.
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AGP Loan.
The Company entered into an unsecured promissory note with A.G.P./Alliance Global Partners (“AGP”) which was the financial adviser to AIU in
connection with the merger. The $2,630,000 principal amount of this note represents the unpaid fee amount then owed to AGP for its services.
Interest under this note accrues at 2% per annum. The Company makes monthly payments of $30,000 and will pay 50% of net proceeds (which shall
be deemed gross proceeds minus direct selling costs, expenses and commissions) received, directly or indirectly, by the Company and/or its
subsidiaries from the issuance of any equity or equity-linked financing (including convertible debt), less any selling commissions. Accrued and
unpaid obligations of this note are due on
September 10, 2022.

MCA Invesque Loan.
Effective July 31, 2019, the Company signed an amended and restated promissory note with the landlord parties, as defined for the principal sum of
$3.3 million (the “A&R MCA Note”), including the previously outstanding principal balance of $300,000. Proceeds from the loan were used to pay
outstanding obligations to certain landlords of three leased memory care facilities related to a settlement agreement between the parties. See Note 7
- Commitments and Contingencies.
Beginning January 2020, the Company is required to make monthly principal and interest payments of $47,812. The loan has a fixed interest rate of
8.5%.The note is guaranteed by certain officers and directors of the Company and is collateralized by a pledge of proceeds from the sale of the
Naples facility and another specified property interest (in Westover Town Center) that was sold in 2021.
In April 2021, there were three properties in which the Company had an interest and whose proceeds from any sale were pledged to the lender in
collateral to the guarantees. One of those interests, Westover Town Center, was sold and the proceeds in the amount of $1,128,126 was used to pay
down $1,000,000 against the Invesque loan balance in September
2021. The loan was paid off in February 2022.

Gearhart Loan.
On April 1, 2012, the Company executed a promissory note with Betty Gearhart for $200,000 (the “Gearhart Note”). Interest accrues at a fixed rate of
7.0% and is payable quarterly in January, April, July and October. In April 2015, the Company executed the First Amended and Restated Promissory
Note in the principal amount of $218,578 which extended the maturity date until April 2017. The note is collateralized by the debtor granting a
security interest to Betty Gearhart including all assets of MCA, LLC as well as any proceeds (including insurance proceeds) of any and all of the
foregoing collateral. The maturity date of the loan was further extended in April 2017, April 2018 and April 2020. The Second Amendment to the
Amended and Restated Promissory Note (the “Second Amendment”) was executed on March 5, 2020 in the principal amount of $218,578 and has a
maturity date of April 1, 2021. The scheduled maturity date of this note has been further extended to December 15, 2021. Clearday is negotiating the
terms of an additional extension or forbearance with this lender. However, there can be no assurance that any such agreement will be on terms that
are acceptable to Clearday, or at all.
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Five C’s, LLC Loan.
As of April 1, 2019, the Five C’s LLC entered into an agreement issuing capital stock that reduced obligations under an existing promissory note to
$325,000. Under a February, 2021 extension agreement, the interest rate was set to 9.85% per annum and maturity date was extended. The maturity
date is currently June 30, 2022. This maturity date will be extended by the parties for successive six-month periods unless the noteholder provides
notice to the borrower that the term shall not be extended on or prior to the date that is 30 days prior than the then maturity date of the note.
Equity Secure Fund I, LLC.
On March 26, 2021, the Company executed a promissory note for $1,000,000 with Equity Secured Fund I, LLC. The loan matures on March 26, 2022
and was subject to one (1) twelve (12)-month extension option. The interest rate of the loan is 11.50% and is guaranteed by certain officers and is
collateralized the building located at 8800 Village Drive in San Antonio, Texas. Total proceeds received by the Company was $803,063 after adjusting
the interest for the period amounting to approximately $115,000, which is classified as prepaid interest in the audited consolidated balance sheet;
$44,891 and $5,575 that was paid for prepaid property tax and prepaid insurance respectively (both of which) are included in “net deferred finance
cost” and $31,511 in closing costs.
EIDL Loan
In December 2021, the company received an Economic Injury Disaster Loan (EIDL) in the amount of $494,900 from the US Treasury. The loan is due
in 2051 and carries an interest rate of 3.75
%. This loan is guaranteed by certain officers of the company

Debt Related to Assets Held for Sale

SeaWorld Hotel Note.
On July 12, 2019, the Company executed a loan agreement with Pender West Credit 1 REIT, LLC for a principal amount of $3,395,000 (“SeaWorld
Hotel Note”) to refinance existing financing for the hotel. The note had an initial maturity date of August 1, 2020 and is collateralized by a security
interest in the property and other assets within the property. The note required interest only monthly payments with the full principal balance
becoming due upon the maturity date. The note has a variable interest rate equal to the greater of 10.5% or LIBOR plus 8.175
%. The note has been paid off.



Buda Hotel Note.
In November 2011, the Company executed a commercial loan agreement with Members Choice Credit Union totaling $4.8 million (“Buda Hotel
Note”) to fund the construction of the Buda Hotel, purchase equipment, establish adequate working capital, and pay closing costs. The note
matures on November 2036 and is collateralized by a security interest in the property and other assets within the property. The Company must pay
principal and interest payments of $31,486 during the term of the note which are subject to change to amortize the principal payments of the note.
The note has a variable interest rate of Prime plus 2.75% and is collateralized by a security interest in the property and other assets within the
property. The note has been paid off.
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Buda Tax Loans.
In February 2020, the Company executed a Promissory Note with TaxCORE Lending, LLC (“Buda 2020 Tax Loan”) for a principal amount of $373,369
to finance property taxes associated with the Buda Hotel and to fully repay the Buda Tax Loan. The note matures on May 31, 2031 and is
collateralized by a tax lien secured by the Buda Hotel located in Buda, Texas. The note has a fixed interest rate of 8.99%. With adequate notice, the
Company may prepay the note without penalty.
On August 18, 2021, the Company entered into a settlement regarding the Buda Texas property taxes to approximately $141,000, which were paid by
a cash payment by the Company including net proceeds from a loan of the principal amount of $120,000, payable monthly over 12 months at no
interest beginning in November 2021. This loan is guaranteed by Cibolo Rodeo (a subsidiary of the Company) collateralized by the 2 acre parcel of
land owned by Cibolo Rodeo and a personal g
uarantee by BJ Parrish, the Chief Operating Officer of the Company.

2K Hospitality Secured Note.
On August 18, 2021, the Company through its subsidiary that owned the Buda hotel property and a subsidiary that owns land located in Cibolo,
Texas, jointly entered into a secured promissory note with 2K Hospitality, LLC, in the principal amount of $120,000, payable without interests
(assuming no payment default) in 12 monthly payments commencing on November 1, 2021. The obligations are secured by a second mortgage on
the Cibolo, Texas property. The obligations of this note are guaranteed by BJ Parrish, a direct
or and Chief Operating Officer of the Company.

Artesia Note.
On April 1, 2013, the Company executed a promissory note with FirstCapital Bank of Texas, N.A. for a principal amount of $314,500 (“Artesia Note”).
the Company executed an amendment to the Artesia Note on July 23, 2018 (“Amended Artesia Note”). The Amended Artesia Note had a principal
balance of $266,048 upon execution. The original maturity date of the note was March 1, 2018, which was extended to June 23, 2033 in the Amended
Artesia Note. The note requires equal monthly principal and interest payments through maturity and has no prepayment penalties. The note has a
variable interest rate equal to the greater of 6.0% or the Prime rate plus 1.0%. The note is collateralized by a security interest in the property and
other assets within the property and is guaranteed by certain officers and directors of the Company. As of December 31, 2021, the interest rate for
this loan is 6% (the greater of 6% or the Prime rate of 3.25% plus 1.0%).
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Tamir Note.
On March 12, 2010, the Company executed a promissory note with Tamir Enterprises, Ltd. for a principal amount of $475,000 (“Tamir Note”). The
Company has executed subsequent amendments to the Tamir Notes on March 1, 2013, March 12, 2016, and March 19, 2019 (collectively, the
“Amended Artesia Note”). The Amended Artesia Note had a principal balance of $351,418 upon execution. As a result of the March 19, 2019
amendment, the maturity date of the note is March 12, 2022. The note requires monthly interest payments through maturity and has no prepayment
penalties. The note has a fixed interest rate of 12.0% plus an additional 2% for accrued interest outstanding. The note is collateralized by a security
interest in the property and other assets within the property and is guaranteed by
certain officers and directors of the Company.

Leander Note.
On October 5, 2018, the Company executed a loan agreement with Equity Security Investments for a principal amount of $700,000 (“Leander Note”)
to refinance existing financing for the hotel. The note had an original maturity date of October 5, 2019 and was collateralized by a security interest in
the property and other assets within the property and is guaranteed by certain officers and directors of the Company. The Company exercised an
extension option which extended the maturity of the note to October 5, 2020. The note required interest only monthly payments with the full
principal balance becoming due upon the maturity date. The note has a fixed interest rate 12.75%. As of October 12, 2020, the maturity of the note
has been extended to April 5, 2021.
On April 20, 2021, the Company has exercised a one-year extension option on the Leander note that extends the new maturity date to April 5, 2022.
The note has a fixed interest rate of 12.75%, which requires payment of interest on monthly rest, until the Maturity Date, at which time all
outstanding principal
and interest shall be finally due and payable.

Notes Payable.
The Company has notes payable to Cibolo Creek Partners, LLC, its affiliate Round Rock Development Partners, LP. These notes have a maturity
date of December 31, 2025, and there is no interest accruing on any of these notes. Each of these lenders was a related party when the obligations
were incurred. For more information, see Note 9 - Related Party Transactions.

7. Commitments and Contingencies
Contingencies.
The tenant, MCA Simpsonville Operating Company LLC, referred to as Tenant, of the MCA community that is located in Simpsonville, South
Carolina, referred to as the Simpsonville facility, and other affiliates of the Company have a dispute with the landlord of the Simpsonville Facility,
MC-Simpsonville, SC-UT, LLC, referred to as the Landlord, and its affiliates (Embree Group of Companies: Embree Construction Group, Inc., Embree
Asset Group, Inc., and Embree Capital Markets Group, Inc., referred to collectively as Embree) under the terms of the lease regarding alleged



material construction and related defects of the Simpsonville Facility and other memory care facilities that have been built by Embree and are leased
by subsidiaries of MCA, including the significant costs and additional investment that was required by MCA to remedy such defects. The Tenant
has stopped paying rent and related charges under the lease for the Simpsonville Facility from and after January 1, 2019. The Landlord has made
demands for past rent but has not instituted legal action against the Tenant. Instead, the Landlord filed a lawsuit against the guarantors of the
lease, including Trident Healthcare Properties I, L.P., referred to as Trident, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and an
unconditional guaranty of such lease; and the personal guarantors of the Tenant’s obligations under the Lease, including the Company’s Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer. The Company has an obligation to indemnify and hold such individuals (other than the Company’s Chairman) harmless
under such personal guarantees, and Trident is a consolidated subsidiary in the Company’s financial statements. The Company’s Chairman has
indemnified the Company for all obligations of the Company with respect to obligations to the Landlord in connection with this litigation, including
the Company’s obligations to such indemnified individuals and the Company’s subsidiaries. This litigation is captioned and numbered MC-
Simpsonville, SC-UT, LLC v. Steve Person, et. al., Cause No. 19-0651-C368 and is pending in the 368th Judicial District Court of Williamson County,
Texas. On October 21, 2020, the trial court has issued a judgment on damages in the amount of $2,801,365. The trial court has not made findings of
fact related to the Tenant’s liability under the Lease. Additionally, the Guarantors has appealed the trial court judgement as they believed it has
reasonable likelihood of success to reduce the judgment in the amount of $248,074 in attorney’ fees. In connection with this appeal, the Guarantors
made a cash deposit to the trial court of approximately 2,764,000. The appellate court recently entered a ruling reversing and remanding the
attorneys’ fees portion of the judgment to the trial court for renewed proceedings on that issue. After the entry of the appellate court’s ruling, the
Guarantors filed a motion for rehearing on the narrow issue of pre-judgment interest calculation, on which the Guarantors believe that they have a
reasonable likelihood of success. The Company has accrued an amount that it determines is reasonable with respect to this contingency. The
Landlord filed a second action against Trident and the other guarantors on April 9, 2021, for claims similar to the action described above including
relief for payment of rent past due and reimbursement of taxes from October 2020 to the time of the trial in this action. Trident and the other
guarantors intend to respond to this action. The Company is not able to determine if it will prevail in such litigation. The Company has entered into
an agreement to transfer certain operations, including lease obligations, of the Simpsonville Facility. See Note 15 - Subsequent Events.
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Certain subsidiaries of the Company that operate hotel assets have not paid employment related taxes such as required withholdings for Texas
State unemployment taxes and federal income tax and employee and employer contributions for FICA (Social Security and Medicare) taxes, and
federal unemployment tax for the period from December 31, 2018 to December 31, 2019. These subsidiaries have since made the appropriate filings
with the Internal Revenue Service and the Company has accrued the full estimated amount of the underpaid taxes as well as the estimated penalties
and interest. As of December 31, 2020, the amount of the estimated taxes, penalties, and interest, assuming that there is no waiver or mitigation of
the penalties, is $261,552 The Company has accrued this amount in its audited consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2021.
A subsidiary of the Company was sued on November 10, 2021 by Naples Property Ventures, LLC, alleging breach under a contract for sale of the
Naples property and facility The case was settled in the first quarter of 2022 for $100,000.
In addition, from time to time, the Company becomes involved in litigation matters in the ordinary course of its business. Such litigations include an
action that alleges negligence and other claims regarding the death of a resident in a memory care facility. For example, the case entitled Michael
Inderrieden, Individually and as Personal Representative of the Estate of Thomas Inderrieden v. MCA Simpsonville Operating Company, LLC dba
Memory Care of Simpsonville; Allied Integral United, Inc. d/b/a Clearday; Memory Care America, LLC.; MCA Management Company, Inc.;
Clearday Management, Ltd.; and MC-Simpsonville, SC-1-UT, LLC, filed June 28, 2021, in the Court of Common Pleas for Greenville County, South
Carolina, bearing Civil Action Nos. 2021-CP-23-03071 (Wrongful Death) & 2021-CP-23-03076 (Survival Action), is currently pending, and asserts
claims for survival and wrongful death. Such action has been referred to the Company’s insurance carrier and is in the discovery phase of litigation.
Although the Company is unable to predict with certainty the eventual outcome of any litigation, the Company does not believe any of its currently
pending litigation is likely to have a material adverse effect on its business.
Prior to the closing of the merger, on November 20, 2020, the landlord of the Company’s former headquarters, Prologis Texas III LLC, commenced an
action asserting that the Company breached its lease agreement. The Company has answered the compliant on January 11, 2021 and continues to
believe that it has mer
itorious defenses or responses to these claims.

Indemnification Agreements.
Certain lease and other obligations of the Company are guaranteed in whole or in part by James Walesa and/or BJ Parrish and others. The Company
has agreed to indemnify and hold each such individual harmless for all liabilities and payments on account of any such guaranty. The lease
obligations of the Company for its lease obligations for four of its five MCA facilities, including the lease of the MCA community that is located in
Simpsonville, South Carolina, referred to as the Simpsonville facility. This is the facility that is the subject of a litigation and judgement against
certain of our subsidiaries. We have been fully indemnified by James Walesa for all obligations that the Company may incur with respect to an
adverse judgement against the Company, including any post-judgement interest. Such indemnification by James Walesa is under an agreement
dated as of July 30, 2020. Under such agreement, James Walesa receives a fee equal to 2% of the total amount payable by AIU or any of its
subsidiaries which is payable in units of shares of the AIU Alt Care Preferred and Clearday Warrants at $10.00 per unit, which is the same as the
cash payment for such units by third parties in the offering of such units by AIU Alt Care. In the event that Mr. Walesa is required to make any
payments under this indemnification, then Company will issue shares of AIU Alt Care Preferred and Clearday Warrants, at $10.00 per unit, for the
amount of such payment.
Subsequently, an amendment to the indemnification agreement above was signed on January 19, 2021 in which additional securities were pledged
on behalf of James Walesa for all obligations that Company may incur with respect to an adverse judgement and/or any post-judgement interest. In
the event that Mr. Walesa is required to make any payments under this amended indemnification agreement, then Company will issue shares of AIU
Care, AIU Warrants and AIU Common Stock at $10.00 per unit as well as Series A Preferred at $20.00 per unit, for the amount of such payment.
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Superconductor Merger Commitment.
During the year ended on December 31, 2021, the Company agreed to pay Superconductor $120,000 per month beginning with February until June
30, 2021 (the “Operating Payments”) or an aggregate amount equal to $600,000, subject to certain deferment. All such obligations were eliminated
by consolidation upon the closing of the merger. In connection with the merger, a liability to certain former officers of Superconductor was incurred



under the terms of Officer Agreements, which may be paid in Common Stock. The total value owed was accrued as of December 31, 2021 and is
included in the net assets acquired in the merger in the amount of $1,000,000.

8. Earnings Per Share
Basic net income (loss) per common share is calculated by dividing the net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders by the weighted-
average number of common shares outstanding during the period, without consideration for potentially dilutive securities. Diluted net income
(loss) per share is computed by dividing the net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common
shares and potentially dilutive securities outstanding for the period. For the Company’s diluted earnings per share calculation, the Company uses
the “if-converted” method for preferred stock and convertible debt and the “treasury stock” method for Warrants and Options.
The following tables set forth the potentially dilutive shares that were anti-dilutive in their respective periods as the Company had net losses in
2021 and 2020, respectively.

Dilution shares calculation
For the year ended

December 31,
2021 2020

Series A Convertible Preferred Stock 328,925 182
Series F 6.75% Convertible Preferred Stock 4,797,052 11,439,691
Series I 10.25% Convertible Preferred Stock 320,657 567,561
Limited Partnership Units 99,038 1,392,028
Warrants 4,038,801 1,828,242
Stock Options 0 7,863

Total participating securities 9,584,473 15,235,566
9. Related Party Transactions

Background.
The Related Party Disclosures Topic provides disclosure requirements for related party transactions and certain common control relationships.
Accounting and reporting issues concerning certain related party transactions and relationships are addressed in other Topics.
Information about transactions with related parties is useful in comparing an entity’s results of operations and financial position with those of prior
periods and with those of other entities. It helps users of financial statements to detect and explain possible differences.
As a result of the merger 9-9-21 (see Section Material Changes in our Business) and the AIU Merger and the rules pursuant to IRC section 382
management does not believe there is a
ny significant net operating losses to carry forward.

Debt.
There are some loans in which executive management has loaned money to the Company. In addition, there are loans made by the Company itself in
which certain executives personally guarantee the debt.
Cibolo Creek Partners, LLC (“Cibolo Creek”) and its affiliate Round Rock Development Partners, LP (“RRDP”) prior to December 31, 2018 made
loans to us under revolving credit notes that bear interest at the then applicable federal rate and are payable on demand or other date that was
specified by such lender. In December 2018, AIU acquired businesses affiliated with Cibolo Creek. As of December 31, 2021, AIU, Inc., Cibolo Creek
and Round Rock were owed $66,208, $421,470 and $500,000 respectively by the Company.
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Guarantees.
From time-to-time certain officers and directors will personally guarantee a loan. There is a guarantee fee agreement in place that details the amount
of the fee as well as payment terms for certain executives in the Company. The amount of the fee is capped at 1% of the amount of the outstanding
note regardless of how many guarantors there are on the loan.
Arkadios Capital, LLC
The Company’s president was a registered representative with Arkadios Capital LLC (“Arkadios”), a SEC full-service broker dealer. The Company
had entered into a placement agreement with Arkadios as a broker agent in 2019 and retained their services as a non-exclusive placement agent in
connection with the offering by AIU Alt Care and Clearday OZ Fund of their securities. No amounts have been earned or paid under this
arrangement to date.

10. Non-Consolidated Investment
During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company sold its investment in one of their non-consolidated entities, Westover Town Center for a
consideration of $1.4 Million to HR Interest Inc. on April 19, 2021. Additionally, the Company recorded a gain on sale of this investment in the
amount of $1,172,151.

11. Acquisitions
On May 28, 2021, the Company acquired all of the equity interests of Primrose Wellness Group LLC (“Primrose”), a San Antonio, Texas licensed
adult day care facility that provides affordable daily care services, including ADLs (activities of daily living), nursing services, physical
rehabilitative services and other supportive services, primarily to military veterans, including those with VA benefits. The acquisition required the
approval of the Texas Department of Health and Human Services. The Company plans to expand the daily activities provided by Primrose including
offering its proprietary Clearday Restore services, which provides a combination of aromatherapy and massage therapy designed to help people
with a wide range of lifestyle limiting conditions. The Company acquired Primrose for a cash purchase price in the amount of $300,000 that is
payable in three equal installments at the closing, and at six months after the closing and one year after the closing. In connection with this
acquisition, the Company modified the existing lease terms and guaranteed the lease obligations in full and agreed to employ the two founders of
Primrose. The acquisition was not a material acquisition under applicable accounting principles and, accordingly, pro forma information is not
required to be provided.
Since the acquisition in May 28, 2021, Primrose has generated approximately $242,000 in revenue and has a net loss of approximately $27,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2021.

12. Goodwill

Merger
Goodwill as of January 1, 2021 $ -



Goodwill arising from acquisitions 3,058,464
Impairment during the year (3,058,464)
Goodwill as of December 31, 2021 $ -

13. Deficit
In connection with the merger, the certificate of incorporation of Clearday, Inc. was amended. Prior to such amendment, under the charter of
Clearday, Inc. (which was the charter of STI), there were 25,000,000 authorized shares of Common Stock and 2,000,000 authorized shares of preferred
stock, each par value $0.001 per share. The certificate of incorporation of Clearday, Inc., as amended in connection with the merger, provides for
80,000,000 authorized shares of Common Stock and 10,000,000 authorized shares of preferred stock, each par value $
0.001 per share.

Common Stock
Prior to the merger, Clearday, Inc. had 3,151,780 issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock, which included 400,000 shares held by AIU. The
shares held by AIU were cancelled in connection with the merger, resulting in 2,751,780 shares of issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock
as of the effective time of the merger. In connection with the merger, Clearday, Inc.

● Effected the 3.773585 -for-1 Reverse Stock Split and issued approximately 546,820 True Up Shares, as described in Note 1.
● Issued 13,638,395 shares of Common Stock to the holders of shares of AIU common stock.
● Reserved 100,000 shares of Common Stock for the conversion or exchange of warrants and convertible securities and shares to be issued

to officers of STI under the Officer Agreements.
● Reserved 2,860,800 shares of Common Stock that will be issued and distributed to holders of the Clearday, Inc. Series F Preferred Stock

that do not sell such shares until after the date that is six months after the effective date of the merger (such shares being the 1,200,000
shares of AIU common stock reserved by AIU for issuance contingent on certain financial transactions).

STI did not issue any restricted shares of the Common Stock for compensation during the year ended December 31, 2021.
AIU awarded restricted shares of its common stock in the amount of 453,316 shares (representing 1,080,984 shares of Clearday, Inc. Common Stock)
to various officers, directors and a consultant; during the year ended on December 31, 2020. For the year ended December 31, 2021, AIU awarded
restricted stock in the amount of 57,000 shares (representing 135,923 shares of Clearday, Inc. Common Stock) to various officers and employees.
Such shares of AIU common stock shares were vested for compensation for services in the amount of $689,130 during 2021.
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Liquidation Preference.
In the event of the Company’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up, holders of common stock will be entitled to share ratably in the net assets
legally available for distribution to stockholders after the payment of all of the Company’s debts and other liabilities and the satisfaction of any
liquidation preferences that may be grante
d to the holders of any then outstanding shares of preferred stock.

Rights and Preferences.
Holders of common stock have no preemptive, conversion or subscription rights, and there are no redemption or sinking fund provisions applicable
to the common stock. The rights, preferences and privileges of the holders of common stock are subject to, and may be adversely affected by, the
rights of the holders of shares of any series of preferred stock, which the
Company may designate and issue in the future.

Voting Rights.
Each holder of common stock is entitled to one vote for each share on all matters submitted to a vote of the stockholders, including the election of
directors. The Company’s amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws do not provide for cumulative voting
rights. Because of this absence of cumulative voting, the holders of a majority of the shares of common stock entitled to vote in any election of
directors can elect all of the directors standing for election, if they should so choose. In addition, the Company’s amended and restated certificate
of incorporation also provides that the Company’s directors may be removed only for cause by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 75% of
the consolidated voting power of all the Company’s stockholders entitled to vote on the election of directors, voting together as a single class.
Subject to supermajority votes for some matters, matters shall be decided by the affirmative vote of the Company’s stockholders having a majority
in voting power of the votes cast by the stockholders present or represented and voting on such matter, provided that the holders of the
Company’s common stock are not allowed to vote on any amendment to the Company’s certificate of incorporation that relates solely to the terms
of one or more series of preferred stock if the holders of such affected series are entitled, either separately or together with the holders or one or
more such series, to approve such amendment. The affirmative vote of the holders of at least 75% of the votes that all of the Company’s
stockholders would be entitled to cast in any annual election of directors and, in some cases, the affirmative vote of a majority of minority
stockholders entitled to vote in any annual election of directors are required to amend or repeal the Company’s bylaws, amend or repeal certain
provisions of the Company’s certificate of incorporation, approve certain transactions with certain affiliates, or approve the sale or liquidation of
the Company. The vote of a majority of minority stockholders applies when an individual or entity and its affiliates or associates together own more
than 50% of the voting power of the Com
pany’s then outstanding capital stock.

Preferred Stock
Prior to the merger, AIU had Series A 6.75% cumulative convertible preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 4,606,853 shares of such securities were issued
and outstanding as of December 31, 2020. Each share of Series A preferred stock has a stated value equal to the Series A original issue price. The
conversion rate to the number of shares of AIU common stock is equal to 1 share for each share of Series A preferred stock. In connection with the
securities, they were either converted into AIU common stock and then exchanged for the Company Common Stock or exchanged for shares of the
Company’s Series F 6.75% cumulative convertible preferred stock, $0.001 par value. The Company has 5,000,000 shares authorized with 4,797,052
and 4,606,853 issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively. The Series F Preferred Stock has a stated value
of $20.00 per share is exchangeable at the option of the holder into approximately 2.38 shares of the Company’s Common Stock, subject to
adjustment for specified fundamental transactions such as stock splits, reverse stock splits and stock combinations. See Note 14 - Preferred Stock -
Mezzanine, for accounting treatment of the Series F Preferred Stock.
The Series A Preferred Stock of the Company that was issued and outstanding prior to the merger remains issued and outstanding. Such preferred
stock has a $.001 par value, 2,000,000 shares authorized, and 328,925 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2021 and December 31,
2020. Except for a preference on liquidation of $0.01 per share, each share of Series A Preferred Stock is the economic equivalent of ten twelfths of a



share of common stock into which it is convertible. Except as required by law, the Series A Preferred Stock will not have any voting rights.
On December 31, 2018, AIU acquired the businesses of certain affiliates and entities and issued AIU’s Series A Preferred Stock (which has been
exchanged for shares of the Company’s Series F Preferred Stock in the merger).
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Dividends and Distributions
For the year ended December 31, 2021 and December 31 2020, the Company recognized dividends for the 6.75% Series F preferred stock in the
amount of $5,888,189 and $5,472,240
respectively.

Warrants
The Company has two separate types of warrants that are outstanding: (1) the warrants that were granted and outstanding by STI prior to the
effective date of the merger and (2) the warrants assumed by the Company t
hat were granted by AIU prior to the effective date of the merger.

STI Warrants Prior to the Merger Effective Date.
The following is a summary of such outstanding warrants at December 31 2021:

Common Shares

Total
Currently

Exercisable
Exercise Price

per Share Expiration Date
Warrants related to August 2016 financing 2,481 2,481 $ 646.95 February 2, 2022
Warrants related to March 2018 financing 7,331 7,331 $ 245.84 September 9, 2023
Warrants related to March 2018 financing 513 513 $ 340.73 March 6, 2023
Warrants related to July 2018 financing 119,241 119,241 $ 75.48 July 25, 2023
Warrants related to July 2018 financing 7,154 7,154 $ 94.35 July 25, 2023
Warrants related to May 2019 financing 5,518 5,518 $ 26.96 May 23, 2024
Warrants related to October 2019 financing 100,719 100,719 $ 5.39 October 10, 2024
Warrants related to October 2019 financing 14,336 14,336 $ 6.74 October 8, 2024
Warrants issued by AIU that after the
merger (described below) 3,281,508 3,281,508 $ 5.00 November 15, 2029
Warrants that were issued by AIU and have been assumed by Clearday in the merger.
As of December, 31 2021, there are 1,376,118 warrants that were issued by AIU to investors in the Alt Care Preferred and Clearday OZ LP Interests.
As of the effective date of the merger, such warrants were assumed by the Company and amended and restated to represent the same number of
shares of the Company’s Common Stock that would have been issued had the holders exercised such warrants in full prior to the effective date of
the merger, or an aggregate of 3,281,508 shares of the Company’s Common Stock. Each warrant may be exercised for cash at an exercise price equal
to $5.00 per share, subject to adjustment for specified fundamental transactions such as stock splits, reverse stock splits and stock combinations.
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Prior to the closing of the merger, AIU issued to a consultant that is subject to an development agreement a warrant representing 500,000 shares of
the Company’s Common Stock as of the effective date of the merger at an exercise price of $11.00 per share, which may be paid by customary
cashless exercise. Such warrant is subject to adjustment for specified fundamental transactions
such as stock splits, reverse stock splits and stock combinations.

Stock Options
On December 31, 2021, we continued to have the two active equity award option plans, the 2003 Equity Incentive Plan and the 2013 Equity
Incentive Plan (collectively, the “Stock Option Plan”) that were in effect for STI prior to the effective date of the merger. Although we can only grant
new options under the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan. Under our Stock Option Plan, stock awards were made to our former directors, key employees,
consultants, and non-employee directors and consisted of stock options, restricted stock awards, performance awards, and performance share
awards. Stock options were granted at prices no less than the market value on the date of grant. There were no stock option exercises during the
year ended December 31, 2021. None of the option grantees continued in service after the effective date of the merger. The expiration date for all of
the options under the Stock Option Plan granted to any officer, director or consultant is generally the last day of the three (3)-month period
following the date that such person ceases their continuous status in such capacity, subject to certain accelerated termination events that are not
applicable.
As of December 31, 2021, the aggregate outstanding options under the Stock Option Plan was 7,851 shares, at an exercise price per share of $19.20
to $26,280 with a weighted average exercise price of $211.21. All such options were exercisable. The Stock Option Plan provides for proportionate
adjustment to the number of shares represented by the options and the exercise price for certain events, including the reverse stock split and the
issuance of the True Up Shares that were effected in connection with the merger. After such adjustments, the aggregate number of shares
represented by the options is 3,641 and the price per share is between $41.40 and $56,672.74, with a weighted average exercise price equal to
$455.54.
At December 31 2021 no options had an exercise price less than the current market value. All of the stock options award that were outstanding as of
December 31 2021 were to officers and directors whose service terminated on September 9, 2021 in connection with the merger. Accordingly, all
such options that have not been e
xercised on December 8, 2021 shall expire.

Restricted Stock
On March 31, 2021, AIU issued an additional 57,000 total shares of restricted common stock to executives of AIU representing approximately
135,923 shares of Clearday, Inc. Common Stock. For the year ended on December 31 2021, shares issued of restricted common stock vest over 33
months and the Company valued the 135,923 shares at $5.07 per share, on the date of the agreement.
As of December 31 2020 the Company has awarded restricted stock worth $5,103,160 or 510,316 shares to various officers, directors and consultants



that will be amortized over the requisite service period. As of December 31 2019, there was $0 in unamortized stock compensation.
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Equity of Subsidiary

Non-Controlling Interest
In November 2019, a certificate of incorporation was filed by AIU Alt Care for its Series I 10.25% cumulative convertible preferred stock, par value
$0.01 per share (“AIU Alt Care Preferred”) that authorizes the issuance of 1,500,000 shares of preferred stock and 1,500,000 of common stock and
designated 700,000 as AIU Alt Care Preferred. Each share of AIU Alt Care Preferred has a stated value equal to the AIU Alt Care Preferred original
issue price of $10.00 per share. For the year ended December 31 December 31, 2021 and 2020, approximately $907,765 and $3,641,575 was invested in
AIU Alt Care, respectively, in exchange for approximately 90,776 and 364,158 shares of such preferred stock, respectively.
In October 2019, AIU Alt Care formed AIU Impact Management, LLC and they formed Clearday OZ Fund, which is managed by AIU Impact
Management, LLC, as the general partner. For the year ended December 31 2021 and 2020, approximately $2,494,621 and $940,387 was invested in
Clearday Oz Fund, respectively.
The exchange rate for each of the Alt Care Preferred Stock and the Clearday OZ LP Interests to Clearday, Inc. Common Stock is equal to (i) the
aggregate investment amount for such security plus accrued dividends at 10.25% per annum, (ii) divided by 80% of the 20 consecutive day volume
weighted closing price of the Common Stock of Clearday preceding the conversion date. Prior to the merger, these securities were exchangeable to
shares of AIU common stock at a rate of 1 share for every $10.00 of aggregate amount of the investment plus such accrued dividends.
On March 31, 2020, AIU Alt Care entered into an independent consulting agreement, or the Consulting Agreement, pursuant to which the Company
issued 5,000 shares of AIU Alt Care Preferred stock to the Consultant as partial consideration for financial services rendered. In connection with
this transaction, the Company valued the 5,000 shares of AIU Alt Care Preferred stock at $10 per share for $50,000, on the date of the agreement.
The vesting date is September 9, 2022.
A certain officer was repaid $175,000 in the first quarter of 2020 towards a $500,000 payable that was owed; the remaining balance of $325,000 was
converted as of December 31, 2020 to 32,500 shares of Alt Care Preferred Stock and 32,500 warrants to purchase shares of the Company’s common
stock. In November 2020, the same officer was issued 6,000 Preferred shares in exchange for a $60,000 guarant
y fee. See Note 7 - Indemnification Agreements

Non-Controlling Interest Loss Allocation.
The Company applied ASC 810-10 guidance to correctly allocate the percentage of loss attributable to the NCI of each company. For the year ended
December 31, 2021, the net income for AIU Alt Care is $6,068,979 and loss for Clearday Oz Fund is $602,096. Additionally, for the year ended
December 31, 2020, the losses for both AIU Alt Care and Clearday OZ Fund were $423,742 and $1,267,440, respectively. Based on ownership
interest, AIU Alt Care and Clearday OZ Fund incurred a net (income) attributable to the NCI in the amount of $660,690 and $6,021, respectively in
2021 and incurred losses of $419,506 and $1,254,766
, respectively, for 2020.

Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock and Limited Partnership Interests in Subsidiaries (NCI).
For the year ended December 31, 2021, AIU Alt Care closed subscriptions and issued and sold 89,700 shares of Series I Cumulative Convertible
Preferred Stock (the “Alt Care Preferred Stock”), par value $0.01 per share, and 244,473 units of limited partnership interests in Clearday OZ Fund.
The terms and conditions of the Alt Care Preferred Stock and the limited partnership interests in the Clearday OZ Fund allow the investors in such
interests to exchange such securities into the Company’s common stock at the then Company common stock price. For the year ended December 31
2021, AIU Alt Care and Clearday OZ Fund has issued 1,270,515 and 2,010,150 warrants, respectively.
Each warrant has a term of ten years and provides for the purchase of the 1 share of the Company’s common stock at a cash exercise price equal to
50% of the price per share of the Company’s common stock when the Company becomes a public company by filing a registration statement,
reverse merger or other transaction. The number of shares of the Company’s common stock and the warrant exercise price will be subject to
adjustment for stock dividends, stock splits, combinations or other similar recapitalizations after the initial exercise price has been determined.
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Dividends on the Alt Care Preferred Stock and preferred distributions on the units of limited partnership interests in Clearday OZ Fund are at each
calendar quarterly month end at the applicable dividend rate (10.25%) on the original issue price of the Alt Care Preferred Stock or the units limited
partnership interests. Dividends will either (a) be payable in cash, if and to the extent declared by the board of directors or the general partner, or (b)
by issuing Dividend Shares equal to the aggregate accrued dividend divided by the Series I Original Issue Price. Dividends, if noticed to the Holder,
will be payable after the Dividend Payment Date.
Each of the Company, AIU Alt Care and Clearday OZ Fund shall redeem the Alt Care Preferred Stock or the units of limited partnership interests on
the 10 Year Redemption Date that is ten years after the final closing of the offering. The securities provide for a redemption in cash or shares of
common stock at the option of Clearday, Inc., in an amount equal to the unreturned investment in the Alt Care Preferred Stock or units of limited
partnership interests. Upon consummation of certain equity offerings prior to May 1, 2022, AIU Alt Care may, at its option, redeem all or a part of
the Alt Care Preferred Stock for the liquidation preference plus a make-whole premium. In addition, upon the occurrence of, among other things (i)
any change of control, (ii) a liquidation, dissolution, or winding up, (iii) certain insolvency events, or (iv) certain asset sales, each holder may
require the Company to redeem for cash all of such holder’s then outstanding shares of Alt Care Preferred Stock.
The Certificate of Designation also sets forth certain limitations on the Company’s ability to declare or make certain dividends and distributions and
engage in certain reorganizations. The limited partnership agreement has similar provisions.
Subject to certain exceptions, the holders of Alt Care Preferred Stock and the units of limited partnership interests have no voting power and no
right to vote on any matter at any time, either as a separate series or class or together with any other series or class of shares of capital stock or
partnership interests, and are not be entitled to call a meeting of such holders for any purpose, nor are they entitled to participate in any meeting of
the holders of the Company’s common stock or participate in the management of Clearday OZ Fund by its general partner.

14. Preferred Stock - Mezzanine
The Company has 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock authorized, par value $0.001 per share, including 5,000,000 designated as Series F Preferred
Stock and 4,797,082 shares outstanding as of December 31 2021. Pursuant to the Certificate of Designations of Series F Preferred Stock, upon any
voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation (“Liquidation Event”), including any Deemed Liquidation Event,
as defined in the Certificate of Designations and unless otherwise determined by the majority of the holders of the Series F Preferred Stock that a



transaction is not a Deemed Liquidation Event, the holders of the then outstanding Series F Preferred Stock shall be entitled to be paid a liquidation
preference (“Preference Amount”) out of the assets of the Company available for distribution to its stockholders equal to the original issue price
and, plus any accumulated and unpaid dividends. As the payment of this Preference Amount is not solely within the control of the Company, the
Series F Preferred Stock does not qualify as permanent equity and has been classified as mezzanine or temporary equity. The Series F Preferred
Stock is not redeemable, and it was not probable that there would be a Liquidation Event as of December 31 2021. Therefore, the Company is not
currently required to accrete the Series F Preferred Stock to the aggregate liquidation value.

15. Income Taxes
The Company did not recognize a benefit or provision for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020.
As a result of the AIU Merger that closed on September 9, 2021, and the rules pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section 382, management does
not believe that there is any significant net operating loss carry forward.

For the year ended
December 31,

2021 2020
Current tax provision (benefit):
Federal $ - $ -
State - -
Total current tax benefit - -
Deferred Tax provision:
Federal - -
State - -

Total deferred tax provision - -

Total tax provision $ - $ -

Schedule of Federal Statutory Income Tax Rate

For the year ended
December 31,

2021 2020
Taxes at statutory U.S. federal income tax rate 21.0% 21.0%
State and local income taxes, net of federal tax benefit 6.7% 6.9%
Other differences, net 0% 0%
Valuation allowance -27.7% -27.9%
Effective tax rate -% -%
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15. Subsequent Events
We evaluated subsequent events and transactions occurring after D
ecember 31, 2021 through the date of this Report.

Loans
Clearday acquired additional financings through loans and factoring agreements. From the period January 1, 2022 to April 15, 2022, Clearday
obtained net proceeds of approximately $1,935,000 in such financings, of which approximately $305,700 was used to repay existing indebtedness.
through the following transactions:

Sale of Future Receivables

Schedule of Sale of Future Receivables

Date Borrower

Amount of
Receivables
Sold Purchase Price

Debt
Repayment Net Proceeds

Approximate
Repayment
Term

2/28/2022

MCA Naples, LLC and MCA
Naples Operating Company,
LLC $ 585,000 $ 441,000 $ 73,130 $ 367,870 45 weeks

3/4/2022
Memory Care At Good
Shepherd, LLC $ 589,000 $ 441,000 $ 152,078 $ 288,922 50 weeks

3/16/2022
MCA New Braunfels
Operating Company LLC $ 345,000 $ 242,500 $ 33,100 $ 209,400 35 weeks

3/16/2022
MCA New Braunfels
Operating Company LLC $ 207,000 $ 145,425 $ 28,450 $ 116,975 35 weeks

3/24/2022
MCA Westover Hills
Operating Company, LLC $ 299,375 $ 234,311 - $ 234,311 38 weeks

4/12/2022 MCA Naples, LLC $ 287,000 $ 200,850 18,940 $ 181,910 40 weeks

4/13/2022
Memory Care At Good
Shepherd, LLC $ 345,000 $ 230,000 - $ 230,000 40 weeks

$ 2,657,375 $ 1,935,086 $ 305,698 $ 1,629,388

Clearday also borrowed approximately $172,000 through an unsecured financing which included original issue discount of $18,250 or net proceeds
after lender expenses of $150,000. The financing incurred a one-time interest charge of 12% and is payable in monthly amounts $19,286.40
, with the first payment being on May 20, 2022,

Incentive Shares
Holders of the Clearday Series A Preferred Stock (including, both original stockholders as well as any recipient of a Permitted Transfer) are eligible
to receive a bonus or incentive of additional shares of our Common Stock if they continue to hold their preferred stock - the Series F Preferred that



was issued upon exchange of their Clearday Series A Preferred, for six months after the closing of the merger. See Form S-4 for additional
information. On March 8, 2022, we issued 2,281,334 shares of Clearday par value $.001 to these shareholders.
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on this 17th day of May, 2022.

CLEARDAY, INC.
BY: /s/ James T. Walesa

James T. Walesa
President and Chief Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY
KNOW ALL THESE PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints John R.
Bergeron, his attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution, for him in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Report on
Form 10-K, and to file the same, with exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorney-in-fact or his substitute or substitutes, may do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report on Form 10-K has been signed below by the following persons on
behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Signature Title Date
/s/ James T. Walesa President, Chief Executive Officer and Director May 17, 2022
James T. Walesa
/s/ John R. Bergeron

(Principal Executive Officer)
Chief Financial Officer May 17, 2022

John R. Bergeron
/s/ BJ Parrish

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
Director

May 17, 2022

BJ Parrish
/s/ Elizabeth M. Caveness

Director May 17, 2022

Elizabeth M. Caveness
/s/ Alan Channing Director May 17, 2022
Alan Channing
/s/ Jeffrey A. Coleman Director May 17, 2022
Jeffrey A. Coleman
/s/ Richard Levychin Director May 17, 2022
Richard Levychin
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